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Abbreviations
&5 78

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the following meanings ~ WAFRA - BXESBIEI - TIIEHEE L TRE

unless otherwise specified:

“Board”

Ex3 1 ;
“Company”

VNS #
“Directors”

= i
“Group”

[AREEE ] #
“Listing Rules”

[ R Al #
“PRC"

[ E #
“SFO”

[ 58 % K AR & &M ) #

"“Stock Exchange”

[ B2 FfT ¥

“HK$"” and "HK cents”

(&7 &7 ¥
“RMB”

[ARE] ¥
S

[ ¥
nop

(%] ¥

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

the Board of Directors of the Company
ARBZEES

Winshine Science Company Limited

BRMBERAT

the directors of the Company
ARBZES

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARBRENMBAR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B PriE 7 LR A

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding Hong

Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARANE - BABEME - TRESE  BFKRSE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
&7 M B IEG (FREGIFESTI1E)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBMARSMERAT

Hong Kong dollars and cents

IR

Renminbi

ARE

United States dollars
E7T

per cent.

Elepsd



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Deyong (Chairman)
Dr. Liao Wenjian (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
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Mr. Zhao Yong

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman)
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Mr. Zhao Yong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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Corporate Information
“NEEH

TRADING OF SHARES

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 209)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 1|

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 1002, 10th Floor, 299 QRC,
287-299 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of Communications Co. Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Guangdong Development Bank Zhongshan Branch

AUDITOR

Confucius International CPA Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North, Cedar House,

4| Cedar Avenue,

Hamilton HM 12,

Bermuda

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

RITEE

BEBAXSAARAR (B : 209)

AfMER

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM ||

Bermuda

HMNEERBEBIRERME

B

ERKEF287-2995%

299 QRC 0K 1002 F
FEFERET

BB LERRITAER AR
RRBITRDEBERAREESTT
BREREITHILSTT

T EER
KEER SR EBSTBRA A
FERHGBFELE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North, Cedar House,

41 Cedar Avenue,

Hamilton HM 12,

Bermuda



HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

|'7/F, Far East Finance Centre
|6 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.winshine.com

http://www.tricor.com.hk/webservice/000209
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

Dear fellow shareholders:

The Board herein presents the annual report for 2022 and the audited
annual financial statements for the Group for the financial year ended 3|
December 2022,

After a long waited three years of business disruption and stringent anti-
Covid measures, it is anticipated that with the continued easing of anti-Covid
measures, the reopening of China’s border in January 2023 and further
supportive government policies, we should see an overall improvement of
the local economy. Our Group continued the existing business in the past
years, in particular resumed our Toys Division in full operation, resulting an

increase of revenue by approximately 17.2% to HK$849.1 million.

PROSPECTS

We anticipate that 2023 is a year where we will see many things return to
normal. The Toys Division experienced tremendous pressure on product
margins and turnover in FY2022, but has already managed to restart its
operation after a closed down period due to COVID-19. The Toys Division

is expected to continue to perform satisfactorily.

Starting in 2022, the Board is looking for different business opportunities to
diversify our principal business activities and moving toward more profitable
businesses in order to maintain competitiveness and ensure shareholder
returns. Cost cutting measures within the Group were put in place to reduce
operating costs. The Board has also decided to give the Company a better

financial position to meet the future challenges.

In order to explore opportunities and provide sufficient fund for the general
working capital, the Group proposed to issue of the Convertible Bonds
amounting to HK$22.5 million and HK$14 million on 14 October 2022
and |6 December 2022 respectively. One of the possible investments in a
watermelon planting project in Japan. The possible investment is in line with
the Group’s plan to develop a business in the agricultural sector. One of the
executive Directors of the Company, possesses experience in the agriculture
products industry which may help to analysis on the risks and returns on the

investments.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF
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Looking forward, we are cautiously optimistic as our Toys Division continues
to perform in the marketplace and the Board shall continue to explore more
new business opportunities on a much lower management cost and look for

more new potential customers to increase the market shares.

Zhao Deyong

Chairman

Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The main divisions of the Group based on the principal activities of the
Group include the manufacturing for sale of toys (the “Toys Division”) and

securities investments (the “Securities Investments Division”).

For FY2022, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$849.I
million, representing an increase of approximately 17.2% as compared to
the revenue of approximately HK$724.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (“FY2021").

The increase of revenue was mainly due to the improved performance of
our Toys Division of approximately HK$124.5 million. Gross profit for the
year amounted to approximately HK$97.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately 162.7% as compared with that of approximately HK$37.3
million in FY2021 as a result of improvements in the performance of the

Toys Division.

For FY2022, the net profit of the Group amounted to approximately HK$8.1
million as compared with the net loss approximately HK$136.0 million
in FY2021. The decrease in net loss of the Group and turn out to net
profit was mainly due to (i) the revenue generated from a major customer
purchase orders was increased; (ii) net foreign exchange gain; and (i) no
further impairment loss on property, plant and equipment as mentioned

above.

The following will discuss the detailed performance of each division of the

Group.
Toys Division

For FY2022, revenue of the Toys Division increased by approximately
17.2% to HK$849.1 million. The gross profit increased to approximately
HK$97.9 million as compare to HK$37.3 million in FY202!. The increase
in both revenue and gross profit of the Toys Division were mainly due to
the increase in purchase orders from the largest customer headquartered
in the United States of America (the "USA"). The Toys Division recorded
a reported segment profit before taxation of approximately HK$53.1

million in FY2022, as compared to the turnout of the reportable segment

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

loss of approximately HK$69.1 million in FY2021. Such reported segment
profit before taxation of the Toys Division were mainly due to net foreign
exchange gain, significantly decrease in the impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment and increase in gross profit attributable to the Toys

Division.

Securities Investments Division

Since the Hong Kong stock market was seriously affected by fluctuating
pandemic situation through out 2022, the Group adopted a conservative
strategy in managing its investment portfolio. No investment and no profit

was recorded in 2022 (Profit in 2021: HK$93,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Due to the classification of the Group's borrowing as current liability
discussed immediately below, at the end of FY 2022, the Group had net
current liabilities of approximately HK$192.8 million (2021: HK$232.4 million)
comprising cash and cash equivalents (excluding pledged bank deposits) of
approximately HK$49.8 million (202 1: HK$66.6 million).

The capital deficiencies attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$89.6 million as at 31 December 2022, as compared to the
capital deficiencies attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$98.9 million as at 31 December 2021,
operating profit incurred by the Group during the year. The Group financed

mainly as a result of the

its operations through a combination of debt financing and shareholder’s
equity. The Group's gearing ratio was determined as its net debt divided by
total equity plus net debt where net debt included borrowings, trade and
bills payables and other payables and accruals less pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 3|
December 2022 was approximately 134% (2021: 123%).

Despite the loss incurred by the Group and the net liabilities status at the
end of FY2022, the Group has proposed to issue the convertible bonds on
date 14 October 2022 and 16 December 2022. Therefore, the Group has

sufficient cash to support the Group's ongoing business operations.

The management team is more closely aligned with our shareholders as
can be seen from the actions taken so far to redirect the Company toward
a better internal control, resolution of the legacy issues and a substantial

reduction of the management cost.

BEEENWmR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmR DM

DETAILS OF AUDIT QUALIFICATION AND RESPONSE FROM
THE COMPANY

Details of the Audit Qualification

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately HK$192,768,000 and HK$89,648,000,
respectively during the year ended 31 December 2022, and the Group's
bank balances amounted to approximately HK$49,765,000, in contrast to its
borrowings approximately HK$190,943,000, which are repayable within the
next twelve months. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. In this regard, the auditor of the Company issued a disclaimer
of opinion on the consolidated financial statement of the Group for the year
ended 3| December 2022 on material uncertainty on the Group's ability to

continue as a going concern (the “Audit Qualification”).

Actual or potential impact of the Audit Qualification on the Group’s

financial position

The Audit Qualification does not itself show any actual impact on the
Group's financial position. As set out in note to the consolidated financial
statements, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period. Should the Group fail
to achieve the intended effects resulting from the plans and measures as
mentioned in note to the consolidated financial statements, it might not
be able to operate as a going concern, and adjustments would have to be
made to write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, provide
for any further liabilities that may arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated

financial statements.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

EERFRRAAFZEE

ERRFER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Management’s position

In view of the Audit Qualification, the management of the Group (including
the Directors) (the “Management’”) has given consideration related to the
Group's current liquidity, performance and available sources of financing in
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Taking into
account the successful and continued implementation of various measures
such as including the successful completion of issuance of two convertible
bonds, successful negotiations with the lenders regarding the extension of
the maturity of all outstanding borrowings, the Management believes that the
Group should have sufficient working capital for a period of not less than 12
months from 31 December 2022, and hence it was appropriate to prepare

the Group's consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

There was no disagreement between the Management and the Auditors
regarding the Audit Qualification, considering that the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends on the outcome of the measures under management’s
assumptions, which are subject to certain uncertainties, including the Group's
ability to generate operating cash flows and to obtain additional sources of
financing. While the Company is of the view that it has already provided all
available information and documents to demonstrate that the Group will
have sufficient working capital for the |2 months after the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company also acknowledges the uncertainties raised
by the Auditors specified above in that such uncertainties cannot be satisfied

with the mere provision of documents and information.

Audit committee’s views towards the Audit Qualification

The audit committee reviewed and agreed with the management'’s position
concerning the action plan of the Group to address the Audit Qualification
disclosed above. The Audit Committee has also discussed with the
Management and the Auditors to understand the reason for the Disclaimer
and the views of the Board and the Auditors. The Audit committee concurs
with the Management's position and views with respect to the Disclaimer
and the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, the actions to be

implemented by the management of the Group.

BEEENWmR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmR DM

Proposed plans to address the Audit Qualification

The Board is satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future,
after taking into consideration of the point (i) to (iii) as set out in note
2 to the consolidated financial statements. The management recognises
that further equity funding is required to resolve auditor's concern on the
going concern issue. As such, the management will commence to contact
potential investors with a view to raise equity funds by way of placing of
new shares of the Company under a general mandate and/or rights issues.
The management will vigorously consider any feasible plan from the potential
underwriter and will proceed as and when appropriate and practicable. The
management intends to conduct the equity fund activities and successfully

raise fund for the Group by the end of 2023.

In view of the foregoing, and assuming all of the Company’s plans or
actions can be completed as planned, including the obtaining of alternative
financing, and no new circumstances and conditions have occurred, subject
to satisfactory completion of review of the Management's assessment of the
Group’s going concern and the Auditors being satisfied with the documents,
information and evidence to be provided by the Company going forward,
the Directors are of the view that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
next twelve months from the year ended of 3| December 2022 and the
Company is hopeful that that the Disclaimer may be removed in connection
with the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the

year ending 31 December 2023.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group is delighted to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report (the "ESG Report”), prepared by Winshine Science Company
Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) to summaries the Group’s ESG key issues, initiatives, and the
sustainability performance of our principal business in 2022. The ESG Report
is prepared in response to stakeholders’ expectations and concerns about

the sustainable development of the Group.

The board of directors of the Group (the “Board”) is responsible for the
sustainable development of the Group and directs the Group to perform
its corporate social responsibilities. The Board determinedly believes that
our attention to resources management and occupational safety and health
will especially help the Group achieve its established vision and mission.
The Board have faith in that attaching importance to ESG management can
improve our corporate image, reduce ESG risks and enhance the Group's
capability to comply with relevant laws and regulations. These efforts
can further improve the competitiveness of the Group and promote the

sustainable development of the Group’s business.

The Board believes that an effective governance structure of ESG matters
is essential to ESG performance and reporting and thus has established a
working group to assist and advise the Board in managing ESG matters such
as identifying ESG risks and opportunities, managing ESG issues as well as
collecting data regularly for the review of the ESG performance. The working

group reports to the Board on an annual basis.

The risk management of ESG-related issues is important to the Board. With
an aim to promote the comprehensive risk management within the Group,
the Group has made a basic assessment of relevant ESG risks through the
Board's extensive understanding of the business and the communication
with different stakeholders, and incorporated the relevant risks into the risk

management and internal control system.

The Board believes that the focus on resources management and
occupational health and safety is valuable to the Group's achievement of
its goal of upholding an excellent corporate image. Relevant departments
regularly report the metrics to the working group, who in turns consolidates
them and reports to the Board. The Group can thus regularly assess our
performance indicators in resources consumption and occupational safety
based on predetermined targets. These targets and evaluations are effective

metrics that reflect the efficiency and control of our operation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - -#HEBRERERS

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Board directed a clear message to all
levels of employees to continue to adopt a series of COVID-19 preventive
measures and social distancing policy. These measures served to ensure
the health and safety of our employees and the resilience of the Group's

production.

A diligent and prudent operation practice is the answer to the uncertainty
of the pandemic. The Group will continue to seek ways to develop our
business in a more efficient and environmentally friendly manner and remains

steadfast in our mission to build an inclusive and sustainable society.

INTRODUCTION

The Group longs to pursue sustainable development to integrate
environmental and social initiatives into business and improve its
competitiveness within the industry. In order to demonstrate the Group's
continuous development in ESG, the Board is pleased to publish its seventh

ESG Report.

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report covers our commitments, practices, and performance
in various ESG aspects for the period starting from | January 2022 to 3|
December 2022 (the "2022" or "2022 Reporting Period”). The reporting
scope of the ESG Report focuses on the primary business, manufacturing
and trading of toys. Only Zhongshan division is covered since the Zhongshan
factory is financially significant and operationally important to the Group,
constituting the centre for administration and policymaking. As such
Zhongshan division is covered in both environmental section and social
section in the ESG Report. The office-based operation in Hong Kong only
has a small workforce working in the finance and administration department,
its environmental implication is immaterial and as such is covered only in the

social section in the ESG Report.

REPORTING PRINCIPLE

The ESG Report complies with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guidelines” (the "ESG Reporting Guide™) in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules. The four reporting principles listed in the ESG Reporting Guide:
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency, are used as the basis for

the preparation of the ESG Report.
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Materiality: The Group communicates with different stakeholders on a
regular basis and have conducted a stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment to better understand and identify the most material ESG-
related issues to the Group based on various stakeholders’ perspectives.
Meanwhile, the Group concerns ESG development outside and within the
industry, fulfilling local standards as well as incorporating it into the strategic

development plan of the Group.

Quantitative: Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules guides the Group to prepare
measurable KPIs to review performance. Quantitative information presented
in the ESG Report is accompanied by narrative, explanation, and comparison
analysis wherever applicable. The frequency of publication is once a year per

reporting period.

Balance: The Group upholds this reporting principle to compile the ESG
Report, unbiasedly disclose the environmental and social performance in the
2022 Reporting Period with the support of pictures, charts and presentation
formats whenever appropriate, to present objective and transparent

information and data for readers to make sound decisions and judgments.

Consistency: The Group adopts consistent methodologies and retrieves
environmental and social performance from the Group’s internal record
system. The ESG Report makes reference to Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs and Appendix 3: Reporting guidance on
Social KPIs to collect, calculate and present, to make meaningful comparisons

over the years.

Throughout the 2022 Reporting Period, the Group maintained the same
ESG management structure and process as the last reporting period
(from | January 2021 to 3| December 2021, “2021"
Period”). The Group fully understands that ESG policies and practices may

or 2021 Reporting

change over time to reflect the changes in business operations, structures,
technologies, laws and regulations, and the environment. The Group thus
continues to invest substantial resources to monitor ESG issues, policies and
practices and performance on an ongoing basis. In order to contribute to the
sustainable development on the environment and society, whilst maximizing
the benefits to our employees and the stakeholders, the Group has
continued to exercises due responsibility in maintaining the highest level of
ethical standards when conducting its business and upholds strict compliance

with all relevant laws, rules and regulations in all ESG matters.

RR -HEgRERKRSE

BEEN  ARETEHETRFNHESR  LHFMHE
W2EERESUHETHE  UREEFOHEZENOR
BoOEETHEMBSNHAEENMEREENRE 4
ERERHBEEE - AR - AEEBITERNINIE
RE HERERER  EZWHTRE  XHEAA
AEBZEREERRED

B EMRAMS - T iR AR ERA TG EMNE
REVIER - ETTRIREMN - RIE HEREARR

T2 ERBM AR - B8R BA T (20E
) e RBERRERNGFTNE R

IN°

T AEERRALRERUFERIRE  HEREAR
HE  WEREREZERR  BEXRREBAEMIEE
T CFREHANRRERTEER - NREEE
MBEBANEMMESE - HEEEL ERADREFHE -

— B AEBERA-BOIE 0 ARAKERAE
RGP EIREMESEN - RE B8 MEAR
BESRMT R RBMRESISIRE RS S| KMk
= HEHRERERERESINE  SHERZIE
REMIER - NWETEBENFELE -

TR CFREHHE  AREERFE EERSH(Z
T -A-BARE_F_—F+-_A=+—80"
F T —F Y T —FHREHDERNERE &
GREREEEBLRRIE - AEETIERIRE it
ERERABRMERAESBERSHNEEMELSE
£ URREBEE - &7 - Bl RRRPIRIRE
ML - Bt AEEBEERARBER - IAHE
ERRE HealkEnad  BERMNEBEUMKE -
RIEERBELENAFAER - RERACERMN
BIRFNENNG  AEERFAREBEFERT

FE¥§E@E§f£ﬂE£%? SRERREYHAARE HE
SAEEBRERETHAERBER  ZRER
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

—ECCFFR

15



16

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY BEnE2ENEEMTME

ASSESSMENT

The Group recognises the importance of understanding stakeholders' needs ~ ANEEE RO RAEFMHEF KMBENEZ M - Bt -
and expectations. Stakeholders' opinions can help the Group identify and M EMNER TEDAEERD RIZELIEEHFE
prioritise material aspects, whereby many communication channels have been ~ AFH * MAKE DRI ZEBBEBETHEATREF

set up to regularly engage different stakeholders.

Communication Channels

nEBRE -

Major Stakeholders

BERE FTEFME

Meetings Investors, Customers, Regulators, Suppliers, Directors, Management, and Employees
oE wEE TP EEHE  HEN =35 EEEREE

Reports Investors, Customers, and Regulators

W BEE  BPREERE

Announcements (circulars, memos, emails)
RECRE - BEE - BEFHM)
Company's website

RANNSIF S

Phone calls

=

Surveys
HE
Site visits
BIRE
Seminars

e

Company Events (annual dinners, volunteer service)

AREVEBGAEME - ZIRYG)

Investors, Suppliers, and Employees

REE  -HEBRMESR

Investors, Customers, Organisation, Regulators, Suppliers, Employees, and the Public
BEE  BF  MAE  EERE - HEDN  RERAR
Customers and Suppliers

EPRHER

Customers and Employees

EFLER

Customers, Regulators, and Suppliers

BF - BRERBRMHERS

Industrial Organisation

THRMAR

Directors, Management, and Employees

B EREREE

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF



Through regular communications with stakeholders and reviewing of the

information collected, the Group has identified the following ESG material

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RR -dHEgRkER/ES

BEREFNENEREBERBHREF[ENER &
SEDHR TIRE  HEREANERNAERRLT
o RTRBPIR

areas and aspects indicated in the following table:

&)

22
5

ST (¥

i

h 150 &
External Assessment (Impact on Stakeholders)

TEE

Immaterial

B3 Bl

AISA2
(3]
O

B5 B4

® ® 00,

B7 B2

Internal Assessment (Impact on Business)

MERME (BEBZHE)

Subject Areas £ EEilE Subject Aspects FEEE
Environmental BR1E Al. Emissions Al BER
A2. Use of Resources A2. BIR{EH
A3. Environment and Natural Resources ~ A3. IRIENK BAER
A4. Climate Change A4 RIREME

Social &

Employment and Labour Practices {EfERZ T EHR Bl
B2.

Employment

Health and Safety

BI. [E1F
B2 ML R

B3. Development and Training B3. & K IFI
B4. Labour Standards B4. BENTAE
Operating Practices & ZE1& | B5. Supply Chain Management BS. S E R
B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmEME
B7. Anti-corruption B7. R&ES
Community & B8. Community Investment B8 BT E

The table below summarizes the most important ESG issues expressed by

different stakeholders.

R -

TEBETRFNERENREZNRE - HE8 R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Stakeholder Categories 357 % %85l Most Material Issues REEEKREE
Employee B & o Labour Standards 0 LBENRAE

. Corporate Governance and Risk Management 2B R B b 1R
Customer &P O Water Management 0 FKERR

. Occupational Health and Safety 0 BEREMZ R
Supplier # & . Water Management 0 FXKER

. Procurement and Supply Chain Management . REMEEEER

The above ESG material areas and aspects have continued to be strictly

BRE  HeREREEMEBRERFESER

/A
managed and monitored through the Group's established management ~ AIRE - HE@RERMSMUREED RINERE
structure, process, policies and guidelines as described in this ESG Report. B R - R RIESIETRIRE IR BT o

THE GROUP’S ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL AREAS AND
ASPECTS AND THEIR PERFORMANCE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL AREAS AND ASPECTS A. RIGE

Sustainability is the pathway to success. Striving to achieve that goal,
the Group has set up an Environmental Management Committee
overseeing the Group’s environmental performance, formulating
environmental initiatives, and minimizing environmental risks. First and
foremost, the Group has complied with all environmental laws and

regulations and prohibited to the utmost of all relevant illegal and

FEEBNRERMEERREBEERARR

EREmE

3k

ARHEZERIBERINER - RERARZ - A%H
ERYREEEZES  UEEASENRFEEN -
HERRABEEREARBIERK - B - AF
BEETHAERRBEARMNER YEKRKEERILM
BRERNPENERTY - YRERTAAARBERR
B BRRERER - BRETER

violating activities and ensuring compliance with all relevant national

and local environmental laws and regulations including but not limited

to:

. Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (AR FEMBEIER

iﬁ%%u /f)

(PEARAMBERBREER):

(hEARAMBIRE R ETE L)

. Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment (1 A *

RAMBRBR EHEZE);

. Water Pollution and Control Law of the PRC (1 ZE A K AN
B R RE);

. Atmospheric Pollution and Control Law of the PRC (F#E AR
HIEKRRF? nﬁﬁ/u/jﬂ_)

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Pollution
from Environmental Noise (F#E A RHEMEIIRIF R E )52
JAVK); and

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of

Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste (FF#E A R 750 E[E 48
REY S RBRIZNIEE).

No environmental non-compliance incident was resulting in fines or

prosecutions in the 2022 Reporting Period.

Additionally, the Group attaches great importance to mitigating
environmental threats and impacts caused directly or indirectly by
the business through vigilant assessment and monitoring. The Group
adheres to the ISO 14001 environmental management system
standard and accordingly set up an environmental management system.
Last but not least, the Group unceasingly advance its environmental
performance and work closely with relevant authorities in the wake of
tightening national environmental legislation and management towards

the manufacturing industry.

Al.  EMISSIONS

0] Greenhouse Gases (“GHG") Emission

Greenhouse gases (GHG) include carbon dioxide (“CO,")
and its non-hazardous equivalents including nitrous oxide
and methane (collectively with CO,, “CO,e"). The Group
has collected its GHG emission data since 2017. The
Group has established an emission reduction pathway
with a long-term perspective as a directional target.
The primary source of GHG emission of the Group is
from purchased electricity and secondarily from the fuel

consumption by company vehicles.

RR -HEgRERKRSE

. (R AR AMBIRIBRE S LM AE): &

- (PEARANMBEIERREY SRRETAE) -

R-F-_FHEHR - SEXLEAREIARE

HOSBE IR -

BEAN - ARERREER X ERE EKREERRIR
BEREMEE ﬁ?ﬁﬁtt?ﬁ%’lﬁ%ﬁﬁ BRIl - AEE

ESFISO 1400 1 IRIZFE IR RIZE - WIRNRITIRIRE
ﬁﬁgcaé'%%H%W%ﬁﬁﬁ%Wﬁ%%M&
I - AEERERA BN A R R )
Atk -

B(OAERE DR

A

H RESR

EREORERE)BE Al
(F_%TKEM) BEEZRY B
BE—ak= ﬂ& F(Eﬁi R A&
BRI —&ELREE]D - AEEBZ
T FURE RS REREL
HMEHE  AEBEEINRER
KBTI ABRERPEE - NEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR-HE8RER

The table below recorded and compared the 2022 TRESEW S —F — —FiREHAER
Reporting Period and the 2021 Reporting Period’s TR FREHNREERED
resultant GHG emissions: i
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE

GHG Emissions Mo () Unit 2022 2021 Changes

BERBE R0 Bl —g--f —T-—% 28

Total GHG emissions (Scope | and 2) ™=@ CO,e tonnes 7,380 7,992 -8%

BEREATE (FE | K2)PH WE— S LIE S

Scope | Note ) CO,e tonnes 205 97 +111%

HE e —EtREE

Scope 2 Nete () CO,e tonnes 7,175 7,894 -9%

&2 —afeIREE

Intensity (Scope | and 2) per production COze tonnes/ 1,000 pieces

volume 0.27 0.39 -31%

SHEEFBOEE (BE I X2) —SLHEE 10000

Note |:  Emission factors for calculations in this ESG Report Miatl - BREBEIEAN  KRF MG
were made reference to the "How to prepare an kEAMEPFENERET
ESG Report-Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on NB2EEAMERGMBRA
Environmental KPIs (version updated on 25 March Tbmﬁmfﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁzﬁﬂiﬂ k-
2022)" by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, E. ARG s RIEH
unless otherwise specified. 1B BB IR IE RIE S| (EAf'—‘; -

_ifﬂ THEEH) -

Note 2. The GHG emissions data present in terms of carbon W2 - A& mREEINRORER
dioxide equivalent refers to the latest released BYERBBLD2ZERERM
emission factors by the National Development and KNEZ BRI BHEMOBER
Reform Commission. A e

Note 3:  Scope | refers to direct emissions from vehicles that BiaE3 . HEIEREAEBHERSEHH
the Group owns, BB o

Note 4:  Scope 2 refers to indirect emissions resulting from the Hiat4 . HEREAEENEFEEEEN

generation of purchased electricity consumed within
the Group.

There was an increase in the Scope | emissions in the

2022 Reporting Period due to the increase in frequency

of logistics transportations for the transfer of goods

across the operational plants in the PRC. In contrast, the

Group has outsourced part of its production processes in

the 2022 Reporting Period, resulting in a slightly decrease

in Scope 2 emissions compared to the 2021 Reporting

Period.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RRE - HERERARE

The Group targets to lower the total GHG emissions by
2-3% for the coming year by implementing various energy

use efficiency initiatives stated in Section A2(i).

Exhaust Gas Emission

Furthermore, volatile organic compounds (“VOCs")
release is another concern that captures the Group'’s and
the stakeholders’ attention. Manufacturing toys inevitably
uses paints and emits VOCs in specific contexts. VOCs
pose harm to human, and children and infants are
especially susceptible. In view of this, the Group has
deployed water-based paints and environmentally friendly
paints with low VOCs content. Furthermore, the Group
introduced Phase Il VOCs emission improvement. The
project installed a VOCs removal system with activated
carbon absorber to ensure VOCs released to the
atmosphere, which a registered testing agency verifies,
is well within the legal requirements. The system is also
connected to the Ministry of Environmental Protection of
the PRC for them to monitor emissions level. Corrective
actions will be timely made should any abnormality
occurs. Above all, the Group has also maintained
ventilation systems to effectively remove or dilute indoor
air pollutants to further enhance the air quality in the

premises.

(i)

REENBERBBEMEEA2) N
My BB IRE A REEE - 8K
FHURERBBHENESEIR2-3% ©

RERHEL

sEoh - EEEE R AW (TVOCs])
R REE R FOE@ENS
H- WNENAEEEEFERE
B W EE R T B S HER
VOCs e VOCs¥fABBBE MR E
REBRLE - AL - AEER
HAKBEZRARVOCsE 2EKH
RIRABR o Lo - REEBES AR
ZHIVOCSHEMMZIER - ZEE L
REEE R BRI VOCs B R &
o ARREIRE KR E B VOCs
HFeEmaMARKERENEZTE
Ko RERMEREZPBRRBERE
A BRI HE UK o NEE KB
HIAEEBRRDAIETS - &=
ENR  AKBENELEBAR
oA EMBERIMBEAEZRS
EMAE—TRARFIHZEREE -

o
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B HBREA

(i)

wE

Transportation is another emission area where the Group
also provides guidance to control air pollution. The table
below recorded and compared the 2022 Reporting
Period and the 2021 Reporting Period’s resultant air

pollutant emissions in Zhongshan:

EHES —EENES - AEETS
REESIEHZERSER - TREH
Wtk - —FRERE_T
—EME IR IL M AR E RS A
W

Year ended 3| December

BE+-A=+—HILEE

Air Pollutants Unit 2022 2021 Changes

ZRISEY B —®B--fF —T-—F )

Nitrogen Oxides ("NO_") Gram 595,104 212,600 +180%

FELH(TNO ) =

Sulphur Oxides ("SQO,") Gram 1,205 614 +96%

ek (so, ) 5

Particulate Matter (“PM") Gram 58,726 20,824 +182%
TR ([PM]) 5

The air pollutants emissions increased significantly in
the 2022 Reporting Period due to the increase in the
frequency of logistics transportations for the transfer of

goods across the operational plants in the PRC.

The Group has been reviewing and planning a gradual
reduction of fossil fuels in order to reduce hazardous gas
emissions by encourages employees to use car-pooling
and public transits. For the coming year, the Group
targets to reduce air pollutant emissions especially those

hazardous SO , NO_and PM by 2-3%.

Waste Management

The Group understands its business consumes some
quantity of natural materials. The Group has established
a waste reduction pathway with a long-term perspective
as a directional target. As such, the Group carefully
plans raw materials inputs and end products output to
minimize waste generation, while ensuring reliable and

stable quality.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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The Group endeavours to reduce waste by implementing
different waste measures. One of the measures to
regulate waste disposal is the adoption of 3R (Reduce,
Reuse and Recycle) waste management principle in
operation. For instance, the Group recycles and reuses
plastics, wastepaper, and cardboards, replaces plastics
with biodegradable alternatives, sets duplex-printing as
default, carries out an Enterprise Resources Planning

system in the office.

In addition, the Group collects and properly handles
all hazardous waste in the National Hazardous Waste
List. They are stored in a designated container with
covers in a designated area to avoid leakage and misuse.
All hazardous waste such as organic solvent, compact
fluorescent lamp, batteries and exhausted cartridges
and toners are collected by the licensed contractors.
Waste in Hong Kong office was handled by the property

management and as a result, no relevant data was

RR -HEgRERKRSE

AEBBNBBEBTRNEREY
BRIBFEIE AR D BERY) - MEER
VMERENE K ——NEETRA
3ROBEE - ERMER)NEEYE
BIRA - fln - AEBE@ERER
R BERMAR - ERAEYR
BOBERAREEN  RECET
B RRREEREEERTE R

425

WL °

gESN - AEEB R ZEREBER
BEBREMBBTNMAEEREER
Y BEROEEFERREELENE
ERET  UNERRRBNRR -
BEREEREEY(HIMAEKEH - —8
HENE - B - BROHBIIHR
WE) I RFRABEWE - BEMR
FRNBENMBHMFEEERRE A
it BE R SRR SR -

available.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

Wastes Unit 2022 2021 Changes
BEZEY) B —EC-oF —T-—F &=
Non-hazardous waste, such as wastepaper,  Tonnes

domestic waste 55 52 +6%
EEEEY(PINER - £EEREY) A
Intensity of non-hazardous waste per Tonnes/ 10,000 pieces

production volume 0.02 0.03 -33%
BEEMBNESEEDTE 18, 10,00014
Hazardous waste, such as wasted oil, wasted Tonnes

solvent bottles 60 57 +5%
BEEZY(PINESRH - BEEAEM) W
Intensity of hazardous waste per production Tonnes/10,000 pieces

volume 0.02 0.03 -33%

BEENBNBERERNTE

g, 10,00014F

Compared to the 2021 Reporting Period, the slightly
increase of both the total amount of hazardous waste
and non-hazardous waste was due to the increase in

production volume in the 2022 Reporting Period.

HoT-—FREHEL - FF
BEERYNEZEENRSEME
meIHREER T - —FH
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022
RO CEER

23



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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A2.  USE OF RESOURCES
0} Energy Consumption

Energy is the critical component of the Group's
operation, and the Group has to acquire energy that
originates from fossil fuels, which is exhaustible and non-
renewable energy. The Group has thus established an
energy consumption reduction pathway with a long-term
perspective as a directional target. Because of that, the
Group makes its utmost to reduce energy consumption

by different energy measures.

. Established a resources management procedure to

regulate energy use;

. Turned off lighting, equipment and personal

computer during non-office hours;

. Switched off idling engines and air-conditioners

when not in use;

. Maintained air indoor room temperature at 24 to

26 Degree Celsius;
. Disseminated energy-saving message via emails;
. Replaced conventional lightings with LED;

. Purchased environmentally friendly equipment such

as electric Rotomolded PVC machines;

. Procured equipment for video conferencing to

reduce the need for business trips; and

. Adopted reusable energy such as solar water

heaters in the dormitory.

24 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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The table below recorded and compared the 2022
Reporting Period and the 2021 Reporting Period’s

resultant energy consumption:

RR -HEgRERKRSE

Tiéaﬁﬁiﬁttig:‘iiﬁiﬁﬂﬁi
T —FREHNNREERER -

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-AZ=+-HLEE

Energy Consumption 2022 2021 Changes
BEIROH 3E —Eg-= —E-—4F be)|
— Electricity Consumption (kWh) 8,922,200 9,435,158 -5%
-85 HEFE(TRLEY)
Intensity (kWh/piece) 0.33 0.47 -30%
HBE(F R 1)
— Unleaded petrol Consumption (Litres) 30,000 26,200 +15%
— E 30 HEFECT)
Consumption (kWh) Nete ) 290,741 253914 +15%
THFE (T RLBF ) e
Intensity (kWh/ 100 pieces) 1.08 1.27 -15%
BE(TRE 1008)
— Diesel Consumption (Litres) 47,450 14,200 +234%
— 5 HEFECT)
Consumption (kWh) Nete ) 507,869 151,986 +234%
THFE (T RLR )
Intensity (kWh/ 100 pieces) 1.88 0.76 +147%
BE (TR 1008)
Total Consumption (kWh) 9,720,810 9,841,058 -1%
Foy HEFE(T IR )

Note 5: Energy conversion factors used for diesel, petrol and
LPG are based on the conversion factor mentioned in
the ESG Reporting Guide.

The Group has outsourced part of its production
processes in the 2022 Reporting Period, resulting in a
slightly decrease in electricity consumption compared
to the 2021 Reporting Period. In contrast, the dramatic
increase in the fuel usage in the 2022 Reporting Period
was due to the Group had more frequent logistics

transportations across the operational plants in the PRC.

For the coming year, the Group will continue to
encourage and monitor our employees on energy saving
practices, and target to lower the energy consumption by
2-3%.
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(i)

Water Consumption

The Group does not entail a massive amount of potable
water as it is not a water-intensive industry. Water stress
is a relatively less significant threat affecting the business.
The Group had no difficulty in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose. Nonetheless, the Group has established a
water consumption reduction pathway with a long-term
perspective as a directional target. In the 2022 Reporting

Period, the water consumption remained relatively stable.

(ii)

BKkE

HRAEE W IFEERKERRT
¥ O EUEERRERMAK - AK
BAOHEBEBEROBBREER) -
AEBREGKIR LY EBDR
B o A AEBEDBIUARER
KBHABFRHEKEE - R=F
T FRERA - BKERFES

= o
SN

Year ended 3|1 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE

Water Consumption Unit 2022 2021 Changes
AXKE By —Eof T —F b=
— Zhongshan m? 230,113 237511 -3%
—H LK

— Intensity per production volume m?/pieces 0.0l 0.01 -
—-mE/EE SLTTR

The Group works diligently in implementing initiatives to
save water, including but not limited to placing reminders
near the water facilities to remind employees to conserve
water. The Group also operates a water treatment plant
and obtains a wastewater discharge license to treat
and discharge wastewater legally. The Group revamped
the wastewater treatment plant in 2018 to further
manage the increasingly stringent discharge caps set
out by the government. The Group also continues to
seek opportunities to use less water wherever feasible.
For example, condensers have been installed in each
workstation to collect steam from the injection moulding
department. The water-saving project by combining two
VOCs removal systems has been in operation in the

2021 Reporting Period.

For the coming year, the Group will continue to
encourage and monitor our employees on water saving
practices, and target to lower the energy consumption by
2-3%.
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Paper and Packaging Materials and Other Raw Materials

Consumption

The Group also acknowledges that packaging can

consume lots of resources, and thus proactively

communicates with clients and suppliers to discuss any

potentials to minimise packaging in the product design.

RR -HEgRERKRSE

(i) ARRANBEM B R H b R RERE

ARENRABETERARA
B EEE B RES R
R ARRESRH ERBRD
GER

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=+—-BHLEE

Raw Materials Consumption Unit 2022 2021 Changes
AT REHFE By —g-= —T-—%F )
— Paper boxes Tonnes 3.20 3.20 -
—®=2 L

— Intensity per production volume Tonnes/ 100 pieces Insignificant (<0.0001 tonnes/100 pieces) N/A
-mE/EE &, 1001 FE A (<0.0001 1, 1004) TiE A
— Plastics packaging material Tonnes 2,800 2,950 -5%
— BRI BEME A

— Intensity per production volume Tonnes/ 100 pieces 0.01 0.01 -
—EE/EE g, 1001F

— Others, such as fabric clippings Tonnes 112 104 +8%
— Hh (e E) T8

— Intensity per production volume Tonnes/ 100 pieces Insignificant (<0.001 tonnes/100 pieces) N/A
-BE/EE W8, 100 TEK(<0.001 5, 1004) NiE A
Total Tonnes 2,915.2 3,057.2 -5%
et M
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A3:

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group's business operations and activities do not create
significant environmental impact and hazards. As a responsible
corporation, the Group has implemented the environmental
protection policy and has complied with all national and
local environmental laws, rules and regulations, and industry
standards. The Group is committed to conserving resources
in order to reduce its impact on the environment as well as
saving operational costs. The Group cooperates with the local
government agencies and support environmental organizations’

activities to build a “green” society.

Environmental Awards

With the support of many environmental-friendly measures,
the Group proactively took part in the Cleaner Production
Partnership Programme, co-organised by the Environmental
Protection Department and the Economic and Information
Commission of Guangdong Province. The Group takes great
pride in being recognised as “Hong Kong — Guangdong
Cleaner Production Excellent Partners (Manufacturing)”. This
recognition affirmed our conscientious efforts on adopting
cleaner production technologies and practices with notable

achievements.

Awareness

Sustainability is now crucial to our daily life, our society and
even our future generation. The Group could protect the earth
by utilizing natural resources and slowing down resources’
depletion and ecosystem degradation. These all require efforts
across departments and organisations. Training sessions arranged
for employees are indispensable. An environmental consultant
is also employed to engage in monitoring and suggesting areas
for environmental improvement. The vegetarian and sustainable
seafood menu is also given to employees to choose from at
the canteen. There was no incident with significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources in the 2022 Reporting
Period.
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During the 2022 Reporting Period, freshwater, fossil fuels,
electricity and packaging materials for normal production
operation were the key elements which were considered
to have an impact on the environment. The Group has
continued to support all measures to reduce, reuse, recycle,
and replace as far as possible and practicable as laid down in
our environmental policy and measures. The Group did not
receive any warning or complaint notice from any governmental
environmental agencies, clients or business partners for the
violation of any environmental rules and regulations, the act
of polluting the environment or causing any environmental
troubles. For the coming year, the Group will continue to
achieve zero complaints and no pollution occurrences, and to
explore new avenues and means to accomplish our goals of

conserving natural resources and protecting the environment.

Climate Change

The Group has established contingent plans to deal with
extreme weather. In the event of adverse weather conditions
such as typhoon, rainstorm and heatwave, the Group would
rearrange manpower and take precautionary measures to
ensure staff safety, as well as making sure the staff can be better
protected when they commute. The Group would also refer to
the guidance of local authority and implement corresponding

measures to avoid any physical damage to property.

Greening is a part of the crucial components in building an
environmentally friendly working environment. It brings many
benefits such as serving as a buffer and sink for heavy rain,
mitigating urban heat island effect and eventually uplifting the
quality of living. Greening reserves around 30% coverage of the
Zhongshan factory, planting varies kind of vegetation and trees.
The Group also places small-sized plants to boost greening

further and improve air quality in the factory.

A4
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B.

HERERRE

SOCIAL ASPECTS

I.1

Social Areas Overview

The Group acts in an honest and transparent principle and
aims to support the building of a harmonious society and a
mutually beneficial relationship with our stakeholders including
employees, customers, suppliers, professional services providers,
local communities as well as the governing authorities. During
the formulation and implementation of our ESG strategies,
policies, rules and regulations, the Group incorporates our long
and short-term goals with consideration for our stakeholders
and society. The Group believes that our modest acts will

ultimately benefit the stakeholders and general society.

Employment and Labour Practices Aspects

Bl:  Employment

The Group recognizes that employees are the
cornerstone of business development. It motivates
the Group to build and maintain a harmonious, fair,
and safe working environment. More importantly,
the Group ceaselessly strives to enhancing our social
responsibility. The Group has established and kept an
updated employment policy based on the National
Labour Law. The Group has also been certified by ICTI
CARE Foundation, to demonstrate its commitment
to promoting safe and fair working conditions. During
the 2022 Reporting Period, there was no case of non-
compliance regarding compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, equal opportunities, diversity,

and discrimination.
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The Group adopts fair and equal employment and
recruitment procedure and prohibits any forms of
discrimination. Hence, candidates’ experiences, abilities
and the Group's business needs are criteria for shortlisting
candidates, regardless of race, gender, age, marital status,
pregnancy, family status, sexual orientation, religion,
and nationality. The remuneration package is regularly
reviewed. Successful candidates with proven track records

can enjoy promotion and salary increment.

In order to providing all newcomers with a fundamental
understanding of the Group, the Group mandates all
newcomers to attend an orientation training, covering (a)
Group's history; (b) employment terms and conditions,
welfares and benefits; and (c) adherence to the relevant
policies, systems, and procedures. All the policies are
available in the Staff Handbook for reference at any time.
The Group is a member of ICTI Ethical Toy Program
("IETP”). Therefore, the Group must also comply with
the relevant requirements set out in IETP's Code of

Business Practices.

Benefits and Welfares

The Group contributes to “Five social insurance and one
housing fund”, namely endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment injury
insurance, maternity insurance, and housing provident
fund, for the employees as required. Additionally, all
employees are entitled to various statutory holidays and
paid leave, including paternity leave and maternity leave.
Moreover, in recognition of employees’ hard work, the
Group will reward employees and benchmark employees’
salaries against industry norms to maintain a competitive
remuneration package to the talented. All employees
shall participate in the annual appraisal to review their

performance.
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Team Profile B B
As of 31 December 2022, the Group employed 1,696 R—_FE-_—F+-_HA=+—8 &K
employees in Zhongshan and Hong Kong, of which all are EFERPILLEEERERBIOEE
full-time employees. 8  Hab2A2BES -
1,500 [~
1,208
1,200
863
900 [~
600 [
300 [
0 |
Male S31% Female 22
W20 =T ==F W =ZE=—%F
Figure |: Number of Employees by Gender B - IR 6 1E S A E
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Figure 5: Number of Employees by Geographical Region

During the 2022 Reporting Period, the Group did not
have any incidents of non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare. The Group is confident to achieve

the same result for the coming year.

Employee turnover rate increased to 36% in the 2022
Reporting Period. The Group interviews every individual
to understand their reasons to resign and regularly review
the remuneration packages and the operation practices

accordingly.
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Figure 8: Employment Turnover Rate by Geographical
Region

Occupational Health and Safety (“OHS")

The Group remains very focused to health and safety.
[t is the Group's obligation to provide a safe working
environment. The Group has established a health and
safety committee, comprising the senior human resource
manager, administrative manager, safety manager,
representatives from the security and fire service
department, and a labour union. The committee’s duty is
to superintend the health and safety performance of the
Group and identify potential risks in which controls are
either absent, ineffective, or incompliant. The committee
also formulates policies to mitigate the risks if applicable.
Correspondingly, the Group regularly commissioned
third-party to audit OHS performance. In the 2022
Reporting Period, there was no non-compliance case with

regulations concerning occupational health and safety.
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Furthermore, risk assessment is conducted annually for all
working areas to identify high-risk position and potential
threats inside the working area. The Group offers
corresponding personal protective equipment. Regular
medical checks are provided to employees to ensure they
are free from any occupational illness. The Group also
schedules stress management courses for employees to
have good mental health. The Group adopts shift work
as well to reduce employees’ work stress and chemical
exposures. In addition, equipment’s contractors carry out
regular checks of the machines to test the functionality
to ensure employees are free from the threat of

equipment’s instability and malfunction.

Aside from “Five social insurance and one housing fund”,
the Group provides additional medical insurance for
extra protection. Better still, the Group has attained
the certification of OHSAS 800! to systemise the
occupational health and safety management in the
workplace. No work-related fatality happened in the past
three years including the 2022 Reporting Period, but a
total of 195 workdays were lost due to work-related
injuries in the 2022 Reporting Period. Yet the Group
offered prompt assistance to the injured or the affected.
The Group’s health and safety committee launched
investigations to examine the root cause of accidents and
implemented corrective and preventive actions to avoid

reoccurrence.

In response to COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
established a designated working group to formulate
and implement COVID-19 safety measures. All visitors
and employees must undergo temperature check
and declaration of travel history before entering the
workplace. Social-distancing and masks-on policies are in
force, and no unnecessary visit and gathering activity is
allowed. The Group also flexibly implements work-from-
home policy depending on the circumstance. On the
premises, the Group provides hand sanitisers, arranges
routine cleaning and disinfection services to minimise

cross-contamination risks.
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Development and Training B3:

Toy industry evolves with time, and the Group
understands that we have to keep up to the changes
to thrive in the market and sustain in the industry.
Consequently, each business unit together with the
human resources department stipulates a yearly training
plan, covering technical and management topics to all
employees. The Group also sponsors employees to
attend external training to acquire the latest knowledge in
the market. In the 2022 Reporting Period, all employees
took part in different training and average training hours

of employees were 32 hours.

R M IE
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2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
Percentage of employees trained ZiEEED L 99.41% 99.37%
% of employees trained by gender RUEBESZIEES
palna
Male S 38.85% 41.55%
Female gogid 61.15% 58.45%
% of employees trained by operational role REERVE S ZIE
EESL
Senior management BREBAR 0.53% 0.29%
Middle and Junior management FARRINREEAE 1.60% 0.97%
Supervisor Eses 1.78% 1.21%
General staff —fET 96.09% 97.52%
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2022 2021

—E-CHF —E-—F

Average training hours per employee BEREENTEEIEE 31.87 24.90
Average training hours completed per EMRB S NEEES

employee by gender 5E R K9 T 39 15 5| BE 2

Male EElEd 31.75 2526

Female gog 3 31.95 24.64
Average training hours completed per REEBVEINER
employee by operational role & 8 5 i 1Y 19153

R

Senior management SREBAR 9.40 436

Middle and Junior management FRRVREEBAER 23.70 12.31

Supervisor FF 48.00 48.00

General staff —RET 31.91 24.89

= [}
Others Efth 9% Environmental Protection

IRIBIRE 15%

Softskill BXFTRE 9%

Information security
BARE 7%

Occupational, health & safety

BERERLE 19%

Technical knowledge

AT 999
Bl AR 22% Company product knowledge
NRIEmMAE 19%
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The Group deems the new generation a pillar of
society and has established an internship programme.
Sophisticated and experienced seniors train up fresh
graduates so that they can be well-prepared to bring

innovation and creativity to the Group.

Labor Standards

The Group strongly believes children shall enjoy a
pleasant childhood. No child is allowed to work in the
Group. The Group performs identity checks in the
recruitment process to ensure the regulatory working
age is compliant. The Group also totally believes in the
importance of work-life balance as it links to productivity
and well-being. The Group neither encourages nor forces
employees to work overtime. Furthermore, all illegal
means such as retention of identity cards or passports,
intimidation, coercion, and undue pressure are strictly

prohibited.

Employees are entitled to statutory leave and various
kinds of paid leave, which help them take sufficient rest.
The Group is always meticulous about the production
schedule to avoid overtime work. The Group reviews
workflow carefully in the event of a significant amount of
overtime work needed. The Group will seek assistance

from relevant institutions if necessary.

Furthermore, the Group also highly appreciates
employees to participate in leisure and social activities
such as the Chinese New Year event to share warmth
and happiness among colleagues. Labour union has
been formed, and all employees preserve the right to
speak. Other than the benefits and welfares above, the
Group arranges monthly meetings with the labour union

representatives to understand employees’ points of view.

In the 2022 Reporting Period, same as the 2021
Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations relating to preventing child
and forced labour, and as such no rectification was

required.
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Supply Chain Management

The business depends heavily on suppliers’ cooperation.
Building trust and reliability is a golden rule to build up
a long-term relationship with them. As of 31 December
2022, same as the 2021 Reporting Period, the registered
suppliers of the Group consisted of 210 suppliers from
the PRC, 47 suppliers from Hong Kong, and 2 suppliers

from other countries.

Before signing a contract, the Group conducts an
assessment and sample testing to assess suppliers’ quality
standards, and achievements in environmental protection
and corporate social responsibility. The price is not the
only selection consideration, equipment level, productivity
and reputation are also taken into account. The Group
also attentively concerns a safe working environment
and an ethical business culture in the selection process.
Moreover, samples testing must pass through quality

check requirement for contract approval.

Other than that, the Group carries out an annual
assessment to review suppliers’ services quality, on-time
delivery ability, fulfilment of the tender requirements
and alignment with the Group's policies. In the 2022
Reporting Period, the Group assessed leading suppliers
and they all passed. The suppliers who are unable to
meet the requirements will be removed from the supplier

list if applicable.

The Group keeps close contact with the suppliers to
ensure the shipping date, logistics status and supplies can
match our production and delivery schedule. The Group
closely monitors the updates on local, regional, and even
international cross-border regulations from time to time

to reallocate resources at the earliest.
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C-TPAT Security Policy

The Group complies with the Customs-Trade Partnership
Against Terrorism (“C-TPAT"). In order to enjoy the
entitled benefits in return, the Group, suppliers, and
contractors are working closely to implement, as required
by C-TPAT, physical security measures, access control,
security assurance in procedures, and offering education
and training. A supply chain guarantee of C-TPAT
Security Policy is ready for suppliers and contractors.
Due to the importance of such policies and laws, the
employees responsible for import and export shall attend
training related to the relevant ordinance and regulations

at least twice a year.

Green Procurement

To uphold the responsibility to disseminate sustainability
to suppliers, the Group always strives to exploring
alternatives to use less packaging materials and fewer
plastics as much as feasible. The Group also states
specifically on tender documents to encourage suppliers
to adopt products with eco-labels or environmentally
friendly products. In the selection process, priority is given
to those awarded with an ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System certificate and an I1SO 9001 Quality
Management System certificate. Local suppliers are
also preferred to limit the environmental impact from

transportation.
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B HBREA

Bé:

wE

Product Responsibilities

The Group has been awarded with a certificate of the
IETP, indicating that the Group adheres to the ICTI Code
of Business Practices, aligning the Group's practices with
international norms in the global toy industry supply

chain.
Quality Assurance

The impacts to children from harmful and unsafe toys
can be persistent and untreatable. As a result, the Group
has established a product monitoring and inspection
procedure to standardise the quality check. In practice,
the Group attains certification of ISO 9001 Quality
Management System. This ISO standard also guides
the Group to implement a quality management system
to systematically control product quality. Although the
Group is a toy trader, it also carries out inspections and
random checks to review the quality of toys. It assures
toys strictly follow local and international safety and
advisory requirements such as CE marking, Consumer
Product Safety Commission, STM F963-Standard
Consumer Safety Specification for Toy Safety. The Group
is verified by a third-party to ensure their supply chain
security aligns with international supply-chain security

standards.

In addition, the Group has designed a clear and precise
label to identify toys and separate defective products. The
instruction manual is attached with the product to guide
consumers to properly use products. Safety alert labels
are placed at the package’s surface or containers to alert
consumers to keep toys properly, avoiding children from
mistakenly swallowing or inhaling the tiny parts that may
results in suffocation. No reported incident in product

responsibility happened in the 2022 Reporting Period.
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Given the significance of the toys' quality assurance, the
Group pays additional attention to raw materials. All
materials used in the products are entirely compliant with
the Restriction of Hazardous Substances. Providing testing
reports and certificates to prove the products’ quality and
harmlessness is a must-do item for our suppliers. The
Group randomly tests product samples, and a third-party
testing laboratory carries out inspections before mass
production. The Group operates a laboratory, which is
certified by the China National Accreditation Service, to
examine the products randomly. All validating report are
well-documented. In case of any fail reports of the toys,
the Group will immediately cease the delivery process
and recall them. Meanwhile, the Group remains active in
communicating with customers regarding the products’

quality, specifications, and testing results.

The Group exported more than 20 million products
yearly. The quality management department records
each complaint and notifies relevant departments for
investigation and coming up with improvements and

suggestions for the problem if any.

For the 2022 Reporting Period, the Group has an
approximately 70,000 pieces of sales return representing
approximately 0.26% of total production volume due to
non-quality reasons of return. The Group is proud that
there has been no material complaint or claim on its
products quality and its products have not been subject
to any investigation by government authorities on quality
or safety as well. For the coming year, the Group has the
confidence to maintain the same good track record with

its sound management control.
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Based on a customer satisfaction survey to significant
customers, covering seven aspects: productivity, samples
delivery, quality management and product quality, the
results revealed that customers were satisfied with
the Groups' productivity, and they also advised an
improvement on samples on-time delivery. Clients’
feedback is the Group's motivations to perform better,
so the Group promptly recruited more inspectors to
conduct quality checks to speed up the processing time

and keep product quality stable.

Data Privacy

The Group respects the privacy and intellectual property
rights. The Group collects data in a lawful way and solely
for recruitment or the stated purposes. The storage and
transmission of personal data must be encrypted and with
up-to-date antivirus protection to prevent data leakage
that harms clients, suppliers, individuals, or other parties
that have trusted the Group with their information.
Likewise, the data shall only be retained for a designated
period and for specified purposes. A guideline and
procedure have been established to guide every one of
the Group to properly handle personal data. The data
can be updated and corrected by the data holders at any
times in writing upon request. The Group must provide
information on how they use clients’ information in the
past 12 months upon request. Only a handful of well-
trained employees have the access right to the sensitive

data.

Under no circumstance will the Group disclose personal
data and confidential information to third parties or to

the public without clients” consent.

During the 2022 Reporting Period, same as the 2021
Reporting Period, the Group did not have any incidents
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
advertising, labelling and privacy matters. The Group also

targets the same result for the coming years ahead.
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Intellectual Property Right

The Group only sell and trades products that are
properly licensed. The Group also abides by the
copyright and patent laws of the United States as well as
other countries. The Group endeavours to communicate
with its business partners about intellectual property
rights protection and also acknowledges that laws and

regulations can protect the Group's right.

For the 2022 Reporting Period, same as the 2021
Reporting Period, the Group did not have any of any
infringement of its or any other intellectual property
rights including which had or could have a material
adverse effect on our business, and there were no legal
proceedings against the Group. The Group will continue
to maintain similar results on intellectual property rights

in the coming years ahead.

Anti-corruption

Integrity gives great importance to brand image and
performance. Rigidly laws and compliances bound the
Group on anti-corruption. The Group must obey national
and regional laws and regulations in business operation.
The code of conduct is well-defined and outlines the area
of corruption risk and procedures to handle advantages.
The Group’s attitude against corruption is stated clearly
to all employees. Any form of bribery, extortion, fraud,
and money laundering is forbidden. An internal control
system has been established to review the operation
flow and assure operation consistency. Employees can
remain anonymous to report any suspected cases to the
Group. The Group will not condone any unlawful acts or

corruption.
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B8:

Refresher training was regularly scheduled, especially
for those post-holders with a high corruption risk. The
directors and employees had, on average, two (2) training
hour on anti-corruption topic in the 2022 Reporting
Period. Anti-corruption training material will also be
delivered to all employees and directors. Same as the
2021 Reporting Period, there was no alleged case of
bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering in the
2022 Reporting Period.

Community Involvement

Business development closely connects with the
community, and it is the social responsibility of the
Group to utilise our power to assist the needy in society.
In the 2022 Reporting Period, the Group focused on
labour need and sponsored RMB5,000 in cash and food
groceries to those in financial need. The Group also
participated in voluntary community service to offer 48
hours of voluntary tree planting. Employees and their
families are welcome to participate in voluntary activities.
The Group will continue to work diligently with the

community with charities, employees, and their families.
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Biographical Details of Directors

The biographies of Directors as of 30 March 2023, being the latest

practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Deyong (“Mr. Zhao”), Chairman

Aged 60, joined the Company as an Executive Director and was appointed
as the Chairman of the Company on 16 May 2019. He is also a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhao graduated from the
Correspondence Institute of the Central Party School of C.P.C. (LR R
ERKIRERT) in December 1998, majoring in economic. Since June 2018,
Mr. Zhao has been the chairman of Fujian Zhonghe Co., Ltd. Prior to his
current position, Mr. Zhao served as a deputy director of the Industry and
Information Commission of Chifeng City (JRIETT TEFEEEILR) in the
PRC from October 2008 to September 2014.

Dr. Liao Wenjian (“Dr. Liao”)

Aged 48, joined the Company as an Executive Director and was appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 24 September 2021. He

is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

He obtained his Doctor of Philosophy, with major in public management,
at Huazhong University of Science and Technology in June 2011. Dr. Liao
has been the founder of Bluesource Capital and the chairman of Zhejiang
Bluesource Investment Management Co., Ltd* (I IERIEEEEERA
A]) since October 2021, focuses on venture capital, centralized investment,
mergers and acquisitions, and strategic management consulting. Dr. Liao also
has experience in chain management and developing integration platform on
the internet in different industries including catering, auto-parts, furniture, and
agriculture products. Prior to his current position, he was the vice general
manager of Ningbo Huajian Investment Management Co., Ltd* (B =EH
BEERERAA).

* For identification purpose only
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In August 2015, Dr. Liao was awarded “Excellent Chinese Equity and Venture
Capital Investor” in the only official equity and venture capital industry
selection filed by the National Development and Reform Commission.
He was awarded “Top Ten Leaders of Venture Capital Industry” at the
First Global Founder Conference in October 2015. In December 2017, he
was awarded the honorary title of “Top Ten Annual Leaders of Chinese
Enterprise Management” at the |4th Annual Conference of Creative Planning
in the PRC.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Shaopeng (“Mr. Lin”)

Aged 64, joined the Company as a consultant in December 2014 and a
Non-executive Director on 18 December 2017. He has been providing
advisory services to the Group's toys operation since December 2014. He is
also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin has extensive

experience in factory and logistics management in the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (“Mr. Kwok”), Chairman of the Audit Committee

and member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 51, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 7 March 2019. Mr. Kwok holds a Master of Professional Accounting
degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master of Corporate
Governance degree from Hong Kong Metropolitan University (formerly
known as the Open University of Hong Kong) and a Honours Diploma in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University (formerly known as Hong
Kong Shue Yan College). Mr. Kwok is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of each of The Hong Kong

Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

RZZB—AFN\A  BEEIRPEBERBERMNESR
BERRZTEE T EREMAIRITRES - BT
RITEESBREMBERER] - RR_FT—AF+
AEEREERAIZTAS LEFRIARITETREEA
Wl MZF—tF+-F  ERETHETHAER
FEFEELREPHECEKEEERTAFERMIKE
TSR

FHTES
MM EE(THEE D)

645% * N -E—MFE+ - AMARRREEER LR
“EEFT AT N\BHEARFRFRITES - &
BE-F-OFt - ARRAREZITAXBRHER
R - MELETABEARBRSHKMBARZES © 5L
ERPBEZBERREE T EHEEEEER

BYFYITES

BAERETBEE]D - FRZEETEULRIELZ

S o BIEIES e S
EeRFMEES KA

51  RCE-NF=ALBMAXRREEBILIE
HITESF - BEEFBEEEBIRBEESELE
i~ EEEHERBR(ARARBARMAR)ERERRE
TR RFBHCARZ(ABEEBHCER) 282
REER - HEERBEGIMAGNEREUREE

NAREAE RIS RBEEAG 288 -



Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Kwok has over 27 years of experience in the field of accounting and
financial management. Mr. Kwok served as an independent non-executive
director of E&P Global Holdings Limited (formerly known as Siberian Mining
Group Company Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1142), since February 2014 and resigned on 28 September 2022.
He has been an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Rui Yuan
Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited, a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8249), since June 2012. Prior to his
current positions, Mr. Kwok served as a financial controller, the company
secretary and one of the authorised representatives of Forebase International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:

2310).

Mr. Ng Wai Hung (“Mr. Ng”), Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and

member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 59, joined the Company as an Independent Non-Executive Director
on 21 May 2019. Mr. Ng admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong in March 1992. Mr. Ng is a practising solicitor and a partner in lu, Lai &
Li, a Hong Kong firm of solicitors and notaries. Mr. Ng practises in the areas

of securities, corporate finance and commercial law in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ng has been a non-executive director of Coolpad Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2369), since January
2018. Mr. Ng has also been serving as an independent non-executive
director of three companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely Lajin
Entertainment Network Group Limited (formerly known as China Star
Cultural Media Group Limited, stock code: 8172) since March 2015 and
Xinyi Electric Storage Holdings Limited (formerly known as Xinyi Automobile
Glass Hong Kong Enterprises Limited, stock code: 8328) since July 2016.
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In the past years, Mr. Ng served as an independent non-executive director
of Fortune Sun (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 352), GOME Retall
Holdings Limited (formerly known as GOME Electrical Appliances Holding
Limited, stock code: 493), Reliance Global Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited, stock code: 723), Trigiant Group
Limited (stock code: 1300), Kingbo Strike Limited (stock code: 1421), Tech
Pro Technology Development Limited (stock code: 3823),YTO Express
(International) Holdings Limited (formerly known as On Time Logistics
Holdings Limited, stock code: 6123) and 1957 & Co. (Hospitality) Limited
(stock code: 8495) (all being companies listed on the Stock Exchange) and
resigned in September 2017, May 2017, December 2017, August 2017, June
2017, March 2017, December 2017 and August 2022, respectively.

Mr. Zhao Yong (“Mr. Zhao”), Chairman of the Nomination Committee and

member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 39, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 10 September 2021. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor's degree in law from
Zhejiang University in July 2006 and a master agree in law (American Legal
Studies) from Thomas Jefferson School of Law in December 2009. Mr. Zhao
is qualified to practice law in the PRC and has been working at DeHeng Law
Offices (Hangzhou) as an attorney at law since April 2018.
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The Directors hereby present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company and an indication of
likely future development in the Company's business, can be found in the
Chairman's Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 6 to 12 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this

Report of the Directors.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 81.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 212.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
and details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 3| to the

consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserve available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 981
of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company, amounted to HK$nil (2021:
HK$nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-
laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately HK$825 million of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately
88.4%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately HK$137.5 million of the total purchases for the year and

purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 27.4%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in

the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhao Deyong
Dr. Liao Wenjian
Mr. Wong Kui Fai (resigned on 18 March 2022)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Lin Shaopeng

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Ng Wai Hung
Mr. Zhao Yong
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no updated information of directors of the Company required to

be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(l) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ and the chief executive's remuneration are set out

in note || to the consolidated financial statements.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and other officers of the Company

during the year.

DIRECTORS” AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed "MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS” disclosure in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or the controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of each of the directors or the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

None of the directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed "DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES” at no time during the year ended 31 December 2022
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such

rights during the year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS REZFHSRBEMRFETFHREZRREZR KR
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
As at 31 December 2022, the following interests of more than 5% of WRIZE__F+_HA=+—H RARAREZFL
the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of HIEIKHIEI6IEBIFE 2 RS CMATEEEE » HAXR
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of A T2 EE/TIRASSI A FHEZSZ A0 -
the SFO:
Long positions in the shares of the Company REQXTRGBZER
Approximate
percentage
of the
Company’s
Capacity and Personal Corporate Number of  issued share
Name of shareholder nature of interest interest interest shares held capital
(Note 3)
B F]
BE CORIRE
REEH BORERMTE BA R AR R ROBE BHBEIL
(BI&E3)
China Strategic Holdings Limited (“CSH") Interest of controlled - 65,199,547 65,199,547 17.80%
corporation (Note I, 4)
FEEEAGRAR(HE] RREHERE 2 B - 65,199,547 65,199,547 17.80%
(B&E14)
Mr. Ji Xiang (“Mr. Ji*) Interest of controlled - 49,697,600 49,697,600 13.57%
corporation (Note 2, 4)
aEERE(ELRED REIRHER 2 s — 49,697,600 49,697,600 13.57%
(PBifaE2.4)
Mr. Shen Jia (“Mr. Shen") Beneficial owner 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 10.92%
(Note 4)
RERAE(IEEED BERmBEAA 40,000,000 — 40,000,000 10.92%
(BfaE4)
Notes: Kt -
CSH had an indirect interest in the Company through its 100% indirect PREBNEBEE(FE)AR QT2 100%EERER
ownership in U Credit (HK) Limited, which had security interest in 651,995,472 ARARFAREELD - ZAARAARRF651,9954720%
shares of the Company. U Credit (HK) Limited had enforced the security PR E) IR e o B Ef(%f}%)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ/\\\r\?
interest in 651,995,472 shares on 4 July 2019. + A0 H R HIE11T651,995 4728 B tn By RS -
2. 496,976,000 shares were held by Excel Jade Limited, which was owned as to 2. 496,976,000% 1% 15 F3 Excel Jade LimitedF§ 8  ZARIH
100% by Mr. Ji. Accordingly, Mr. Ji was deemed to be interested in 496,976,000 FEAE] OQ%%% At - T)?ﬁmﬁ&ﬁﬁiézﬂ%u\: Eb
shares of the Company under the SFO. EHEBRAR R 24969760000 i 15 AR o
3. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,661,864,729 3. BRASWIBRER-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HA2Z4XR
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2021. A]3,661,864,7290% B BT TRR D FTE ©
4. On 28 November 2022, the Company completed a share consolidation of 4. fﬁgog%
every ten (10) issued shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital of the 17 @é
Company into one (I) consolidated share ofHK$1.00 each with effect from et
30 November 2022. The effect of the number of shares will be divided by 10 2
issued shares and no effect on the percentage of the Company’s issued share MBS

capital.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF




Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of other
relevant interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as at 3| December 2022 as required pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company's issued shares at the date of

the annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with laws and
regulations and any non-compliance may bring significant impact on the
Group’s operations. The Group’s products are exported globally and the
major markets include the USA, the European union, Japan and the PRC.
The Group complied with those importing requirements, including product
safety and material selections, imposed by these importing countries.
Compliance with the PRC regulations are also essential to the Group
manufacturing operations in the PRC. The Group is continuously monitoring

the evolving regulations and ensure its compliance.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its immediate and long-
term business goals. During the year ended 3| December 2022, there were
no material and significant dispute between the Group and its employees,

customers and suppliers.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed [,696 employees (2021:
2,468) with staff costs amounted to approximately HK$126.8 million (2021:
approximately HK$136.2 million). Remuneration policies are reviewed
annually by the management of the Company. The Group's remuneration
policy is structured to consider comparable position in the market and the

prevailing business scale of the Group.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Referring to the Company’s announcement on 4 October 2022 and 16
December 2022, the Company entered into the CB Subscription Agreements
with each of the Subscribers. Up to the date of the announcement, the
issuance of convertible bonds has not been completed. Save as above,
subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, the
Board is not aware of any significant event affecting the Group and requiring

disclosure.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group encourages environmental protection and is committed to fulfil
its environmental, social and corporate responsibilities. Various investments
in optimizing energy use and paper use were made and will be made.
Measures were made to prevent or minimize pollutions and provide a safe
and healthy working environment. The Group continues to review the latest
technology and the best practices in the industry for adoption to address the

environmental, social and corporate responsibilities.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2021 were audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were audited by

Confucius International CPA Limited.

A resolution to re-appoint Confucius International CPA Limited as auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
On behalf of the Board

Zhao Deyong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices at all times. The Board believes that good corporate
governance helps the Company to safeguard the interests of its shareholders

and to enhance the performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
had complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate

Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been made with
the Directors and they have confirmed their compliance with the Own Code
and the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management and control of the Group’s business are vested in
the Board. The Board is responsible for establishing policies, strategies and
plans, providing leadership in creating value and overseeing the Group's

financial performance on behalf of shareholders of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant financial

and operational matters.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group
are delegated to the executive director and senior management of the
Company. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the executive
director and senior management of the Company have to obtain Board

approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six Directors,
including two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhao Deyong (Chairman) and
Dr. Liao Wenjian; one Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Shaopeng;
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwok Kim
Hung Eddie, Mr. Ng Wai Hung and Mr. Zhao Yong. The Company has
received from each of the Independent Non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules. Biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS” on pages 5|
to 54 of this annual report.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
to each newly appointed director on his/her first appointment in order
to enable him/her to have appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory

requirements.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors
are continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical updates,
including the briefing on the amendments on the Listing Rules and the news
release published by the Stock Exchange to the directors. Continuing briefing

and professional development for directors are arranged where necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the year ended 31 December 2022, thirty nine regular full Board
meetings and two general meeting were held and the attendance of each

director is set out as follows:

CRERBRE

RBE_Z__F+_A=+—HILFER &
ZHAREREBEFEERIMARRAE - M
RESZHFELENT

oo

Number of attendance

HEIRE
Board Meetings General Meetings

Name of directors EEgE EZgel BRERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhao Deyong B A 37137 2/2
Dr. Liao Wenjian (appointed on 24 September 2021) BN SIIEL(R=_F=—4F 36/36 212

NA =+ HEEE)
Mr. Wong Kui Fai (appointed on 24 September 2021 =SB EE(R=ZF=Z—FNLA=+HH N/A i A N/A i A

and resigned on |18 March 2022) BZERR-_FE-_—F=A+/1H

BHE)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lin Shaopeng MBS A& 36/36 12
Independent Non-executive Directors BAEHITES
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie RIS A 39/39 2/2
Mr. Ng Wai Hung REWEE 38/39 112
Mr. Zhao Yong (appointed on 10 September 2021)  HBEE(R=ZF-—FNA+HEZT) 39/39 212

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

There are two key aspects of the management of the Company — the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group's
business. The Company supports that there should be a clear division of
these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one individual. Currently,
Mr. Zhao Deyong, the Chairman of the Board and the Executive Director of
the Company, takes up the responsibility of the management of the Board.
Dr. Liao Wenjian, the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's

business.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director is appointed for a term of twelve-month period which automatically
renews for successive twelve-month periods unless terminated by either
party in writing prior to the expiry of the term. The Non-executive
Directors and all the Independent Non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three years
at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of reference as set
out in the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, Mr. Ng Wai Hung and Mr. Zhao Yong. Mr. Ng

Wai Hung is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company's remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company as well as market practice and conditions. The full terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s

website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. Pursuant to the
amendments to Chapter |7 of the Listing Rules which will come into effect
on | January 2023, the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee

were adopted, amended and approved by the Board on 30 December 2022.
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The Remuneration Committee met three times during the year ended 31
December 2022 to review the remuneration packages for directors. The

attendance of each member is set out as follows:

TRELA®RE

REEZZ
BEERIT-REH  CCLRNEZFZHHESE -
BB Z HELEMT

Number of attendance

Name of member REEBE R
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie RIS A 3/3
Mr. Ng Wai Hung REHEE 3/3
Mr. Zhao Yong HBEE 3/3

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of reference as set
out in the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, Mr. Ng Wai Hung and Mr. Zhao Yong. Mr. Zhao

Yong is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of directors, evaluation of board
composition, assessment of the independence of independent non-executive
directors and the management of the Board succession. The full terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available on Company's website

and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Nomination Committee met two times during the year ended 31 REZE-ZE-_—_F+_A=1+—HIEFER  REZZX
December 2022 to review the appointment of the directors, the structure, EeYRBITRAICE T2 RTEFES EFC
size and composition of the Board. The attendance of each member is set > za « A BRARK - SR E 2 HELENOT :
out as follows:

Number of attendance
Name of member REARE R
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie R4 212
Mr. Ng Wai Hung RIEEWHTSE 2/2
Mr. Zhao Yong HBLE 212
The Board had adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in September ZERE®ER T =FNARNEZEFFHNEZTILHE
2013 and amended by resolutions of the Board passed on 21 October SR([FZBER ) MZBRERE-—SE—LFE+A-_+—
2019 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All HiE@rEEeRZEZMSE] >  ehEEEe AE

Board appointments shall be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the Policy
and will from time to time review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the

effectiveness of the Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference as set out in
the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwok
Kim Hung Eddie, Mr. Ng Wai Hung and Mr. Zhao Yong. Mr. Kwok Kim
Hung Eddie is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the financial
information and reports of the Group and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or external
auditor before submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with and
the terms of appointment of the external auditor and making the relevant
recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the Group’s financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system. The Audit
Committee is also delegated the corporate governance function of the Board
to monitor, procure and manage corporate governance compliance within
the Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

HEKEZ MRz T - ERGREZEEY

IARAMES BRA - AWEEE AR HTL/\% TEREE
EREZTTzBm ABRER - NEBIZ—F
51 Z T L gils mELE - a%@?\ﬁﬁﬁé’l&%%ﬂ CFiER X

EERBEES Bk - HEELR - XL WEERS
8 - KRB ABNRERAIREFSRHEZER
MERTE - REZESERERZBRONT - LD
B E R RIE R RABUR - ARERZIRITZ B o

Byt XeERTAMBzSEE@mE
cRAREAY  BERZESRE=ZRBIIFNT
EEMRMLELE  REHBLRERBERE - BRIME
ERERREGZER -

EVZBE 2T EREATHAKRENYBEER KK
T URAREN SR B E RINEREEN R 2
EREASEFHBERESRREAMNELZE &
ATESNE B c AR AR BERE MEESRM

HEEE RN AREZMBRESE - AR
HERRBRERGE BEZZESTCERTESS
ZBEERBE AR  REREEAKREAZE

XEREMBE  ERZECHEGE 22 XTHRN
PN/ ) SR TR SR i)



Corporate Governance Report

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 3| December

2022 and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

CRERBRE

REZE_ZT__F+_A=T—BILEFER ' EZZ
BeRRTHAGH SKBZHFELENT

Number of attendance

Name of member MEERB R E
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie DRI 4/4
Mr. Ng Wai Hung RIEEHTE 4/4
Mr. Zhao Yong HMELA 4/4

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee

during the year ended 3| December 2022:

Reviewed and approved the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the Company’s auditor; and reviewed and made recommendations

to the Board on the appointment of the Company’s auditor;

2. reviewed and discussed the Group’s management accounts; and

3. adoption of internal control review report in order to assess the

internal control system of the Group.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 3| December 2022, the auditors of the Company

provided audit and non-audit services to the Company and the Group.

The auditor's remuneration payable to Confucius International CPA Limited,
a new auditor was appointed in 8 December 2022, in relation to audit and
non-audit services for the year ended 3| December 2022 amounted to
HK$ 1,680,000 and Nil respectively.

The auditor's remuneration payable to Moore Stephens CPA Limited, the
predecessor auditor in relation to audit and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$1,800,000 and HK$ 150,000

respectively.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’'s Report on pages 77 to 80.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements of the Company for each financial period with a true and fair
presentation of the financial position of the Group. The Company’s financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
and the related interpretations, adjustments and estimates made are prudent
and reasonable and the financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The Directors are aware of conditions indicating the existence
of material uncertainty related to going concern, and are of the view that
the Group will continue as a going concern for the reasons stated as set
out in the paragraph “The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
basis” under “Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Significant Accounting Policies” on pages 90 to 92 of this report. The
statement made by the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the section

headed “Independent Auditor's Report” of this annual report.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Pursuant to the Code Provision D.|.3, the Board would like to provide more
details on the Disclaimer of Opinion regarding the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern.

As mentioned in the subsection headed "DETAILS OF AUDIT
QUALIFICATION AND RESPONSE FROM THE COMPANY"" in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Auditor has issued a
Disclaimer of Opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 2022, which arising solely from going

concern issue of the Group.

The net liabilities and net current liabilities of the Group was mainly
attributable to number of reasons, such as high administration expenses,
high-interest financial borrowings of the Group, significant impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment and changes in fair value of investment

properties.
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The loan borrowings and its interest are still high and this is not easy to
solve, as to obtain low-interest loans from banker are less possible based
on the current financial figures. Therefore, the management of the Group
is trying their best to obtain other financings for other financial institutions,
individuals and potential investors, once concrete proposals or terms are
reached, further announcement (if applicable) will be published as soon as
possible. In addition, the management of the Group s striving to seek more
profitable businesses to increase the Group’s overall revenue and profit to
improve the performance of the Group, and to diversify and expand the

Group's businesses to solve the problem of business concentration.

The management of the Group is optimistic and confident that the Company
has sufficient working capital for the next twelve months because the
following considerations in addition to the view that Various Measures have
been and/or will be taken to improve the Group's results, working capital

and cashflow:

completing the two Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreements
which the company entered with each of the subscribers, pursuant to
which the relevant subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue the convertible
bonds in an aggregate principal amounts of up to HK$22,500,000
and HK$14,000,000 respectively based on the initial conversion price
of HK$0.25 and HK$0.22 per conversion share respectively on 14
October 2022 and 16 December 2022, the completion of the two
Convertible Bonds Subscription will be expected to be taken place on
or before 30 June 2023;

2. extending the repayment terms and the expiry date of the Group'’s
banking facilities by entering into extension agreement with the lender
after the end of the reporting period but before the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue. The expiry date of the
banking facilities of RMBI141,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$157,842,000), of which RMBI00,301,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$112,281,000) was utilised as of 31 December
2022, secured by the Group's leasehold buildings and leasehold lands
under right-of-use assets due on 9 March 2023 has been extended
to 16 March 2024 with the limit of banking facilities revised to
RMB 160,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$179,111,000);

3. active cost-saving measures to control operating costs and
administrative costs through various means has been implemented
to improve operating cash flows at a level sufficient to finance the

working capital requirements of the Group; and
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4. considering other financing arrangements, if necessary, with a view to

increasing the Group's equity and liquidity.

The Audit Committee had critically reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion, the
Management’s position concerning the Disclaimer of Opinion and measures
taken by the Group for addressing the Disclaimer of Opinion. The Audit
Committee agreed with the Management’s position based on the reasons as
stated herein. Moreover, the Audit Committee requested the Management
to take all necessary actions to address the impact of the Disclaimer of
Opinion and to strive that such situation leading to the Disclaimer of
Opinion would not happen or be improved in the coming future. The Audit
Committee had also discussed with the Auditor regarding the financial
position of the Group, measures taken and to be taken by the Group, and
considered the Auditor's rationale and understood their consideration in

arriving their opinion.

The Board is of the view that the Proposed Measures are feasible and should
be sufficient to address the Disclaimer of Opinion. Taking into account that
if the Group is able to improve the Group's working capital, cash flow and
financial position in 2023, and assuming there are no other material adverse
effects that will cause the Auditor to issue other disclaimer(s) of opinion,
the Board expects that the Disclaimer of Opinion may be removed in the
next year's auditor’s report, or at least the financial position will be greatly

improved. The Auditor also holds the same view and basis in this regard.

The annual results of the Group for the Reporting Period have also been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In order to establish the duties and responsibilities of the Board in
performing its corporate governance functions, the Board has delegated
certain corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee, which
include (i) developing and reviewing policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and directors;
and (v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibilities for maintaining an adequate system
of internal control to safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders’
interests. An internal control system, including a defined management
structure with limits of authority, is designed to help achieving business
objectives, safeguarding assets against unauthorised use, and maintaining
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use and for publication. The internal control system is set up to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
of financial statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's

objectives.

The Group has a positive attitude to internal controls improvements.
For the purpose of strengthening its existing internal control system, the
Company has appointed an independent professional firm to perform a
review of the Group’s selected internal control cycles during the year ended
31 December 2022. The internal control review report has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee. The Group is considering the recommendations
on the deficiencies identified by the independent professional firm and the
recommendations will be followed up on a regular basis and discussed with

the Audit Committee.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy on 30 December 2022. It provides
employees and the relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) with guidance and reporting
channels on reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters related to

the Group directly addressed to the designated person.

An email account (faithlam@winshine.com) has been set up for this purpose.
All reported matters will be investigated independently and, in the meantime,
all information received from a whistleblower and its identity will be kept
confidential. The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the

Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.
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ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy on 30 December
2022. It outlines guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption and anti-
bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group
defend against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected
case of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management
or through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would not tolerate
all forms of fraud and corruption among all employees and those acting in
an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its business
dealing with third parties. The Board and the Audit Committee will review
the Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy and mechanism periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of fraud and

corruption.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Liu Ze Kui, Alex (“Mr. Liu") was resigned as the Company Secretary
and Mr. Wong Chi Kong (“Mr. Wong") was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 31 January 2022. Subsequently, Mr. Wong resigned as the
Company Secretary and Mr. Lam Koon Fai (“Mr. Lam”) was appointed as
the Company Secretary on |9 May 2022. Mr. Lam is a full time employee of
the Company who has day-to-day knowledge of the Company. Mr. Lam has
taken no less than |5 hours of the relevant professional training during the

year ended 3| December 2022.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

R ERRE R I 8 B R

BRECEE AT ZEMTRGXEDLIE  EF
ERE__HF+_A=+THERM-ERIFRRE
BUBBSR o R BB SR AR T 7 R [ 88 B e S i i O 22 R %
RIETRTE  MBERERER - WRETEFK
FoEPAKERENBEBRTAMNAEEEIEREE
BRRBV|REMEEEERNAFRBHEEMHE
MEBEENEE - AKEBTETBEMET ~ UK
BHREAGORRARBETENOAL - AREESE
=BT RIS E AR B A T AR A ERRE B BT
o RERZEREEHNERE - WEEBREEE
EPy - Bl RERAT R ANRFERBRITR
THFGE  EEENRERZEEHEHEEZREK
FER R R R B o

DREAME

R-ZT-—F—A=+—8 2R EETHEED
BEARRZATIWE r B8 IRE(EEEDES
FAARRZARME - £ RZTE-Z_FH A+
B BEEBRTAQRZAAME  HMEBEE
(IMEENEZEREARB 2 ABIME - MEERBAE
ARAIZHEES - AFARBMABEER - MEERE
BECER ST A=+T—RIEFEREZTLRIS
N RIAERE R -



Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders, can

request the Company in writing to:

(a)  give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may

properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;

(b)  circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to have notice of
any general meeting send to them any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any

proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or

not less than one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

director of the Company

According to bye-law 88 of the Company's Bye-laws, no person other
than a director retiring at the general meeting of the Company shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the
office of director at any general meeting of the Company unless a notice in
writing of the intention to propose such person for election as a director,
signed by a shareholder of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed for election as a director) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting of the Company for which such notice is given, and a
notice in writing signed by such person of his/her willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the Company's head office in Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and the period for lodgement of such
notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later

than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns in writing
to the Company Secretary of the Company at the Company’s head office in
Hong Kong at Room 1002, 10th Floor, 299 QRC, 287-299 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. These include
the annual general meeting, the annual and interim reports, constitutional
documents, notices, announcements and circulars and the Company's
website at www.winshine.com and www.tricor.com.hk/webservice/000209.

Information on the Company’s website will be updated from time to time.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SAN-CHINA

Confucius International

B ZBE R E

RIBEBREGHENFEBAARSTT sxeum

CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Winshine
Science Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 211, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

As explained in note 3.| to the consolidated financial statements, as at 31
December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$192,768,000 and HK$89,648,000, respectively, and the
Group's bank balances amounted to approximately HK$49,765,000, in contrast
to its borrowings of approximately HK$190,943,000, which are repayable within
the next twelve months. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a

going concem.

ERTFELHELSIS AEAEL501-08%
Rooms 1501-08,15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,
181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
FEiE Tel: (852) 3103 6980

f£H Fax: (852) 3104 0170
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The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review of the cash
flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months from the date of this
report and have undertaken a number of measures to improve the Group's
liquidity and financial position which are set out in note 3.1 to the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis on the bases and assumption that the lenders have
no current intention to exercise their right to demand immediate repayment
of the borrowings, the validity of which depends on the outcome of the
measures which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) the successful
completion of the issuance for two convertible bonds; (ii) the successful
negotiations with the lenders for further renewal of or extension for repayment
of those borrowings which will mature after twelve months from the end of the
reporting period; (iii) the successful cost saving measures to improve operating
cash flows of the Group; and (iv) successfully obtaining of additional new sources

of financing as and when needed.

Should the Group fail to achieve the intended effects resulting from the plans
and measures as mentioned in the note 3.I to the consolidated financial
statements, it might not be able to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying amounts of the Group's
assets to their net realisable amounts, and to provide for any further liabilities
that may arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments

have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the going concemn basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements has been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. Up to the date of our report, no agreement or information or
indication of the lender’s current intention for the further renewal of or
extension for repayment of those outstanding corporate bonds and term loans
is available. In this circumstance, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence in relation to the adoption of the going concern basis in

preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA™) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™)
issued by HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely
to you, as a body in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. However,
because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial

statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ho Pak Tat

Practising Certificate Number: PO5215
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A 42
melEaER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-ZT-_F+-A=+-HLEE

2022 2021
—EB-—F T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt THET THET
Revenue WA 5 849,096 724,627
Cost of sales SHERAR (751,213) (687,370)
Gross profit EF 97,883 37257
Other income, gains and losses HaUWA - e k&SR 6 8217 (10,475)
Reversal (provision) of expected credit loss FEWE Rz EEIE B B8 E ()
for loan receivables 7 400 (1,886)
Provision of expected credit loss for loan FEREFFE 2 B EEEEBRE
interest receivables 7 - 217)
Reversal (provision) of expected credit loss  fEUNE FFIEZ FEHEEEBER
for trade receivables (B 7 8,181 (9.453)
Provision of expected credit loss for HinEWRIE 2 BRI E BB B RE
other receivables 7 (29,067) -
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - BE KR ERERE
equipment - (30,704)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEE ZRE/BE - (3,140)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z Y 36 29,906 -
Selling and distribution costs SHE Mo SRR (7,557) (5,710)
Administrative expenses TR (64,417) (66,966)
Changes in fair value of financial assets at BRARBEFABRZSREEZ
fair value through profit or loss NREEE = 100
Other operating expenses HAbe g R (17,426) (22,600)
Finance costs A& R A 8 (14,351) (16,079)
Profit (loss) before tax BRBLADR A (B518) 11,769 (129.873)
Income tax expense FRGHF > 9 (3,690) (6,142)
Profit (loss) for the year REEEF(EHR) 10 8,079 (136,015)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the  ZXA B]#EH A AR ARFEER (FR)
owners of the Company 8,079 (136,015)
(Restated)
€ =¢7)

Earnings (loss) per share BREF (FE) 14
Basic and diluted HAR G #E HK2.21 cents (HK37.14 cents)
2215384l (37.147%84L)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REESERHEMEEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

2022 2021
—EB-—F T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt THET THET
Profit (loss) for the year AEERR(ER) 8,079 (136,015)
Other comprehensive income (expense) HttzmEkE(BEX)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or TEEIAEmIEE -
loss:
Gain (Loss) on revaluation of properties 2 E (s (B 1E) 11,350 (4,427)
Deferred tax charge arising from VEEMEE ZBEERIES D
revaluation of properties 30 (463) (723)
10,887 (5,150)
ltems that may be/have been reclassified a ERAEEIAERZER -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ IAE GINEFSEFEE 2B X =58
foreign operations (16,821) 4,322
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal I F BB A R 1& AR BREE
of subsidiaries 7,149 -
(9,672) 4322
Other comprehensive income (expense) AFEEHME2ERE(BX)
for the year 1,215 (828)
Total comprehensive income (expense) REERHEKE (X)) EEE
for the year 9,294 (136,843)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AARER ARG FER2ERS
for the year attributable to (B %%
the owners of the Company 9,294 (136,843)

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

At 3| December 2022
RZZ-—f+-A=+—-H

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mtat FERT FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI -~ BB R E 15 114,817 106,673
Right-of-use assets FREEE l6 7,119 14,190
Investment properties REWE 17 = 44,276
Rental deposit Heke 22 414 309
Interests in associates B A R E R 19 - -
122,350 165,448
Current assets REEE
Inventories PR 20 81,974 | 13,864
Trade receivables FEWE 5518 21 71,503 134,162
Loan receivables FEUE R 18 - -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ TEfFRIE - & K E M FEUGIE 22 15,354 15,603
Pledged bank deposits BHEBRITIER 23 - 1,190
Bank balances and cash RITEBNIE S 23 49,765 66,634
218,59 331,453
Assets classified as held for sale DHEAEFELEZEE 24 - 53,447
218,59 384,900
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables FERTE 5708 25 137,111 254,353
Other payables and accruals Ht e RRIE R B A 26 71,895 83,385
Contract liabilities BHAIE 27 1,544 2954
Borrowings B 28 190,943 263,567
Lease liabilities HERIE 29 1,969 4,769
Tax payables R TE 7,902 2,931
411,364 611,959
Liabilities associated with assets classified as P EEAFFHELEEEREEE
held for sale 24 - 5,380
411,364 617,339
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

At 31 December 2022
R-F-—&#+-A=+-H

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mzt FTER FAET
Net current liabilities RENEEFE (192,768) (232/439)
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERREBAR (70,418) (66,991)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 29 2,819 8285
Deferred tax liabilities BERIAR B 30 16,411 23,666
19,230 31951
Net liabilities BEFE (89,648) (98942)
Capital and reserves R &
Share capital &N 31 3,662 366,186
Deficit At (93,310) (465,128)
Capital deficiencies BEAREH (89,648) (98,942)
The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 21| were approved and R FESIE2| I B BHEEN T -_=F=A4

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023 and are signed

on its behalf by:

ZHAO Deyong
HHEK
Executive Director

#iTEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
REERBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Hz

Attributable to owners of the Company

—E--F+-A=t+-BHLEE

ERRHEEAES
Issued Asset Statutory Exchange (Capital
share Share  revaluation reserve fluctuation Accumulated deficiencies)/
capital premium reserve fund reserve losses  total equity
(&%
BT Bt BE EE Ei B4,/
LTS wE EfRE REEE  RBRE RAER  ESEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TR THRL THRL THET THET
(Note)
(W)
At | January 2021 RZEZ—F-F—H 366,186 942,400 56,980 I1,744 28940 (1368349) 37901
Loss for the year AEEEHE - - - - — (136015 (136015)
Other comprehensive income AEFEM2EKEF)

(expense) for the year - - (5,150) - 4322 - (828)
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENE (%) 8%

(expense) for the year - - (5,150 - 4322 (136,015) (136,843)
Revaluation reserve realised B EhRE - - (2.279) - - 2279 -
At 31 December 2021 —$+ZA=1—H 366,186 942,400 49,551 I1,744 33262 (1,502,085) (98942)
Profit for the year KEFEM - - - - - 8,079 8,079
Other comprehensive income AEFAMZEME (FX)

(expense) for the year = = 10,887 = (9,672) - 1,215
Total comprehensive income AEE2EYE (%) BE

(expense) for the year = = 10,887 = (9,672) 8,079 9,294
Revaluation reserve realised B8 7 BHREE = = (2,755) = = 2,755 =
Share reduction R BIR (362,524) - = = = 362,524 =
Cancellation of share premium ~ FE3HIR (DR (E = (942,400) = = = 942,400 =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR - - 4 - () -
Appropriation to BRZETHERS

statutory reserve fund = = = 2,570 = (2,570) -
At 31 December 2022 WIZZZF+-A=+—H 3,662 = 57,684 14318 23,590 (188,902) (89,648)
Note:  The Group's subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") are  fifz3 - AR&E@ 2 hE ARENMB([HE B ARAZ LY

required to allocate at least 10% of net profit according to their PRC audited
financial statements to a statutory reserve fund until the balance of such reserve
has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. Any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making up losses or for
capitalisation into share capital, provided that the remaining balance is not less than
20% of the registered capital of the entity after such capitalisation.

ﬁmfﬂﬂli«?%ﬁﬂﬁ%iﬁzémﬁu\0%’7}
HEEHEINBR T‘EH%EZM’J
50% 4 1E o ZANA B AR A ] SR IME K

BEL  H

7

1%%% —JEHEA WEEE
EITRRBANLRNAREREMEAR20% °

AR

e 20K 5F
o SETERE

HERE B - R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
izt THER TET
Operating activities REER
Profit (loss) before tax BRBE AR (5 1R) 1,769 (129.873)
Adjustments for: YET 5 30%
Finance costs BB A 14,351 16,079
Interest income FISWA 6 (48) (117)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - WERRETE I5 6,180 12,678
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE l6 4,067 5206
Realised gain on fair value of financial assets at fair ?ﬁﬁﬁ STARGZEREEZ AREY
value through profitorloss —— BF 3ol - (100)
Loss on fair value changes of investment properties &,5\17!%2@5? ) o 6 = 15986
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BE K&E2 W 6 (519) (65)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment nE - BERREONEEBE = 30,704
Impairment loss on right-of-use asset PREAE AEER - 3,140
Impairment loss on interests in associates BMENFER REBE 6 10,000 -
(Reversal) provision of expected credit loss for loan FEREN 2 BAEEEE (80 AR
receivables 7 (400) 1,886
Provision of expected credit loss for loan interest EWERNE 2 BEREERRE
receivables 7 - 217
(Reversal) provision of expected credit loss for trade FEWE 5B BRIEEEE(8E)&E
receivables 7 (8,181) 9453
Provision of expected credit loss for other receivable HinEUGIER R BB ERE 7 29,067 -
Gain on termination of a lease agreement HE R 6 (1,321) -
Loss on early on termination of lease classified as RALIEDERRENENHE 2 BE
investment property 6 4,702 -
Gain on disposal of investments in subsidiaries HEME DR E 2 e 36 (29,906) -
Write down of inventories, net WREFE - FHE 11,882 26091
Effect of unrealised foreign exchange rate changes AEBERLEH 2 (2,057) 3,639
Operating cash flows before movements in working EEELHDAICLERERE
capital 49,586 (5076)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERP(EM) 10,725 (43,798)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables R SER D (38 10) 70,840 (87:831)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, deposits and other AR * & REMBKFUER D (L)
receivables 6,190 (6,801)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables ERE 5B ORI (105,470) 108,381
Increase in other payables and accruals Hith BT FUE R B AL 8,703 18,707
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities BHBECRD)EM (1,410) 1,254
Cash generated from (used in) operations LEMS(FRA)RS 36,164 (15,164)
Income tax paid BERAEHR (4,090) -
Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities K& EMHE(FTH)RETFE 35,074 (15,164)

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

2022 2021
—B-CF ZTF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
izt TET TR
Investing activities REEH
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through ~ HERAREF AER EHBE B
profit or loss oI = 1,861
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BREKF 15 (9,810) (9,541)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE - BERFELRERE 3,739 135
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HENBLARZEERATFE 36 43292 -
Deposit received for disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZBYES = 28492
Receipts of loan receivables Y E S TEBIR 400 -
Interest received BIHE 48 17
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REEERRTER 1,190 3463
Placement of pledged bank deposits BREERFITER - (1,190)
Net cash generated from investing activities RETBMERLTE 38,859 23337
Financing activities RMETH
Proceeds from borrowings BERFiEE0E 538,481 541,729
Repayment of borrowings BRER (598,357) (515,759)
Interest paid ERME (14,351) (17,700)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREARE (3,432) (5965)
Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities BMETB(FTR)AERESFE (77,659) 2,305
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBESENMRD ) BEE (3,726) 10,478
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year RENZESRBLEEY 66,634 56,142
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Ex2nryE (13,143) 1,186
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, represented RELZRERBLEEYN KRBT
by bank balances and cash HERREE 49,765 67,806
Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents REeRRLEENEBRIN
Bank balance and cash RITEHBER 49,765 66,634
Bank balance and cash included in assets classified as held SADEABELEEEY
for sale FITERERAS - 1,172
49,765 67,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section to the
annual report. The Company's shares are listed on The Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group's annual period beginning on | January 2022 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions beyond 30 June 202 |
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —

Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts —

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS |6

Amendments to HKAS |

Amendments to HKAS

| and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 2

Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

Disclosure of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other

new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

Effective a date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024.

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern basis

The Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing its consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December
2022, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$192,768,000 and HK$89,648,000 respectively.
The Group's bank balances and cash amounted to approximately
HK$49,765,000 in contrast to its borrowings of approximately
HK$190,943,000 which are repayable within the next twelve

months as disclosed in notes 28.

These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of

its business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern basis (Continued)

In order to improve the Group's financial position, the directors

of the Company have been implementing various measures as

follows:

completing the two Convertible Bonds Subscription
Agreements which the company entered with each of the
subscribers, pursuant to which the relevant subscribers have
conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue the convertible bonds in an
aggregate principal amounts of up to HK$22,500,000 and
HK$ 14,000,000 respectively based on the initial conversion
price of HK$0.25 and HK$0.22 per conversion share
respectively on 14 October 2022 and |6 December 2022;

extending the repayment terms and the expiry date of
the Group’s banking facilities by entering into extension
agreement with the lender after the end of the reporting
period but before the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue. The expiry date of the banking
facilities of RMB141,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$157,842,000), of which RMBI00,301,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$112,281,000) was utilised as of 31
December 2022, secured by the Group'’s leasehold buildings
and leasehold lands under right-of-use assets due on 9
March 2023 has been extended to |6 March 2024 with
the limit of banking facilities revised to RMB160,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$179,111,000);

active cost-saving measures to control operating costs
and administrative costs through various means has been
implemented to improve operating cash flows at a level
sufficient to finance the working capital requirements of the

Group; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-__F+-A=+-HALEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern basis (Continued)

V. considering other financing arrangements, if necessary, with a

view to increasing the Group’s equity and liquidity.

On the basis of the above considerations and taking into account
the above measures, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months from the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements and accordingly, these consolidated financial statements

have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 ““Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS16 and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in

HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets".

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.
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ek Ja
For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_Z-_F+-A=+—-HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;
. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its retumns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until

the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amounts of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary, that is reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified

impairment loss.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BENBEARAT

3.

mE

(%)

3.2

MBBERZEREERBEREFTHE

EXREFTHEE)
FEEREEH B L A2 2 E

MAEEREZHHBAR 2 2H#E - ZW
BRARZEERABENARIEERER (M
B)BRIEFER - W KEBERIBENE
R WEROBEKREZ AR ERERMRE
AR EBEEARREE AR
MBAREE(RERE)RABZER
Bz ZRHE - AL EM2EKE
HRZBEZMBRBZHIEA - BiRBN
AEBEERBHEZNBARIZEBEE
LBEAR  WREREEMEHREER
ZRE/ UGN ERSEE BRI EE
ER R o NAREHIRES B RATH
BARMRB ZEMEBE 2 AR EHRBES
BEETERIE395 - MEB AR IIE
MEZHRZANME - K(EA )RV S
REREENRNAEEREZIRERA -

R BARaZRE

REE AR 2R ERKAREER T BRI
BIEERSIR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operation policy decisions of the investee but is not

control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. Change in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to

the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct

goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

. the Group'’s performance creates and enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is

due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods
or services itself (ie. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for
those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the

Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service

before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception or modification date. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group applies
practical expedient not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for the lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease

component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects
that the effects on the financial statements would not differ

materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of staff quarters that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the
Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date
of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce

inventories.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment

property are presented within “investment properties’.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and

the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Leasehold land and building

For payments of a property interest which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is presented as
property, plant and equipment of the Group when the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and

building elements.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9") and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-

use assets.

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

REVBBRRZAUEEREASTHHER

(%)

3.2

EXREFTHEE)
HE(E)

NEFEREBANE)

EREEE(E)
REEAEHETE S NHEHAERSRSHES
HEBEZMERZEREEESRIGA
HEEnERAFRARTE - TR &4
BREENEGHAIERAFHRERZERE
EUNEREITE -

AEEBEREEERN GV BRAKE
5 RBIIAE -

HELHMRET
PEREETHMEBFHEOZMERERZ
MRME » ENFRERBELHRET
Mo zHAENER - AIBEBEVEZINR
AEBZYE - BHER&E -

REHERS
ENZAREHEREREBFEMBERSE
ERFERIERMT R ([BEMBREE
A DABRRNTRAAEE - R
N EREH QA EZAEER SBIM
ENRLFFANEREEERA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
—E-EER

103



104

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at

the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less

any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

. amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees,

. the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain

to be exercised by the Group; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding

adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding

the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone

price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments as

a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies
the practical expedient to remeasure the lease liabilities by
discounting the revised lease payments using the unchanged
discount rate and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets. A lease modification is required by interest rate

benchmark reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

. the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of

interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis

immediately preceding the modification).

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease

liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance

lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to
net investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate
implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included
in the initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of retum on the Group’s net investment

outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term except for investment properties measured under fair

value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

The Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15") to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative

stand-alone selling prices.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments from

lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through

forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease

as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land premiums” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over

the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange

fluctuation reserve.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related

assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable. Such grants are presented

under “Other income, gains and losses'.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HREVBBRRZGHEERERSTBE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)

(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EXRETBEKR(E)
Retirement benefit costs BIRFF L

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme and are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the

contribution payable.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain amounts for the employees in the
PRC, pursuant to the local municipal government regulations. The
contributions are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered services entitling them to the contribution.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or

permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value
of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or

loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be

transferred to accumulated losses.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group'’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in

the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting

for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold land
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost or fair value less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment measured using revaluation model

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation

surplus is transferred to accumulated losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation
of assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to eam rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. Investment properties include land held
for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital

appreciation purpose.

Investment properties measured using the fair value model

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of
the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
eam rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the property is derecognised.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of

cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under

that standard.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that

standard.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of

classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-

controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of
an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or
joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that
will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified as
held for sale from the time when the investment (or a portion of

the investment) is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and

fair value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
I5. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that
at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 "“Business Combinations”

applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch.

mE
(%)

3.2

e P BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

@)

Amortised cost and interest income

(i

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other

gains and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HREVBBRRZGHEERERSTBE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#%&)

(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 BABHBX(E &EMIAE)
Financial instruments (Continued) THEEE)
Financial assets (Continued) CREE(E)
Impairment of financial assets TREERRE
The Group performs impairment assessment under expected REBERBREBEETBUBRELRNEIRHE
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets which are subject TREMNSMEE(BEEKE ZFE -
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loan Hip el siiE - B BEALHE B2
receivables, other receivables, amount due from a related party, IR IRITF RA KRBT ) RIZFEAE
pledged bank deposits and bank balances). The amount of ECL EEE((BREEEE ) EREITRERT
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk moHMEEEESENSREANE
since initial recognition. o AR ERARZ EE R

& o

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible T HEEEEEEIENABE T AN F
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. HAMMEBFREENEHEENTAREER
In contrast, |2-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion B Bk - 12EABEEEEE 121EA
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that TREAMEEBE D IEREA R ®E A #E 2@
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment RARTREEENENEHEENT D 2 H
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, TEHIEEEE - T RBASBEBEE
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general EEBLER  UTREBAREAEE - —RK
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current FOBEAR A R BRI E B B 2 & Rk &
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future RAGHR A TER T VEA R -
conditions.
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. REBE—BEREWE 5 FIAER 2 TR
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with FEEE ZEEAENEHEEEERE
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with B BATE ) FE U RIE 1T B ET S KK
appropriate groupings. KRG EAR N B EEEETER G -
For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance MATBEEMTAME @ ANEBEKI2EATE
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant HMEEEE2EEEE  BRIFEEER
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises MEVSHRAREZE FH - AIRKEERE
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be REBEHEEEE - REERNUBTEH
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk EEEBEBRERDREA VS ERAREE
of a default occurring since initial recognition: BRI R RE M S E R E L m AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to

meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk
of default, i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of

‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

3.

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

(i)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events

of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated

future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

@

®)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Write-off policy

V)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with

the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HREVBBRRZGHEERERSTBE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped

on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
and other receivables are each assessed as a separate
group. Loans receivables are assessed for expected

credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

EXREFTHEE)
THMTA(E)

EREEE)

TREENREE)
(v BEHEEEENERERE)

ERERELGENTEHEERE
KR AR T R EAZ R AR
5 2RIADLTHEESA :

. RIAENME(BAEEN
FEWE 55018 K H fth FE UK IE
BEBEERBILARN L o B
ERRERNELEFERAGEE
BB

< BHEOR

« EBANUE RERITE:
K

< ATAMINEMEERAR

EEEERRNOMATE RS
ARIEAKIER DARBRUNE
R -

M BWAR S B E Er IR AAER
H HemEEFERE  AIFEL
WAREREENBERATH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
—E-EER

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the

proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HREVBBRRZGHEERERSTBE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)

(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EXETBE(E)EBMIAE)
Financial instruments (Continued) EHEEREZ(&Z)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) cRBERER(E)
Equity instruments EmTA
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual T HAFHEEREENNKREMREA
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. BEENFABERNEMNELD - KT
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the T T EIRE WATIS RIBHIBR B 21T
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. KARER ©
Perpetual instruments which include no contractual obligation for BEAEEBRAAEINReNH M SR
the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the Group BEMEGHNEML  AANEE A 2ERTEE
has the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution and MREREESZ 9 R [ FE (Bl AR & BB AU K A T
redemption of principal amount indefinitely are classified as equity BRIDHEARERTA -
instruments.
Financial liabilities TRAE
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost FiEcRBEREBLREHEKAUERNE
using the effective interest method. JEETE o
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REIEKAT B eMARE
Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade payables and other cRIEBE(BEER  EBNESFERE
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the R RIE) R R IR B S R A BB F B
effective interest method. EETE o
Derecognition of financial liabilities RIFEREHEE
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, EHEEREENET T AR - BUHS
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. EEEHR  AEBFRIEEREHAE -
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability RItERzeMmABEREBEED N RE
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised MREZZENERTER -

in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as
a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
of a financial asset or financial liability to which the amortised
cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to account for
these changes by updating the effective interest rate, such change
in effective interest rate normally has no significant effect on the

carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only if, both

these conditions are met:

. the change is necessary as a direct consequence of interest

rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (ie the basis

immediately preceding the change).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

Going concern considerations

The assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgment by the directors of the Company, at a particular point of time,
about the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The directors of the Company consider that the Group has the
ability to continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively may

cast doubts about the going concern assumption are set out in note 3.1.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group's investment properties are not held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. The Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment property taking into account the land appreciation tax
(“LAT") in the PRC which the Group will be subject to on the fair value

changes of the investment property on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax asset (3| December 2021:
nil) in relation to unused tax losses for an operating subsidiary has been
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the other tax losses of
the subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC of HK$205,539,000 (2021:
HK$211,998,000) and RMB8,474,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9,487,000) (2021: RMB37,958,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$43,902,000)) respectively due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable profits
generated are less or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation,
a material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such

a reversal or further recognition takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement and valuation processes of the leasehold buildings

The leasehold buildings are stated at revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
end of each reporting period as disclosed in note 5. The revalued
amount has been based on a valuation on the buildings conducted by
an independent firm of professional valuer using property valuation

techniques which involve certain assumptions of market conditions.

In estimating the revalued amount of the Group's leasehold buildings,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are available.
Where Level | inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation of the Group's
leasehold buildings. At the end of each reporting period, the management
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuer to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level
2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The management of the Group
first considers and adopts Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived
from observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs
are not available, the Group adopts valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the revalued amount
of the leasehold buildings, the causes of the fluctuations are reported to
the board of directors of the Company. Changes to assumptions and
inputs would result in changes in the revalued amount of the Group's
leasehold buildings and corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain

or loss reported in other comprehensive income.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the revalued amount of the Group’s leasehold buildings are disclosed in

note I5.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less
cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset, which requires significant
judgment relating to level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the assets and
could result in additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment in

future periods.

As at 31 December 2022, there was no impairment losses (2021:
HK$36,939,000 and HK$3,140,000 respectively) have been recognised
against the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-

of-use assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an assessment
of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances are applied to
inventories where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
net realisable value is lower than cost. The management of the Group
reviewed the inventory ageing report at the end of the reporting period
to identify inventories that are no longer saleable in the market and
estimated the net realisable value for those items based primarily on the

latest invoice prices and current market conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, write down of inventories of
HK$ 11,882,000 (2021: HK$26,091,000) was charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the Group's inventories is
HK$81,974,000 (2021: HK$ 1 13,864,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECL as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the use of
the lifetime ECL for all trade receivables. The loss allowances for financial
assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Management reassesses

the provision at each balance sheet date.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 21 and 38(b).

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$75,951,000 (2021: HK$146,790,000), and the provision of ECL is
HK$4,448,000 (2021: provision of ECL is HK$12,628,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for loan receivables

Impairment of loan receivables is assessed on 12m ECL basis when there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowances will be based on the lifetime ECL. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, general
conditions, internal credit ratings and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s loan receivables are
disclosed in notes 18 and 38(b), respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of loan receivables
is HK$16,733,000 (2021: HK$17,223,000), and the provision of ECL is
HK$16,733,000 (2021: HK$17,223,000).

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
Revenue represents revenue arising on sale of toy products for the year.
All revenue is recognised at a point in time upon delivery of the goods to

customers.

The Group manufactured toy products in accordance with the
performance obligations as set out in each sales contracts with its
customers. The performance obligations in sales contracts have an
original expected duration of one year or less. The Group has applied
the practical expedient in HKFRS |5 and hence information about the
Group's remaining performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or
partially satisfied) as of the end of the reporting period is not disclosed.
The Group recognised the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as
an expense when incurred since the amortisation period of the asset that

the Group otherwise would have recognised was one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

The Group is organised and its businesses are managed by divisions,
which are a mixture of both business lines and geographical locations.
Information reported internally to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. The Group
has presented the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated in arriving at the following reportable

segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segment under HKFRS 8 are as

follows:

Securities investments: this segment derives its profits or losses
from dividends received from, and other gains or losses from,

equity securities investments.

2. Toys: this segment derives its revenue from manufacturing for sale
of toys.
3. Medical and health: this segment is under development stage in

which research and development expenses for the medical and

health technology development have been incurred.

The chief operating decision maker monitors the results, assets and

liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than refundable
deposits, certain property, plant and equipment, certain prepayments
and certain bank balances and cash, which are grouped as unallocated

corporate assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. WARKESE(E)
All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than certain ERER @E—:‘—faziﬁ’\*ﬁ CHEETREGE
accruals, which are grouped as unallocated corporate liabilities. RBERARIECERB)RI -
Segment profit (loss) before tax excludes unallocated interest income and BB REN(ER) TEERSEMS KA
unallocated corporate expenses which are not directly attributable to the RTEEEBRNENKLEN B2 EB TR
business activities of any operating segment. DELERX -
(@)  Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (a) DEHA - %E CEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by AT REBEAEHRDIBE D ZARERAR
reportable segments: EEDN
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 202 | BE_T-_—_FR-_F-_—Ft+-A=+
—RIEFE
Securities investments Toys Medical and health Total
#5RE n& BERRR &t
00 2021 Py 2021 00 pl Py 2021

CECCE OCEC-F CECCE CEC-F CECCE CEC-F ZEICE CTo-F
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO00
THx Tin Tz FiEn TH Tin Tz FiEn

Reportable segment revenue TERABUA
Revenue from exteral customers RESNEBREZBA - - 849,09 74621 - - 849,09 724621

Reportable segment profit (loss) T2RREAI RN (58

befre ax ; 9 R (619 : SR e
Unallocated corporate income AABAFHA 3 4018
Unallocated corporate expenses APBAERR 41329)  (64866)
Prolfi (loss) before tax REARRI (8 1769 (19873)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-ZR-_S+-A=t-HLEE
REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. WARKEDHE(EZ)
Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () DEWA -¥E BEREEE)
Securites investments Toys Medical and health Unallocated Toul
0 el LI ROBE it
m 0 m 0 m 0 m 0l m 0l
T8CTE 3% TR IRCF TR CRCF RO CRCF CRCCR CR0f
HKS00D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HK$000  HKSO0
Tan TEr fEr Tan TR TR TR TR TR TEn
Othersegment infomation (ncluded in the measure of EhnERR A BBaA
segment prof or oss or segment assets) AREEE)
Depreciaion of property, plant and equipment % ERRRENE - - 60 (13) - - () (1357 (6I80) (12679)
Deprecition ofrihtofuse asets RERR R - - (18 - 1 IR N 117/ R V)]
Reversal (provison) of ECL for trade receivebles BUERTE BHEERR
HE(%E) - x| - - - T )
Revera (provion) of ECL for loan receibles BUET BECERRRD(RE) - - = - - - 0 (%) A (18
Provision of ECL for loan terest recefvables BUETHIE B REERRE = - = - = - = () s ol
Proision of ECL for fher receiables ERYGE BEREERER - - - - - - () - ) -
White donn of mentore,net FElR 8 - - (188 091 - - - - (188Y) 6091)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net HENE  ARRRR MEEE = - 419 ) - - 100 - 519 )
(Gai on diposd of subsidaes HENERA NG - - - - - - B - B -
(Gin on teminaton of a ase agreement RIREhENA - - 718 - - - 03 -1 -
Imparment loss on interests in associates BelTRARERE = - = - = - (10000) - (10,000) -
Change In fairvalue of investment properties REME LBED - - = - = - -4 - (4
Changes n fair velue of fnancl assets at FVTPL BORESNBREHARY
L - - - - - - - - o
Bark neest rcome SHERA - - M 64 - - 4 b 8 i
herest expense HER - - (o7 (12908 - SRR Blsh (3B (1507)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE FRRZE = - 9781 9541 - - i} - 9810 994
Addton of ightofuse ases RERREEE - - A - N 1 S VL B 17 I
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-__F+-A=+-HALEE

5.  REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. WAREEE(E)
(b)  Segment assets and liabilities by SEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by THRAEEEERABIREERTZR
operating and reportable segments: DEEND 2D -
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZB-—-#+-A=+—-A8
Securities
investments Toys  Medical and health Total
EERE oa BERRRE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Reportable segment assets AZRHREAE = 330,390 - 330,390
Unallocated corporate assets FOMEEEE 10,556
Total assets BEHE 340,946
Reportable segment liabilities AZRHRAG - (360,871) - (360,871)
Unallocated corporate liabilties ~ RAEEERE (69.723)
Total liabilties BEATE (430,594)
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+=-B=+—H
Securities
investments Toys  Medical and health Total
BHRE e BEL R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET
Reportable segment assets AZRNHBEE - 424324 - 44324
Unallocated corporate assets AP FEEE 126,024
Total assets EE®E 550,348
Reportable segment liabilties ERNEAR - (529.29) - (529.29)
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEEEER (119.994)
Total liabilties alELE (649,290)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. WMARKEDE(E)
(¢)  Geographical information (c) MWEEHR

TXEINOHAEER WA+ R()AREEIE
RBEE(BENE BERSZE £/
EEEREEME )V RHEBMNEE S ZH
o BPZMBMNEREP ZREM - ¥
¥ BELSZE CREAE  REAME
ZHBAENRIEMEEREEZERMNE

properties are based on the physical location of the asset under gl o

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group's revenue and (i) the Group's non-current assets including
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment
properties. The geographical location of customers refers to
the customers’ place of domicile. The geographical locations of

property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment

consideration.

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

RENEEF ZBA FRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-HF —E-—%F —ECHE —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET FHET TAET
Hong Kong BB 26,223 15,354 890 3,172
The PRC H 7,730 5762 120,962 161,967
United States x 751,758 664414 - -
Europe BoM 39,496 26,202 = -
Korea 4B 23,889 12,895 = —
849,096 724,627 121,852 165,139
(d)  Information about major customers (d) BBEXERFZEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing REBEERE AAEBEBNESTE 0%
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: WEFZEEZWMANT -
2022 2021
—BCoCHE —EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Revenue from manufacturing for ST ANHEE S 2 WA
sale of toys segment
Customer A BEPA 750,709 662,700
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

6.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HtWA - WERER
2022 2021
—EC- 8 —E—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT BT
Bank interest income RITHEUA 48 70
Loss on early termination of lease of investment 1% & ¥R HEIRAT
property RIERES TR (4,702) =
Changes in fair value of investment properties SEMENREZE - (15986)
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) i 5 s (&5 18 )4 12,687 (2.948)
Mould income LESRON 2,739 3041
Rental income HEHA 1,160 1,595
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREH
plant and equipment, net U EayE et 519 65
Gain on lease termination MERIE W 1,321 -
Government grants (note i) BT HBh (54 752 -
Impairment loss on interests in associates BN AR 2 R (B &R (10,000) -
Investment project recovery (note ii) B TE B 2 WS FRIE (A - 1454
Sundry income TR 3,693 2,234
8217 (10/475)

Notes:

0] During the year ended 3| December 2022, the Group recognised

government grants of HK$752,000 in respect of COVID-19 related
subsidies, which relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by the
Hong Kong government.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recovered
approximately united states dollar (*US$") 1,173,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,149,000) of management income fee in connection
with acting as a co-manager of an investment project (“Investment Project”)
in the previous years, which is net off with commission expenses paid to
a consultant engaged by the Group in relation to the Investment Project
amounted to approximately US$986,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,695,000).

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

Hiat
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HE-_Z-_—_#+-_A=+—HILFE  ~&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

(REVERSAL) PROVISION FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES 7. AHEFEER(ERDR)RE
2022 2021
—ZB-—F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
(Reversal) provision of ECL for loan receivables — FEUE R~ TE BB B /518 (820 BB
(notes 18 and 38(b)) (K1&F18538(b)) (400) 1,886
Provision of ECL for loan interest receivables EWEFFE 2 EEEEEBRE
(notes 22 and 38(b)) (K1aE22538(b)) = 217
(Reversal) provision of ECL for trade EWE SFIE EREEERE
receivables (notes 21 and 38(b)) (83 [B)) B4 (M at21 R238(b)) (8,181) 9,453
Provision of ECL for other receivables H A EIRIE 2 TEEE B BB R A 29,067 -
20,486 11,556
FINANCE COSTS 8. BEMRE
2022 2021
—E-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Interest on bank loans BITERZFE 5,069 6,584
Interest on corporate bonds EEFZFE 3,038 3,038
Interest on other loans HtEF 2 FE Y -
Interest on revolving loans BREEFRZ L 1,379 2,622
Interest on short-term loans HHERZFE 3,949 3294
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGEZHE 806 541
14,351 16,079
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FMBHAX
2022 2021
—EB-—F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNIEH
Current year REE - -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax LT i)
Current year RER 9,235 -
9,235 -
Deferred tax (credit) expense (note 30) RERE (E R ) 2 (f77730) (5,545) 6,142
Income tax expense FrSTRI < 3,690 6,142
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amounts involved arising
from the implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong Profits
Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both

years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The provision for LAT is calculated according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates on the appreciation value, with

certain allowable deductions.

The Group is liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
the subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated
from | January 2008. Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The
requirement is effective from | January 2008 and applies to eamings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% is applied to
the Group as there is a double tax treaty between the PRC and Hong
Kong and the relevant Hong Kong companies should be qualified for the

preferential tax rate based on the prescribed conditions.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates of tax

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss)

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

9. FEREX(E)

REERBMXEALZE
FRERTADE A (BB HRIT ¢

Ban N H A 2 W s R

2022 2021
—Z-—F T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET

Profit (loss) before tax BREL AT (B8 11,769 (129,873)
Notional tax on profit (loss) before tax, DA AR R IS el A RE IR 2 Vi R A9 F =R

calculated at the rates applicable to profits STEZBRBIRNER (EE) B ETIEA

in the tax jurisdictions concermned 3,760 (28,626)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBMA Z g2

for tax purpose (30,570) (3,800)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 B2

purpose 45,918 7,362
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences  RIER A R E s =R 2 MIFHE

not recognised (5,988) 22,909
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the RARRFE 2 B A E] 2 A 9K )

distributable profits of the Company’s L5%st B 2 BT 2 2

subsidiaries in the PRC 150 16l
Deferred tax effects of LAT TR EN CRERB 2 (5,695) (1,599)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZBIEB B 2 BG 2 1,567 2815
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B SRR TR 2 BIEEE

recognised (5,452) (597)
Other HAl - 7517
Income tax expense for the year FEMSHRX 3,690 6,142
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_Z-_F+-A=+—-HLFE

10. FERF(EER)
FEAN(BRE)ZNHRGIA)ATEE

10. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
Employee benefit expense EERMNAX(BREEFMSE):

(including directors’ remunerations):

Wages and salaries TERH® 114.809 124,333

Other employee benefits Hitfg 8@ 1,200 2,140

Contributions to defined contribution TERRHFURINGTE 2 ft3R

retirement plans 10,819 10,409

126,828 136,882

Auditors’ remuneration ZERD & 1,429 1,833
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense TR AF X ZFEMA (FTAHERKA)

(included in cost of sales) 739,063 661222
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% - BB R EHTE 6,180 12,678
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEENE 4,067 5,206
Impairment loss on property, plant and W - BB KRB RERE

equipment = 30,704
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEEREEE = 3,140
Write down of inventories, net (included in FEMOR - FEGEAHERA)

cost of sales) 11,882 26,091
Short-term lease charges in respect of land and T RiEF 2 GBI E S )

buildings 978 1,063
(Over-provision) provision for litigation FFAAGERERRE) BE GT AR AR ) (2,652) 14515

(included in other operating expenses)

Professional fee (included in other operating EEBAHGIARMLERY)
expenses) 12,166 4,778

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

e P BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

1. EERTEEEBEAEHE

REBEERETRUILRBERRGIREZES
REBEBABZAFEHMOT

Salaries allowances Retirement
and benefits in benefit scheme Total
Fees kind contributions remuneration
= 4:11 RINGEF
ok RENER HEEE MemE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Wizt TExT TET TEL TR
2022 —E-CE
Executive directors; HiTEE -
Dr. Liao Wenjian B sIEL - 900 - 900
Mr. Zhao Deyong HEKTE - 900 18 918
Mr. Wong Kui Fai EEBEE (i) 52 - 2 54
52 1,800 20 1,872
Non-executive director: IHTEE -
Mr. Lin Shaopeng s i 120 2426 32 2,578
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHTESE
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie FEIEFEE 156 - - 156
Mr. Ng Wai Hung REHTE 156 - - 156
Mr. Zhao Yong HELE 156 = = 156
468 - - 468
Total directors’ and chief executive's ZERTEBEERAE
emoluments HesE 640 4226 52 4918
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-__F+-A=+-HALEE

1. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 1. EERFEEBASME(E)
(Continued)
Salaries allowances Retirement
and benefits in benefit scheme Total
Fees kind contributions remuneration
e A RINER
ik REMEF BE5 BiesE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 THL THEL FAET FAL
2021 —T--F
Executive directors: WTEE
Dr. Liao Wenjian B gL (] - 280 - 280
Mr. Liu Michael Xiao Ming Liu Michael Xiao Mingt 4 (ii) - l,106 - 1,106
Mr. Luo Lianjun EMELE (i) - 248 - 248
Mr. Zhao Deyong HEKEE - 1,040 I8 1,058
Mr. Wong Kui Fai HEBLE (i) 65 - - 65
65 2674 18 2,757
Non-executive director: FuTES:
Mr. Lin Shaopeng MO E 120 1246 3 1389
Independent non-executive directors: B FFFITES -
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie PalrsE 156 - - 156
Mr. Ng Wai Hung RIEHLE 156 - - 156
Mr. Zhao Yong HBEE (iv) 48 - - 48
Ms. Shi Xiaolei FEELL v) 108 - - 108
468 - - 468
Total directors’ and chief executive's EERFTEEEAE
emoluments MemE 653 3920 41 4614

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services

in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and

the Group.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
The non-executive director's emoluments shown above were mainly for

his services as director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
Notes:

0] Appointed on 24 September 2021.

(ii) Resigned on 24 September 2021.

(i) Appointed on 24 September 2021 and resigned on 18 March 2022.

(iv)  Appointed on 10 September 2021.

v) Resigned on 10 September 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, no share options that had been granted to

directors.

As at 3| December 2021, the share options that had been granted to

certain directors were all lapsed.

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

ESRFEEBAEME(E)

EXFREBTETIME I RN EREEAR
AHEMBRARNERRHEZREMA -

EXFRBYFATESZIHE T EREEE
ARREERRZRBMAT

Bt
() RIZZZ—FhAAZ+EOAESEE -
(i) RZZEZ—FhNAZTHEEEE -

(i) RZE-_—FLA-FTHAEZIRER_ZT=
ZHE=ZR+N\HEHE -

vy RZZEZ—FALATHEZE-
vy RZEZ—FHLA+HET-
REBEE-_ZTE-_—_Fr-_FT-_—F+=-A=+—

ALFEMEEHESHNTIREREABNER
REREEAFHM L -

W-F-—F+-A=+-8 HEZETE
2R -

RZFZ—F+ZA=+t—H BETFTETE
BZBREC 2R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

12.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
three (2021: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note || above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2021:

three) individuals are as follows:

AVGEEHESME
AEEAKRBRAUGREHREETE=U(=F=
—F RMUEF M 2FBEN LXXHE
e B TME(ZT——F: Z)ALTZ#E
FHEMT

2022 2021

—E-= — T4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERLNEYRIE 3,905 4073
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFETEI R 96 5
4,001 4,188

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of
the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

WHARRBAEERFMNFUTHE 2 RS H
BEHBEWT :

Number of individuals

A"
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000 7T
1,500,001 7 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000/ 7T

DIVIDENDS

13.

No dividend was paid or proposed for both years, nor has any dividend

been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

MENEERLF

RS
RMREFELEENREBRERMBRE  RER
FHREY EEOREMS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

14. BREBFN(EE)

The calculation of basic and diluted eamings (loss) per share attributable RARFEBANRESREARBEERAN(ER)
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: THRA T BURETH
2022 2021
—ZB-—F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
Earnings (loss) BR(E1R)
Earnings (loss) attributable to owners of the AT EGRERREE R (EE)
Company for the purposes of basic and FIRZAREHEEA
diluted eamings (loss) per share FEERF (B1E) 8,079 (136,015)
’000 '000
(Restated)
FR TR
(&E751)
Number of shares BRBEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BREITERRZ NETIEH
in issue 366,186 366,186
The weighted average number of ordinary shares during the year ended BT - —F+_-_A=+—HIIFEMNTA
31 December 2021 have been adjusted for the share consolidation EhmEESgestRN —_E-_—_F+—/8=1+8

completed on 30 November 2022.

SRR A BHEL BE -

No diluted earnings (loss) per share for both years was presented as AR EAEBEE H 2 BT mIm - Bt

there were no potential ordinary shares in issue.

RREFELELSSREERN(EE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 ¥% > BERRE

Furniture,
fixture
Leasehold Leasehold  Plantand  and office ~ Motor Construction
buildings ~ improvements Machinery  equipment  vehicles in progress Total
BH
RER
HE BE  BAZ
HEEF NEEE  RES ®E RE  EBRIBR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TEn THEx TEx TE=n TR TER
2022 —EC-CF
At | January 2022 R-E-_—_F-H—-H
Cost or valuation RAERE 102,765 6351 75751 442 6391 2439 237,119
Accumulated depreciation and 2AMERAE
impairment — (6,351)  (75,751) (43269)  (5,075) - (130,446)
Carrying amount REE 102,765 - - 153 1,316 2439 106,673
Year ended 3| December 2022 BZE-E-—#+-H=+-H
LLFE
Opening net canrying amount FOREFE 102,765 - - 153 1,316 2439 106,673
Addition BE — 254 5264 3443 849 - 9,810
Disposals i = — (750) (56) (104) @311y (3221)
Surplus on revaluation BitR% 11,350 = = - = - 11,350
Depreciation e (4,282) (46) (1,144) (350) (358) - (6180)
Exchange realignment R A% (7,833) 49 3,539 806 (47) (128)  (3.614)
Disposal of subsidiary LEMRBAT = (1 = = = = (1
Closing net carrying amount FRERFE 102,000 256 6,909 3,996 1,656 - 114817
At 31 December 2022 R-B-—#+-B=+-H
Cost or valuation RAESAE 102,000 5567 69798 44224 5548 - 2,37
Accumulated depreciation and ZETERAE
impairment - (5311)  (62,889) (40228)  (3,892) - (112,320)
Carrying amount BEE 102,000 256 6,909 399 1,65 - 114817
Analysis of cost or valuation: BAEREEDT
At cost BRAE - B6 6909 39% 1,65 - g1
At valuation RitME 102,000 = = = = - 102,000
102,000 256 6,909 3,99 1,656 - 114817
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. V%  BERREE)
Fumiture,
fixture
Leasehold Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements  Machinery  equipment  vehicles in progress Total
Bith -
KER
BE HE  HAE
HEBT NERE RS R AE  EERIE &R
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
TET TET TEr  TEr  TER TELT ThEn

2021 —E--F
At | January 2021 R=Z=-%-A-8
Cost or valuation KBS (GE 108,000 6931 72209 408 603 - 234218
Accumulated depreciation and ZTERAE
impairment - (3102)  (49680)  (35262) (4625 —(92669)
Carrying amount fREE 108,000 3829 22509 5780 14l — 141549
Year ended 31 December 202 BE2-_E--%t+-fA=1—-H
IEFE
Opening net carrying amount FOEREEE 108,000 389 22529 5780 1411 ~ 14159
Addition BE - 3017 2070 1,804 246 2404 9541
Disposals HE - - (20) (CD) - - (71
Surplus on revaluation BfhRH% 1,808 - - - - - 1,808
Depreciation e (4320) 2259) (2802 2893  (404) — (1678)
Exchange realignment B 5 3512 138 966 42 63 35 5156
Impaiment loss REEE (6235) 3032)  (2743) (4929) - - (369%9)
Reclassified to assets held for sale BENORERELEAE - (1,693) - - - - (1693)
Closing net carrying amount FHREFE 102,765 - - 153 1316 2439 106673
At 31 December 2021 R-Z-—%+-A=1+-8H
Cost or valuation RAMEGE 102,765 6351 75751 $42 639 2439 237119
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment - (6351)  (75751)  (43269)  (5075) — (130446)
Carrying amount REE 102,765 - - 153 1316 2439 106673
Analysis of cost or valuation: RABREER
At cost RRE - - - 153 1316 2439 3908
At valuation &IbE 102,765 - - - - — 102765

102,765 - - 153 1316 2439 106673
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Leasehold buildings Over the remaining lease terms of 24 years
(2021 25 years)
Leasehold improvements 0% to 33%
Plant and machinery 10% to 15%
Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

(@)  The carrying amounts of the leasehold buildings of the Group at 31
December 2022 would have been approximately HK$34,035,000
(2021: HK$35514,000) had they been carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation.

(b) At 31 December 2022, the Group'’s leasehold buildings in the PRC
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$102,000,000 (2021:
HK$102,765,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 28).

(¢)  The leasehold buildings situated in the PRC of HK$102,000,000
(2021: HK$102,765,000) are located on the leasehold lands as

disclosed in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.
(d)  Fair value measurement of the Group's leasehold buildings
The Group's leasehold buildings were revalued on 31 December

2022 and 2021 by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified

professional valuer not connected to the Group.

158 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

C)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s leasehold buildings

(Continued)

Due to the nature of buildings and structures, and absence of
sufficient market data, the fair value of the leasehold buildings was
determined based on the depreciated replacement cost approach
calculated based on the current cost of replacement of a property
less deductions for physical deterioration and all relevant forms
of obsolescence and optimisation. The valuations were carried
out by RHL, which has among their staff members of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The Group’s finance
department worked closely and had discussions with RHL on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation was
performed at the annual reporting date. There has been no change

to the valuation technique during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the leasehold buildings, the highest

and best use of the properties is their current use.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s leasehold
buildings measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS |3 “Fair Value Measurement”. The leasehold
buildings located in the PRC are measured at Level 3 fair value

category as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

I5. 3% BERKRE(E)

(d)

AEEMEERFTZAREME(E)

MRETRBEY IMERRZRAZT
L8E HEBFZAARABDHERFTE
EERFNEREVERB 2 EBERAR
BERFELMERBTA ZRE RE(LE
B)ETE - BRAMERKFITET - 23
MEIRBABANEMBEEBYHMHE
MEZ W NERE MG ELR - K&
B MM E RN e FRE B ETHER
BEAMITEZ AL I mEERRRGE
R - MAFEHERMLEZS -

IESHEEFAAEME WEZES
REEEREREREK ZERE -

RAERE

TREVNWNASEREEFZANE IR
BEMRIZEEUHELEGE  UDEAE
B BREENE IR AL EFEINR
EZ=MARERR - R FEzHER
FRZZZZFRZFZ—F+ZA=+
—BRE=MAREERGE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

I5. ¥13% - BERKRE(E)

(d)  Fair value measurement of the Group's leasehold buildings (d) AEBHERBFZOAEFEGE)
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DA ERF(E)

Fair value as at Fair value as at

Fair value 31 December Fair value 31 December

hierarchy 2022 hierarchy 2021

R-B=-=F RZZZ—F

+=A=t-A +=A=1-R

MAERE  2DAE DRERS  2OKE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAT

Leasehold buildings in the PRC Bz HEET Level 3 102,000 Level 3 109,000

=R E=8
Less: costs of impairment loss W REEERAR = (6,235)
102,000 102,765

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were
no transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 202 |

HE—S-——Ffp-_T-—F+-_fF=+
—BHIEFE FHEF_FHoELEE
B MESASERFEZF -

BHFE=RAEENEH

BEZ-_—_FR-_F-_—F+A=+
—BIFE

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable input Sensitivity
fHERD EATUBENBARSE HRE
Leasehold buildings Depreciated Replacement Recent general construction cost, taking into account the A significant increase in construction cost
in the PRC cost approach differences in location and the age of property, at a rate of would result in a significant increase in
RMBI,965 (2021: RMBI,840) per square metre. fair value, and vice versa.
RPEEERT FEEERAA L2 —MREERA - Ehat RE R RigknE BERNAEE MEH DA EAMEE
£ BFARARKI96T(ZEZ—F « ARE e RZIA -
1,8407T) °

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BENBEARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 6. EREEE
Leasehold lands  Leased properties Total
HELHt HEMHE Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET
As at 31 December 2022 R-EBE-_—_F+=-A=+—8H
Carrying amount BRTEIE 3,299 3,820 7,119
As at 31 December 2021 RNZZE-——F+=-A=+—H
Gross carrying amount BRRE 3442 13,888 17,330
Less: impairment loss B OREETE - (3,140) (3,140)
Carrying amount BRE(E 3442 10,748 14,190
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-—#+4+-A=+—H
LEE
Depreciation charge TEER 144 3,923 4,067
For the year ended 3| December 2021 BE-Z-_—F+-A=1—H
IHFE
Depreciation charge HEER 143 5,063 5206
2022 2021
B8 —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Expense relating to short-term leases %2 HITE EAERAR X 978 1,063
Total cash outflow for leases HEZESRHEEE 4,238 6,506
Additions to right-of-use assets ANE REEE 6,579 15817

For both years, the Group leases various offices and industrial buildings
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of |
year to 5 years (2021: | year to 5 years), but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and

determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

KREFE FAEEHEZEARAERIXAXN
ENfeE  -HEANZEEFHA—FER
F(ZBZ—F: —FEZRF) HEOTXAHRM
AFREREL - BEGRTZE & ERE
B BESETRGREGSE  REEHEA N
AT AT G B 2 HIRE - ARBEAS W
ZEBWETERNRHMIT A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

l6.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 6. EAREEE)
The lease arrangements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets MEZHYEEINEMNRZE - EEHEEELR
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. EERLEE REEA -
At 31 December 2022, the Group's leasehold land under right-of-use R-ZF-_—_F+-A=+—0  A5EER@EE
assets in the PRC with carrying amounts of approximately HK$3,299,000 493,299,000 7L( —F = —4F : 3,442,000 7T )
(2021: HK$3,442,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities URFBEZEREEEET 2HE T2 HIF
granted to the Group (note 28). ERAEBER —RIBITRE 2 ER(HMIEE28)
The leasehold lands are held under a medium term lease and are situated MELHDIRTPEHEERE - WARFE -
in the PRC.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. RENR
HK$'000
FET
FAIR VALUE DRE
At | January 2021 RZEZ—F—H—H 106,702
Additions NE 204
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RERERN AR ERD (15,986)
Exchange adjustments Rk 2,891
Reclassified to assets classified as held for sale ENOBRENRRBELEERE (49,535)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE-—F+=-A=+—H 44276
Early termination of lease RIS (4,702)
Disposal of subsidiary HEHTE AR (37,418)
Exchange adjustments T AR (2,156)
At 31 December 2022 T _F+_A=+—H -
2022 2021
—E- 8 T
Changes in fair value of Investment properties included T AEMYA - Was REEHIE
in other income, gains and losses M2 NREE - (15,986)
All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases REBMEMEREZIRBLCEHERHB UK

to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes and land held
for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose, are measured using the fair value model and are

classified and accounted for as investment properties.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

BEENERNEE - MEEREERRBED
THARSA AT EEENERERSE - HRAR
BERAFE YNER/RAREMERIE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December
2021 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
the respective dates by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited and
Roma Appraisals Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group who hold recognised and relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the location and category of

the investment properties being valued.

In determining the fair values of the relevant properties, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management of the Group works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The management of the Group reports the findings to the board
of directors of the Company to explain the cause of fluctuations in the

fair values of the investment properties.

In estimating the fair values of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

Valuation technique(s)

fhERT

Significant unobservable input(s)

EXTTERGALE

e PR

For the year ended 3| December 2022

HE-Z-_Z_F+-A=t+-BLEE
REME(E)
RZB_—F+A=+—H  FKEKEY
(2 PARBETENBHEAREE T EEENE Y
BERZEGEMUATELANBRATRE
SERAEERAG(EAGRALEEERE
% BEBHEREYEHHE ARG SEE
ZISBRINE B B ETTIAESE -

RETHENEZAAER  AKERBE=
HARBERGLEMETHE -AKEERERS
BRIMNSEEMBETAE  RELREADN
HERMEEARE AEEEEERAR A

EFEREER  UEBREVEAAEBLR
KERREA o

A EAREME -
RESEREZERE -

MEZ &

m
HH
b

Sensitivity

$BE

Leasehold land located in

Haikou, the PRC

Direct comparison

approach

property, at an average rate of RMB443 per square metre in 2021,
REZHRE - AP RTALENZEZNE 2 M EREHRZ (0P|
RER)NEER  RCE--ETHBTHRARBAT -

fIRPEENHAE L BRULEE

Office and retail building Income capitalisation

Recent transaction price, taking into account the differences in location, and

individual factors, such as frontage and size, between the comparables and the

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the differences in location, and individual

A significant increase in the recent transaction
price would result in a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa.

RARRERERIFEH AR EABE
M RZHR -

A significant increase in the capitalisation rate

located in Shandong, the method factors, such as the type and class of property, at a rate of 6.75% and 7.00% would result in a significant decrease in fair
PRC (note i) for office portion and retail portion respectively in 2021. value, and vice versa.

RPEUROBAZRE  BAERLE "D FMERAME KRG RINECNERENRZ(MEERE  ANMEABEMBSHALEAER
EXE (W) BNBER - BAZHD BeTSHREEBHHTO0% « Do RZTR -

Notes: Mt

0) The investment properties located in Suzhou were transferred to assets 0) MNREMNOEENEER T -_—FEEED

classified as held for sale during 2021. BRARBIEHEZEE -
(i) The property represents right-of-use asset held for subleasing to earn (i) ZOEEREIAURDNEcNERAERE -

rentals, which meet the definition of investment property.

NEREMENTEE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BREWME(E)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the RBER  AEBEREMEZHBREAR
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: RERRNZEREH AT
Fair value as at Fair value as at
Fair value 31 December Fair value 31 December
hierarchy 2022 hierarchy 2021
R-2-ZF R-F=—%
t=ZR=+—-H +=ZA=+—-H
DRERE ZARE RAERR ZARME
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER THET
Located in Haikou, the PRC fATEED
Leasehold land held for capital FIEERLEZHE LI N/A N/A Level 3
appreciation A A FE= 39,139
Located in Shandong, the PRC AR
Office and retails places WMOERTEME N/A N/A Level 3
TER TiEr E=R 5137
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both years, MEEETEBE =4ARE AELH &% -
LOAN RECEIVABLES 18. FEWER
2022 2021
—E-—fF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET
Fixed-rate loan receivables TFEREWEZ 16,733 17,223
Less: provision of ECL B TEEEE R IE R (16,733) (17.223)
The gross carrying amount of HK$16,733,000 (2021: HK$17,223,000) BR M 42 58 16,733,000 (=& = — & :

is assessed on the lifetime ECL. The reversal of ECL on the loan
receivables amounted to HK$400,000 (2021: provision of ECL amounted
to HK$1,886,000) during the year ended 31 December 2021, details of

which are set out in note 38(b).

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the current reporting period in assessing the

loss allowance for loan receivables.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

17,223,000/ 7T ) Thik = AT ARE E 1B 1751
- BE_T=-—F+-_A=+—8  EKE
HHFEH BB EE R 54000008 L (=ZF = —
FIEHREERBREEAR,8860005 L) B
FEBEEAMIFE38(b) ©

RAREMA - FEEKREREBBEOME
TEREABRLEES) -



20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18.

As at 31 December 2022, the Groups loan receivables of HK$ 16,733,000
(2021: HK$17,223,000) were individually determined to be impaired.

e P BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE
ERERK(E)
R-ZFE-_—F+=-A=+—H0  ~5BEKE
16,733,000 (ZE = —4%F : 17,223,000 7T)
BEEREERRE -

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REtERTHER
2022 2021
—E-CF %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 10,000 -
Impairment (note) B () (10,000) -

Particulars of the Group's interests in associates is as follow:

REBRBERR ZEEFIBOT

Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest/
Form of incorporation/ voting rights/
Name of company business structure operation profit share Principal activities
FrREE s,
Al AV KR
NCIE EBRBRA B HENBEDL FBER
Bright Triumph Development Limited Corporation PRC 40% Investment holding
SEERARAF
(Bright Triumph Development Limited) NG| + 40% FEER
Note: Mt

During the year, impairment loss of HK$10,000,000 was recognised in respect
of the Group's interest in associates based on the recoverable amount, being
the higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal, determined by the
management.

RERN - REEEEEENTRESEAEHERA
ABRELERAEONESE)  RAKERBEAR
2T - HERIR(EE18 10,000,000 7T ©

INVENTORIES 20. BE

2022 2021
—B==F —TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHBIT
Raw materials R 23,831 21,163
Work in progress FEEM 36,117 57216
Finished goods ZU 22,026 35,485
81,974 113,864
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. BWEZKE

2022 2021

—EC-F —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$000

FTERT FET

Trade receivables, gross FEUE 5 IELRRE 75,951 146,790
Less: provision of ECL A BEEEEEEE (4,448) (12,628)
Trade receivables, net FEUE 5 IEF5E 71,503 134,162

At as 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers amounted to approximately
HK$75,951,000 (2021: HK$146,790,000).

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of provision
of ECL) presented based on the invoice dates which are approximate to
the revenue recognition date:

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H  BFAYNEL
ZEWE S FIE 2 BREBEX A75951,000/ T

(ZZ=—% : 146,790,000% 7T ) °

UTRZEZAH(EKARERARESE) 27
WRAMGRMEEERRER ZERE S FA

ZIRE DT

2022 2021

—E-F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

0 to 30 days 0& 30K 68,251 85,010
31 to 90 days 31E90K 315 48,239
Over 90 days 90RLA L 2,937 913
71,503 134,162

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit with
credit periods generally ranging from 30 to 60 days. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables, and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. Trade receivables are

non-interest bearing.

ECL of trade receivables

Movements in the impairment allowance on trade receivables

AEBEAEFPDIERESE A LEHK
B ERZEEH RN FI0OREOR - KE
BERAOBEREHEREEZREFOR - URE
EEeEMECAN &R - BEESHIAY

WEAERE -

BRESRAZHBPEEESE
B 5 R ERHE B

2022 2021

—E-CF T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET Tt

| January —A—H 12,628 3,175
Reversal of ECL allowance FBEMEEEE (12,349) -
Provision of ECL allowance FEHEEEERE 4,169 9,453
31 December +=ZA=+—H 4,448 12,628

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BENBEARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews trade receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and a collective basis.
The provision of ECL for receivables is recognized based on the credit
history of its customers, indication of financial difficulties, default in
payments, and current market conditions. After the above assessment
performed by the directors of the Company, reversal of a provision
of ECL of HK$8,181,000 (2021: a provision of ECL of HK$9,453,000)
was provided for current year and the directors consider that the trade

debtors are of good credit quality.

21.

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

FEWE 5 RIE(E)
CEEEREZEKESHERRS

e R N $%I¢Q1I%J&%%§%ﬁ%&ﬁ%
WEZHRIERETR - BKKIBENTEBREEE
BREDRBEEEFPHEELS - WBRER
R HBREFRBAIMBEAMER - LK
ARAESRED L% RAFEEED
8,181,000 T(Z T - —FHEEEBBEE :
9,453,000 L) TR EAE BB R HRERD - FER
REWEFFIENEEERZRI -

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor WRAWEMENRKERREZLRRESIFIALZ
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: BRECDATANT -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT T
Neither past due nor impaired 7 48 360 HA TR AR (B 62,537 131,450
Past due but not impaired B8 BB SR (E
Less than | month past due %@Hﬂd\%*mﬂ 5714 1,799
| to 3 months past due BE—E==1{E A 315 913
Over 3 months past due @gﬁ:“ﬂ Ak 2,937 -
71,503 134,162
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to KRB EREZEWSE 5 HE ST &
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. R T REAR -
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired are related to a CHfEERE ENEFRELEAERAS
number of independent customers that have a good track record with B BHGs 2 8BYREAR - BRENLNGE
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are RES  MNEEEETES AL MEAEE

of the opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does

not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

BHRNDEAR/AT2BRE BARBEETRAS
BERZEEBRIERERE - NEBELEZ
EHEHFATARRRREBERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

22.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, FEAfMRIE - RERHMERFIE
2022 2021
—EC-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Prepayments (note i) TR FRIE (B ati) 3,332 7532
Value-added tax recoverable arising from toys A SRREE 2 AIREIGER
segment 360 47205
Rental deposits ks 419 |,135
Others (note i) Al (Hati) 11,657 3,040
15,768 15912
Analysed as b2l
Non-current FERED 414 309
Current mE 15,354 15,603
15,768 15912

Notes: Htat -

(@) Prepayment included the prepayment paid to suppliers amounting to 0) ENFESEEN FHERE ZENZKE
HK$2,822,000 (2021: the prepayment paid to suppliers and paid to a 2,822,000/ (2021 & « SIS NE O 2 FRE
consultant which is an independent third party of the Group for research on T REBEREE O THERY LR (ARE
potential future development of leasehold land located in Haikou amounting BB E=77) 2B RIED R A2,824,00078
to HK$2,824,000 and HK$2,446,000 respectively). JCK2,446,000/7T) °

(ii) Others included the outstanding consideration receivables of approximately (i) /E;mﬂ)\ﬁ’gqy%ﬂﬁ%)%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ(Bright Triumph
HK$8,600,000 from the purchaser of the Bright Trimph Development Development Limited) B 77 2 & fF R (B 4
Limited. Detail is set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. 8,600,000/ 7T ° FFBHRERA M IFREM 736 -

(i) The Group recognized lifetime ECL for other receivables based on iy AEELERSHHZEBABTENLES -

individually significant debtors or the ageing of debtors collectively that are
not individually significant by reference to past default experience of the
debtor at the reporting date.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BENBEARAT

RIBEHNBERZEBALERALTBEERZ
BEAZ HRRRRMEREMEKFIEZ 2
BHEEER -



23.

24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 1%
per annum (2021: 0.001% to |.15% per annum). The bank balances were

deposited with banks with no recent history of default.

For the year ended 3| December 2021 and 2022, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded that the
probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and

accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

As at 3| December 2022, there was no pledged bank deposits. As at 31
December 2021, pledged bank deposits amounting to HK$ 1,190,000 with
a fixed interest rate of 1.3% per annum represented deposits pledged to

a bank to secure bill payables (see note 26) granted to the Group.

The bank borrowings and bill payables are due for repayment within one
year from the end of the reporting period, and thus the pledged bank

deposits are classified as current assets.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALES (LIABILITIES
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE)

On 15 November 2021, the Company, Billion Pride Group Limited, a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, being the vendor (the
“Vendor”) and an independent third party, being the purchaser (the
"Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Vendor agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser agreed to acquire all the issued shares of Bright Triumph
Development Limited (“Bright Triumph", together with its subsidiaries, the
“Target Group”) and the current account between the Target Group and
the Vendor in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$ 134,429,000,
at a consideration of HK$49,000,000. A deposit of HK$28,492,000 was

received.

23.

24.

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

BITEBREES BEFRTER
BITRBREMBEFNRVEZTIE(ZT=—
F o FEFROIERIISE)FE - RITEHTT
PR B3 W 48 B M R0 B 2 SRT -

HE—_Z - FR-_F-__F+-A=+—H
IHFE - ARBEYHRITEBETRE]E - 37
PEBARDUFBITENNAIEERK - B
ILARBFHRIEEBIERE -

R-ZE-_—F+-/A=+—H8  HEDKMR
AR -RZEZ—F+=ZA=1+—8 ' &E
EFERE 3% B2 B HEMEITF 190,000
B EBTFRITUAMBAEEAERENE
(R0 27K »

RITEERENRBERBESHRES —FRZ
HEE A BAERRTERDBRRDEE -

DERABEHEZEE(RSBERRFHFHE
ZEERBENER) (&)

RZZE-_—F+—A+HEA  ARQdA
BERARNAQRARZEEZEWBLAR -« £
REFIERD))R—E2BIE=7(EREH
(TEFIIIv—BEERR(THERZEL -
Bit  BEFREHEMERREKRBEIEEE
BBR A F(Bright Triumph Development Limited)
(ISl EREMBARGRE BEEE])
ZEMEBITROHEBESEREF 2 H2E
RIEFE B 51344290008 REA
49,000,000/ 7T © B UTEUE 28,492,000/ 7T ©

CRBERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-__F+-A=+-HALEE

24. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALES (LIABILITIES 24,

ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE) (Continued)

The major asset being disposed is investment property situated in
Suzhou in the PRC. The assets and liabilities attributable to Billion
Triumph, which is expected to be sold within twelve months, have been
classified as a disposal group held for sale and are presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position (see below). The net
proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of
the relevant assets and liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss has

been recognised.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Bright Triumph classified as

held for sale as at 31 December 2021 are as follow:

DERABEHEZEE(RSBRARKFHE
ZEERBENER) (&)

FTHEZETEEERURHPEEHMN ZEEY
% o Billion TriumphE(HEE KB E(GEEEN+
ZEAREE)ESBRRFIELEZLEER
WRERE B BRARBILZEN(R T - BE
FrisIB F BN SERARMEERAGENER
HEFE - At EERREEE -

RZBEZ—F+ZA=+—8  2ERFHEL
EZIRTREERABERNEINNT

As at

31 December

2021

R=-Z=—F

+=HA=+—~H

HK$’000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment EN NN 1,693

Investment property wEME 49,535

Prepayments and other receivables TE T RRIE K Eoth FEUGRIE 1,047

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 1,172

Total assets classified as held for sale D AEHEEERE 53,447

Other payables and accruals E b ENRUE R ERTE A 5,380

Total liabilities classified as held for sale DERFIELEAEES 5,380
170 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

TRADE PAYABLES 25. BENEZRE
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on NTREERAHPEINZENE HFIEZ KRR
the invoice date: DT
2022 2021
—E-8F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
0 to 30 days 0230k 74,351 138,740
31 to 90 days 31 E90K 19,472 49,627
Over 90 days 90RLA L 43,288 65,986
137,111 254,353
The trade payables are expected to be settled within one year. FENE S RIBIERABENR —FERNEE o
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HitFENZERESER
2022 2021
—E-8F T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Bills payables for purchasing raw materials BB RME 2 BNRIE - 3,967
Accrued staff costs FEETE TN 16,675 | 5,648
Accruals et & 22,484 10,691
Other payables E A e 5E 18,098 3,866
Provision of goods return RERE 14,449 -
Provision for litigation AR - 14515
Deposits received for disposal of subsidiaries RHENBARIB YIRS - 33,832
Tenant deposits received BRHEPES 189 866
71,895 83,385
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. EHNAE
2022 2021
—EC- 8 —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deposits received from customers BREFIZS |2A%! 2954
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

28. BORROWINGS

28. B

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Contractual Contractual
interest rate (%) HK$’000 interest rate (%) HK$'000
EHRIE%) FHERT A HIFIZE (%) FAT
Bank loans
RITER
— secured (note a) Fixed rates ranging Fixed rates ranging
— BRI (Hita) from 4.00% to from 3.10% to
5.85% per annum 5.00% per annum
B % I
BF400EZ NTGE
5.85/E 112,281 3.10E £5.00/2 167,567
Corporate bonds
TEES
— secured (note b) Fixed rate at
—BEM (A 5Eb) Fixed rate at 6.75%
6.75% per annum per annum
RIS Rk
BF675E 45,000 FF6752 45,000
Term loans
BHER
— secured (note ¢) Fixed rate at
—EHER (M) Fixed rate at 12.00%
12.00% per annum per annum
[ 7 A = Bl ES
A 12002 17,000 412002 17,000
— secured (note d) Fixed rate at
— B R (Hita) Fixed rate at 12.00%
12.00% per annum per annum
[ 7E 7 = FEF=
FF1200E 15,000 12002 15,000
Other loan
HAh B
— secured (note e) Fixed rate at
—BEM (K ate) 2.5% per month
EhaRS
FA25E 612 - -
Sub-total of secured borrowings
BHEAEET 189,893 244,567

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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BORROWINGS (Continued)

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

28. BEXR(E)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
Contractual Contractual
interest rate (%) HK$’000 interest rate (%) HK$'000
EHRIE%) FHERT EHIFIE %) FAT
Revolving loan
TBIRER
— unsecured (note f) Fixed rate of
— BRI (A2 Fixed rate at 12.00%
12% per annum per annum
EThailRS [E] 5 7l &
BF12E = BF1200E 19,000
Other loan
HA &R
— unsecured (note g) Fixed rate at
—EIE (A 5tg) 2.5% per month
EThaRRS
FR25E 1,050 - -
Sub-total unsecured borrowings
B ERNET 1,050 19,000
190,943 263,567

The above loans are measured at amortised costs.

EIVE R Ty SR AR T

ok
el
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-Z-__F+t-RA=t+-RALFE

28.

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@

©

The bank borrowings were secured by the Group’s leasehold buildings
and leasehold lands under right-of-use assets with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$102,000,000 and HK$3,299,000 respectively
(2021: leasehold buildings and leasehold lands under right-of-use assets
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$102,765,000 and
HK$3,442,000 respectively), as disclosed in notes |5 and |6 respectively
and were due during |7 March 2023 to || September 2023.

The total banking facilities granted to the Group amounted to
RMB 141,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$157,842,000) (2021:
RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$183,464,000)) of
which approximately RMB100,301,000 (equivalent to HK$112,281,000)
(2021: RMB140,247,000 (equivalent to HK$171,534,000)) were utilised
as at 31 December 2022. On 9 March 2023, an extension agreement
for the banking facilities (being revised to RMB160,000,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$179,111,000) was entered into between the Group and
the bank to extend the facilities to |6 March 2024.

On 7 December 2016, corporate bonds amounted to HK$45,000,000 were
issued by the Company to an independent third party, bearing interest of 6%
per annum and payable semi-annually in arrears, and with maturity in two
years, of which are secured by shares of a subsidiary of the Company.

The corporate bonds had become due and payable on its maturity date of
6 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the Group defaulted on the
repayment of the corporate bonds and further negotiated with the bond
holder for extension. On 23 August 2019, by successfully entering into
a deed of waiver and a supplemental deed poll to the bond instrument
executed by the Company, the Group was discharged and released from
the obligation and liabilities which arose from the default and the maturity
date has been extended to 30 September 2020. The corporate bonds then
bear interest at 6.75% per annum from 7 December 2018 to 30 September
2020. On 27 December 2019, an extension deed had been signed, which
the maturity date had been extended to 3| March 2021. On 29 March
2021, another extension deeds were signed, whereby the maturity date was
further extended to 31 March 2022. On 29 March 2022, another extension
deeds were signed, whereby the maturity date was further extended to 31
March 2023.

On 13 May 2020, the Group obtained a term loan of HK$1,000,000 at
a fixed rate of 12% per annum from an independent third party, with a
maturity in one year. The loan is secured by pledge of shares of a subsidiary
of the Group and a first floating charge over the assets of a subsidiary of
the Group to the lender.

The term loan is payable on its maturity date of I3 May 2021. On 13
March 2021, the Group has entered into an extension agreement to
extend the maturity date to |3 May 2022. On 30 June 2021, an additional
loan was obtained from the same independent third party amounted of
HK$6,000,000 under the same terms. On |9 April 2022, the Group has
extended the maturity date to 13 May 2023.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

28. B
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BITERHASBEFAREETEEHAES
R4 1 oz,ooo,ooo/%m% 299,000 L2 A EE
FREEI (=T =—F : FAREETERR
B{E D B A#9102,765,0007% 7T 5 3,442,000/ 7T
ZHEEFRAE ) IREIKIF - HRIRHE
ISKkI6HFE  WERE2023F3/17H=E2023
FoRIIBE|E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

©)

()

On 25 January 2021, the Group obtained a term loan of HK$15,000,000
at a fixed rate of 12% per annum from an independent third party, with a
maturity in one year. The loan is secured by a first floating charge over all
the undertaking property and assets of a subsidiary of the Group to the
lender.

The term loan is payable on its maturity date of 27 April 2021. On 29
March 2021, the Group has extended the maturity date to 27 April 2022.
On 19 April 2022, the Group has extended the maturity date to 27 April
2023.

On | August 2022, the Group obtained a loan of HK$612,000 at a fixed
rate of 2.5% per month from a major shareholder of associates, which will
be matured in one year. The loan is secured by the pledge of 40% shares
of interest in associates.

On 24 May 2021, the Group has obtained a revolving loan for an aggregate
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 at a fixed rate of 12% per annum
from an independent third party, with a maturity in one year. The loan is
guaranteed by the Company.

The revolving loans utilised with carrying amount of HK$19,000,000 had
unutilised with amount of HK$ 31,000,000 as at 31 December 2021. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the whole outstanding amount of the
resoling loans was repaid.

On 30 September 2022, the Group obtained a loan of HK$!1,000,000 at
a fixed rate of 2.5% per month from a purchaser of the Bright Triumph
Development Limited (“Bright Triumph™), which is unsecured and will
mature in one year.

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

28. BX(£&)

Hiat -

(d)

(e)

®

(g

EW

(%

%

:~——¢ AZ+EHA  X&EBER—%E
VB = HESAHE 500000087 ¢ EEF

MED12%  R—FRNEH - BEEFIALRE
BB LR MERARRMEEL W
REEMERFEMTIER/ER -

EHEREAR-_Z-_—FNA-t++BEHA
HE RZTE-Z—F=ZA=+NA  F£EBE
BEHAEE T -_—_FMWA=-++tH - K=
T-_FMA+AR AEECHKIHBER
—ZE-=FMA=1++tH -

NZZ-—F N \A—H  KAEBEBEAFN
FTERRES—ZETHEEAENER
612,000/ 7T - BR—FAEIE - EEE R
BN A40%8) RIEVE AR -

RZZEZ—FRAZ+MA  AEER—BB
Y HE=HEE A S B 550,000,0008 7T 2 B R
BER  FREREI2% BER—FANEE - 66
BEXAARNEREER -

R-TE-_—F+-_A=+—8  CHAEEE
% 19,000000 8 THRERERNASAESEA
31,000,000 «c BE-_E-—F+-_A=+—
ALLFE  BEHEZPAEEERER -

RZZ-__FAA=+H  AKEE ﬂﬁ??

BRA TUJ%D% RES—ERETNEE
R25EMER —FANE|E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HER®E
2022 2021
B8 T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEAE
Within one year —FR 1,969 4769
Within a period of more than one year but A —FERE RN 2 HAH
not more than two years 1,214 3,367
Within a period of more than two years but FRBRA G 1B A6 A2 BAfE
not more than five years 1,605 4918
4,788 13,054
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 B BB ERTRR 1 2{E A AR EAER
months shown under current liabilities LA (1,969) (4,769)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months IEREN B BRI 1218 A& R A EN
shown under non-current liabilities I8 2,819 8,285
30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 30. EEHERE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial MEIGAEMBRAERME ETEERIEA
position, certain deferred tax liabilities have been offset. The following is BEE TS - UM THAMBHREBNETZER
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes: SERIA LR D AT
2022 2021
—ECCF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax liabilities BEIBEEE 16411 23,666
176 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

30.

EERBEE(E)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and (assets) recognised U TARAEERABFEERA Y & XERLEFR
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: TBEER(EE)E
Accelerated tax  Revaluation Tax Withholding
depreciation of properties losses tax Total
MEVERE  MEEM  HEER  BEOR  £F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TEL TRT TET
Deferred tax arising from: EEEUTEA ZEERE
At | January 2021 RZEZ—5—-f—H 31 22,356 (7517) 1246 16116
Deferred tax charged (credited) to profit or  ANEFEFTA (KR ) B 2 BEREA(HFE9)
loss for the year (note 9) @20 (1515) 7517 161 6,142
Deferred tax charged to other NEEAEMEAWE ZELER A
comprehensive income for the year - 723 - - 723
Exchange realignment B i AR - 646 - 39 685
At 31 December 2021 R=F=—F+-A=t—H 10 2210 - 1446 23666
Deferred tax (credited) charged to profitor ~ ANFFErT A Bz 2 IEERIB(M7729)
loss for the year (note 9) (10) (5,685) = 150 (5,545)
Deferred tax charged to other ENSERINE il 6 5
comprehensive income for the year = 463 = - 463
Exchange realignment B HE = (1,901) = 72)  (2173)
At 31 December 2022 R-B--#+-A=1-H - 15,087 - 1324 1641
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

30.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$205,539,000 (2021: HK$211,998,000)
available for offset against future profits. As of 31 December 2022, the
management of the Group reassessed the recoverability of deferred
tax assets and no deferred tax asset (2021: nil) has been recognised in
respect of such losses. As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the amounted to HK205,539,000 (2021:
HK$211,998,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has tax losses arising in the PRC
of RMB8,474,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,487,000) (2021:
RMB37,958,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$43,902,000)) available
for offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward for up
to five years for EIT purpose. Deferred tax assets on these tax losses
have not been recognised as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available for the companies

in which losses arose.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

30.

EEHREEE(E)

RBER AEERBEBEEZRDARE
/E518205,539,000 70 (=& = — 4 : 211,998,000
BT AT REEERIES - BE_T-_—F+
ZA=t+—H AEEEBEESHAGHELTH
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SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

31. RATRA

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

Number of shares Amount
RIOEE ixc}
2022 2021 2022 2021
—EB-C-F —E-—F —E-CE —E-—F

'000 '000 HK$°000 HK$'000

R TR FH7 T
Authorised: EE
At | January “—A—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 BREHEIBL(ZE=—F :

(2021: HK$0.10) each 0.10/7) 2 T B 7,000,000 7,000,000 700,000 700,000
Share sub-division (note ¢) BRI (Hiizc) 63,000,000 - = -
At 3| December R+=ZA=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 BREE0IBIT(ZE-—F:

(2021: HK$0.10) each 0.1087T) 2 Eilik 70,000,000 7,000,000 700,000 700,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER -

At | January R—H—AH
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 BREEIET(ZTE-—F:

(2021: HK$0.10) each 0.1087T) 2 EB 3,661,865 3,661,865 366,186 366,186
Share consolidation (note a) Rid &bt (Hita) (3295,679) - - -
Share reduction (note b) RRID BB (D) - - (362,524) -
At 31 December “+=ZA=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0! SREEIBL(ZTZ—%F -

(2021: HK$0.10) each 0.1087T) 2 Bl 366,186 3,661,865 3,662 366,186

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

—E-EER

179



180

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

31.

32.

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Notes:

@) Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 28 November 2022, the Company completed
a share consolidation of every ten (10) issued shares of HK$0.10 each in
the issued share capital of the Company into one (1) consolidated share of
HK$1.00 each with effect from 30 November 2022.

(b) Immediately following the share consolidation in note (a) above, the
issued share capital of the Company of HK$366,186,472.90 divided
into 366,186,472 consolidated shares of HK$1.00 each was reduced to
HK$3,661,864.72 divided into 366,186,472 new shares by cancelling the
paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the
then consolidated share, such that the par value of each of the issued
consolidated share was reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.0l. The share
reduction resulted in a debit of share capital of the Company with credit
arising therefrom transferred to the accumulated losses.

(o) Immediately following the capital reduction in note (b) above, each of the
authorised shares of par value of HK$0.10 each was sub-divided into ten (10)
new shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

Details of all the above changes are set out in the Company's circular
dated 3 November 2022.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched

by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$10,819,000 (2021:
HK$10,409,000) represents contributions payable to these plans by the

Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2022, other payables in the amount of RMB 1,414,000
(approximately HK$ 1,583,000 of JHFBRM HXLILE B R AR ("
AN, a subsidiary of the Company, were claimed by certain creditors
for overdue settlement of RMBI,400,000 (approximately HK$1,567,000)
together with legal fee of RMB 14,000 (approximately HK$16,000).

According to the judgement of Xiuying District People’'s Court of Haikou
Municipality issued on 3 January 2023, it was concluded BRI 5 should
settle the overdue amount of RMB1,400,000 together with the legal cost.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the litigation has no
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and its operating result
for the year ended 31 December 2022 as all the above payable amount
has already been recorded in the consolidated financial statements as at

31 December 2022.

33.

e P HmRM A
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-ZT-_F+-A=+-HLEE

-y
EN/N

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H ' KK
BRAABEABRIREBEXULREERAA(NERER
55 1) &9 E fth T FRIE A R HE 1,414,000 7T (4
1,583,000 7)) & THEEAZRAEDHER
B M AR 1,400,0007T (471,567,000 7T ) i A
EEBAARE14,0007T(4916,00087T) °

BESOMBEERBAREZER-ZE=-_=ZF—A
“HBELENHR  RARSHEAEERBHR
T8 AR 400,000t R EARER -

AAREERRFAEAEEBE T
TZA=Z+T—HALEFENIBIRRRELER
BRAEEAYE HARMELBENFEAEDRE
BE—T-_—_F+-R=T-HWNRSHBR
RF e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-__F+-A=+-HALEE

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34. REBERE
The Group as lessor rEEEREBEA
All of the properties and motor vehicles held by the Group for rental AEERBERDRESZMEDMERAERD BEA
purpose have committed lessees for the next four years and one year MAEBERRNFER—FHHEE - HETBIE
respectively. The leases do not include contingent rentals. FAEE o
2022 2021
—E-CF —T-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Within one year —FR 128 1912
In the second year RE—F - |,538
In the third year RE=F - 1,510
In the fourth year REMEF - 747
128 5707
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BEAKIE
2022 2021
—ECCF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BEETRMBE R AR & Bk
provided in the consolidated financial BB EARRX
statements
— in respect of property, plant and —EEME - BERERE
equipment = 2293
182 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

A

Enormous Fortune

On 21 March 2022, Billion Pride Group Limited, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, being the vendor (the “Vendor”)
and an independent third party, being the purchaser (the “Purchaser
A") entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which, the Vendor agreed to sell and Purchaser A agreed to
acquire 60% equity interest in Enormous Fortune Business Limited
(“Enormous Fortune”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Disposal
Group A"), incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and sale loan
representing 60% of the shareholder's loan at cash consideration
of HK$15,000,000. The major asset of Disposal Group A is an
investment property located in Hainan, the PRC. The disposal
was completed on 21 March 2022, on which date the Group lost
control of the Disposal Group A. The sale loan was approximately
HK$42,992,000 on the date of disposal. Disposal Group A was
then reclassified as interest in associates. The fair value of the 40%
retained interest in Disposal Group A at the date on which control
was lost, being the initial recognition of the interests in associates,
was HK$10,000,000.

A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
B. Bright Triumph
In 2021

On |5 November 2021, the Company, the Vendor and an
independent third party, being the purchaser (the “Purchaser B”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which,
the Vendor agreed to sell, and Purchaser B agreed to acquire all
the issued shares of Bright Triumph Development Limited (“Bright
Triumph”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Disposal Group B")
and sale loan at a consideration of HK$49,000,000. A deposit of
HK$28,492,000 (representing 60% of the consideration, amounted
to HK$29,400,000, with HK$908,000 being outstanding from
the Purchaser) was received and included in “Other payables
and accruals” at 31 December 2021. The relevant assets and
liabilities classified as held for sale on 31 December 2021 were
approximately HK$53,447,000 and approximately HK$5,380,000

respectively.

In 2022

The disposal of Disposal Group B was completed on 30 September
2022, on which date the Group lost control of the Disposal Group
B. The sale loan was approximately HK$132,538,000 on the date
of disposal. All the assets and liabilities associated to the Disposal
Group B were derecognised on the date of disposal. Further to a
supplemental agreement subsequently entered between the Vendor
and Purchaser B, both the Vendor and Purchaser B had agreed to
adjust the cash consideration to approximately HK$37,137,000.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

B.

Bright Triumph (Continued)
In 2022

The gain from disposal of the Enormous Fortune and Bright

Triumph are analysed as follows:

The net liabilities of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as

follows:

36. HEMEBLF

B. SlEE(#E)

e P BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

(%)

R-E—-—

HERSEMIEZKRESTNAT :

MEARRHERMZAEFENT

Disposal Group A Disposal Group B Total
HESEA HEXEB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET FET
Property, plant and equipment W - BE NEE I 2,295 2,296
Investment properties REME 37418 45338 82,756
Prepayments and other receivables TR FIE R E A A 2 1,247 1,249
Bank balances and cash PITEBRRERS 152 93 245
Shareholders' loans REER (71,654) (132,538) (204,192)
Other payables and accruals HEENZIERENER (1,190) (17.214) (18,404)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE (105) - (105)
Net liabilities disposed of BHESETE (35,376) (100,779) (136,155)
The gain from disposal of subsidiaries are HEME LR 2 as AT
analysed as follows: Dk
Total cash consideration #HReRE 15,000 37,137 52,137
Fair value of interest retained REER 2 DTE 10,000 - 10,000
Assignment of shareholders' loans HERREX (42992) (132,538) (175530)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEBETE 35,376 100,779 136,155
Release of asset revaluation reserve MR AEELRA - (1 )
Release of exchange reserve FRRRIE K A 2876 4273 7,149
Release of statutory reserve R A - §) )
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR U 20260 9,646 29906
Net cash inflow on disposal of HEMBRARZREAA
subsidiaries: R
Cash consideration received BEURERE 15,000 28537 43537
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B BHERITESRRES (152) (93) (245)
Net cash inflow as at 31 December 2022 N-ZE-—&F+-A 14,848 28,444 43292
=t—RZRERNFE
Outstanding consideration receivable JEURERRE - 8,600 8,600
14,848 37,044 51,892
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37.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 28, net of bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share

capital, accumulated losses and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs

as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. @@TA
Categories of financial instruments SRMITEER

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEIERATEZ S REE IBBs4E: 210,076

Financial liabilities EA:N=Ri
Amortised cost BESHAOR 360,601 538,268
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,788 13,054
365,389 551,322

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL, trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, loan
receivables, amount due from a related party, bank balances
and cash, pledged bank deposits, trade payables, other payables,
borrowings and lease liabilities. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risks (currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

eREREERERBE
FEBEFESRIARERAABEIA
BazeREE  BEEZHE ZE2R
Hi EURIR - BB - BIREEAL
R RITEBRLE S  EERRTHE
R BNESHIE - HENFOE - B
REEEE - eRMITANFIBRERMT
WIE - B SR T EMABNREREE
miERAR(EERR - M EERERER
) EERBARTHE SRR -
BEZERBROBREANTX - EREE
BRERZSRER - ARFRER RE R
REVEE I
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk

0)

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC,
with certain of their sales and purchases transactions
being settled in US$, HK$ and RMB. The Group is thus
exposed to currency risk arising from fluctuations on
foreign currencies, primarily US$, HK$ and RMB, against
the functional currency of the relevant group entities. The
management continuously monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure should the need arise.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not have

material exchange rate risk on such currency.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of the entities within the Group into the

Group's presentation currency are excluded.

38. SRIAE(E)
b. ZL2RERESEEEREE(E)

ik d
(y EERR

AEBT2ERERTHEZE M
ETEERHGUET  EBLRAR
BEE - Rt - AEEEHIMNE (A
XX ABRERAREASIIAEHRS
BERCEEREXRKSMES
ZEBER - EBETEERINE
Rz TERHEREEETEXR
SNE R

MRETTEE TR - AEE Y E
EEZEE 2 ERNEXRRR -

REEAZ 2 GERER
TRFLAEERREMRIL AR
ERMEEBAIINEREZCHE
REERBBEMELZINER R
REXAKEBATER ZMBHRE
RARBNZ2IEEMELENEZR
YW HABREEA -

2022 2021

—E-CE —E-—F
Us$ HK$ RMB Uss$ HK$ RMB
EY BT AR® e BT ARE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKF000 HKF000  HK$000
THET TET TFTExT TExT TEr TEn
Bank balances and cash FITERERS 32 = 27 929 - 97
Pledged bank deposits BIRRITER = = = - - -
Borrowings R (40,637) - - - (68729) -
Overall exposure to currency risk BEauER (40,605) - 27 99 (68,729) 97
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
HK$ exchange rate against RMB for group entities with RMB
or HK$ as functional currencies, with all other variables held

constant, of the Group's loss for the year and accumulated

38.

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

SRMIAE)
b. ZLRERESEEEREE(E)
TEE R (E)

(y EEBERERE)

BURRE DM
TRERIRABEEMEHRT T
B OMETEARY ZERT R
REBEHZBERT  AEEZK
FEBRRRFERNREARY
NARBHBETRAIEEE 2&E
ERMNGERE -

losses.
Increase (decrease) in
loss for the year and
accumulated losses
TEEBER
RETBRZMORD)
% HK$'000
% THAT
2022 —E-CF
If HK$ weakens against RMB fin BT AR EE 453 5 Q)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB T ARKEES (©) |
2021 —E-—F
If HK$ weakens against RMB fin BT AR #4353 5 (3441)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT H A R R 5) 344

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the group entities’ loss for the year and accumulated
losses measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation

purposes.

ERFEINZDTERESEEHE
BUZEVEERAE(RERE
B DHRBERRZEXRLERE
TO) Z AN FEEE N R EEZ AR

o A B 48
RETE -
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group,
including intra-group balances with foreign operations
within the Group denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the foreign operations, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of

the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same

basis for year ended 31 December 2021.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loan receivables, borrowings and
lease liabilities. The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
pledged bank deposits. The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and pledged bank deposits. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures by assessing the

potential impact arising from any interest rate movements

based on interest rate level and outlook.

Total interest income from financial assets that are measured

at amortised cost is as follows:

38. EWITE(E)
SREMETEEERRE(E)
hEE R (E)

b.

@

(ii)

B R (&)

¢
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RESMEBRRIMNEER 2 EH
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BREMREAEEEEBRINERR Z
EWMIE  BREBNREIER
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BB o 7N 52 B S B A] R KR AT
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2022 2021

—E-—F T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Financial assets at amortised cost BHREX AT ECSREE 48 70
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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38. SRIAE(E)
b. ZL2RERESEEEREE(E)
5 E (&)

(i FEERE)

WIHEBARBEFABEZERAE

FVTPL: ZABRX
2022 2021
—E-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBEK TG ECSRIBE 13,545 15538
Lease liabilities HEBRE 806 541
14,351 16,079

Sensitivity analysis BURE ST

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
(2021: 50 basis points) increase or decrease in variable-rate
bank balances and pledged bank deposits are used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2021: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2022 would decrease/increase by HK$246,000
(2021: decrease/increase by HK$338,000).

AT HRERE S M RABEHRE R
MERBMETE - ZAMHREZT
BREBEHRREENERTAE
EFANRKREE  -NFRAEIEER
ABHENXERE - AR KR
THABMEEMIRTFERN LT
TERSOEEF (—F ——%F : 50fE#E
B RREEBHMNERAEA LR
Bt -

HEFRE LA TRSOEES(ZF
Z 4 SOMEEDN) AT A b B B
RETE  AAEEHE—_T=_=
FH+Z_ A+ BLFENBRIHE
B8 1R 2 1 1N1246,0007% (=
T —F: WD N338000%
JT) e
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for the variable financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 50 basis points increase
or decrease represents management's assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the end of the next reporting period. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for year ended 31 December

2021.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial

assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from trade receivables
from toys segment, financial assets at FVTPL, deposits and other
receivables, amount due from a related company, bank balances
and cash, pledged bank deposit, loan receivables and interest
receivables. The carrying amount of these balances represent out
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial

assets.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables from toys segment

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals. The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not

significant.

Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually. In this regard, the directors consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer having similar credit
risk characteristics. Most of the customers are multi-national
corporations with well-known brands for their toy products and

have satisfactory credit rating.

Concentration risk of trade receivables from toys segment

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 83.2% (2021: 90.5%)
and 99.9% (2021: 99.6%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively. These customers are international toy retailers with

good credit ratings.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Transactions involving financial assets at FVTPL are with
counterparties of sound credit standing. Given their high
credit standing, management does not expect any investment

counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. EMIA(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) b. TREREERARREK(E)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables and amount due from a related
company, the Group has assessed whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has
been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure

the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than |2-month ECL.

Bank balances and pledged bank deposits

The credit risks on bank balances and pledged bank deposits are

limited because the counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Concentration risk of bank balances and pledged bank deposits

At 31 December 2022, the Group had certain concentration
of credit risk as 62.1% (2021: 81.5%) of the total of cash and
cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits was deposited with
one financial institution in the Hong Kong (2021: PRC) with high
credit rating. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

Loan receivables and interest receivables

At 31 December 2022, the Group had gross loan receivables and
interest receivables of HK$ 16,733,000 (2021: HK$17,223,000) and
HK$3,790,000 (2021: HK$3,790,000) respectively. Before entering
into the loan agreements, the Group assesses the credit quality
of borrowers and defines the terms of the loans. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
loan at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group
has concentration of credit risk as the loans were made to two
(2021: two) borrowers. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue loans. In view of the financial position of
the borrowers, and the monitoring procedures adopted by the
management, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the

credit risk in respect of the loan receivables could be monitored.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loan receivables and interest receivables (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Especially the following

indicators are incorporated:

. Internal and external credit rating;

. Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower's ability to meet its

obligations; and

. Significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrowing, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the Group and changes in

the operating results of the borrower.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, two loan receivables and
their loan interest receivables with gross carrying amounts of
HK$16,000,000(202 1: HK$16,000,000) and HK$3,790,000 (2021:
HK$3,790,000) respectively are amounts due from borrowers
whom the directors of the Company considered were credit-
impaired. The borrowers did not repay the loan interest receivable
according to the schedule listed on the loan agreements. The
directors of the Company were of the opinion that the borrowers
might not be able to repay loan receivables. Another loan
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$733,000 (2021:
HK$1,223,000) as at 31 December 2022 is amount due from a
borrower was credit impaired which the directors of the Company
considered the borrowers might not be able to repay loan
receivables. During the year ended 3| December 2022, the loan
receivable has been repaid to the Group of amount HK$400,000,
and the provision of ECL for this loan receivable amounting to

HK$400,000 has been reversed.

A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

38. SRIAE(E)

TREREEEERBEE)
= B Jm B R Bl B 5P 1 ()

JE W & R S IR MR B (AF)

FEBENSERTREEREREOD
AR - MERRBENREERRES
SEREEM - EFEEERRETRE
B - AEEBRREEMEERLEN
EHE R SRR A HRE R RETT
L - ZEAIGAEEBRNAELEER
LEEZETIIER -

© RBRSMBEERA

- ERBENNTEHEHERARTE
BEENMENIELEREPNEY -
B 75 AR AR B B K FI)
&

. ERABSEBRTAMEAS
B e EAREE KA KR
BHRERAGELENRD -

R-E-——FR T —F+-_F=+—
H - BRELTE S A A 16000000 (=
T — —4F 1 16,000,000/ 7T ) &.3,790,0007
TL(ZZF = —4F :3,790,000/8 7T ) 2 ME &
WoE R H B R B AR E KA Z
I MARREFERABHERELRE
BERME - {8 EIZ R E K P 5 BB
CHBRESRKRERFE - AARES
RE - BRATREELERERBREN -
RZEFEZ_F+-A=+—08  RAHAE
733,000 BIT(=F = —4 11,223,000
BLIzE—2RBERREREBRALE
BREZRIE - MERARBEREEEEE
WER HEZZZZF+ZA=*+—
BIEFE  ZEZEREREREBEELRAEE
400,000/ 7T + 7% E R E KI5 B E R
1#400,000/8 TCE BEH o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

38.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. EMIA(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) b. TREMEEERERBE(E)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEmE R R EFE(E)

Loan receivables and interest receivables (Continued) FEM E R e R B ()

As at 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company assessed RZZB-—_F+-HA=+—H  ARQ7A
the provision of ECL of these loan receivables and their loan EFTHEAEEEEE BV EEGLERD
interest receivables were HK$16,733,000 (2021: HK$17,223,000) BEFGEAERABA(ZE_—F LTHE
and HK$3,790,000 (2021: HK$3,790,000) respectively with the RAEARAR) 2 BB TEMNEZLEE
assistance of Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (2021: Norton KWERREEBWERNE 2 EHEEEHE
Appraisals Holdings Limited), an independent professional valuer BED R A167330008 L (ZT=Z—%F -
not connected to the Group. Reversal of ECL loan receivable 17,223,000/ 7T ) % 3,790,000 T (= F =
of HK$400,000 (2021: Provision of ECL loan receivables and —4 :379000087T) c HE_T -
loan interest receivables were HK$1,886,000 and HK$2 17,000 +-—A=+—HLEFE H BEREZEHE
respectively) was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended E R ERE4000008 T(ZE=—F : &
31 December 2022. Up to the reporting date, the Group has W E R IE RS BB A R E W E KRB 5 Bl
arranged legal letters to the borrowers of two loan receivables 1,886,000 7T 2 217,000/ 7T ) B HER B
with gross amounts of HK$16,000,000 to request for repayment B HERERHY - XEBEZRMERE
and another borrowers of the loan receivable with gross amount W E & 16,000,000/ 7T 2 & KA B H
of HK$733,000 is negotiating with the Group to renew and extend EREHMENER - WIETEREBKERS
existing loan receivables terms. 733,000 T2 5 — B ERARGEEI R

ERBRARKEFRZIRK

The Group's exposure to credit risk REEAR 2 EERR

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its operation ABRAREREEERR  AEBBEZE
management team to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk Higa B0 E B GIE RERERALEE
grading to categorise exposures according to their degree of risk ERBRER - REE L RS FHE R
of default. The credit rating information is supplied by independent HEITDE - EEFRER BB LT REE
rating agencies where available and, if not available, the operation (B iR - BA - KEEEBEK SR
management team uses other publicly available financial information HMARARUBENRRNEEBEHR
and the Group’s own trading records to rate its major customers HLFEETERR M HEMER AETTH
and other debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings o AEEFEEZERREEZSEHF
of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate WEENR - WHEKKR D EBEEL
value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved BRERSHFREETES -

counterparties.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF



38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38.
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) b.

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRIAE)
tREREEEERBEK(E)
EEREERBEFE(E)

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

AEEAZ 2 EERR(E)

The Group's current credit risk grading framework comprises the REBEBAHEERBIRERBE T
following categories: 5l
Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
AR P BRANFEBRZEE
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not been a  |2-month ECL
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not
credit impaired (refer to as Stage |)
FB#) BHERBERBVSERAREERRARNE - BEEEERES REABRBEESE
EREE(RE KB
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant increase in credit  Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired
risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired (refer to as
Stage 2)
Tr &t BUFHABAREERRMBEECEENENSREE(RENE ZUEAEEEHE - BEER
B) =1
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events  Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3)
EX) RS ZAEHHZEENBMARRERBEL N NZ LR rHBEBEERE-LREER
EREERNEREERE(REIRR) B
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty ~ Amount is written off
and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
s BRBRABBARNBEEVHRIE - MARELEERE@FIR  FORRKMIEA
B AT BE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. EMIA(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) b. TREREERARREK(E)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continued)
The table below details the credit quality of the Group’s financial

assets as well as the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk by

credit risk rating grades:

=B m B R Bl B AP 1 ()
AEEAZ 2 EERR(E)
TRHAMINEAEEEREEZEEESE

AEAREZEERRIRTENZARE
B

Internal Gross carrying Net carrying
At 3| December 2022 Notes  credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL amount  Loss allowance amount
R-B-ZF A
+=ZA=t-AH M7 EEIE  NEARRHEHEEER fREAE BRRE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRL TR THET
Loan receivables 18 Default Lifetime ECL 16,733 (16,733) -
fElRER EH RHRAEERE
Trade receivables 21 note ii Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 75951 (4,448) 71,503
JEWE Z50R i PHRAEEBRBILAM)
Deposits and other receivables 22 Default Lifetime ECL 32857 (32857) -
e REMRYGR EH PHRAEERE
Note iii
P i
Performing [2-month ECL 12,076 - 12,076

B4 REARBEEER

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF



38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

38.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continued)

Internal credit

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

EMIAE)
b. LREREEEEREE(E)
1= B /m B R Bl B 5P 1 (42 )

AEEAZ 2 EERR(E)

Gross carrying

Net carrying

At 31 December 2021 Notes  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount  Loss allowance amount

R-2=-%

+=A=+-H iz ABEEFR NEARZERBEESE REAE BERR FREFHE

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx TER TAT

Loan receivables 18 Default Lifetime ECL 17,223 (17.223) -

JERER k) PHEREESE

Trade receivables 21 note i Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 146,790 (12,628) (134,162)

WS 5508 HiaTi > HREEEEHREEAE)

Deposits and other receivables 22 Default Lifetime ECL 3790 (3790 -

Be REMEKTIR k) PHEREERE

Performing | 2-month ECL 8,088 8,088
) REAERESER

Note i for trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach Mz EBESRIEMS - AREEORAE
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except /ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ %JJ%‘?%EZ Fs%%jf/fﬁj%i\
for debtors that are credit-impaired or with significant outstanding ﬁﬂﬁﬁqﬁ EréﬁEZﬁéﬁ cBRABRFEER
balances, the Group determines the ECL on these items by using a BEHRBEAREEL R 2 BRSO, - A
provision matrix, grouped by internal credit rating. The management & f? ARIEERT @ﬁ?\ ,ZE% BiEEmE
of the Group considered the loss allowance on this group of trade BEZSHEEBEERE - A%H
receivables to be insignificant. BEEERL - LLRIE S FORMAR 2R

BEEBHTTERKX -

Note i as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, ECL on trade receivables Biati W_E__FR_FB_—F+_H1 =
with significant balances with gross amount of HK$75,951,000 and T—B BAEEAEHBERENINE
HK$146,790,000 respectively were assessed individually. These 75,951,000 7T & ‘4@7?05000}%7_5;%”&
receivables are assessed for impairment allowance based on the BoF Bz BHERBEDB NG
historical credit losses experience, forward looking factors and ZERBFATDRIEBEEEBRL
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, including o Al %%&ﬁ%%/\zﬁﬁﬁ;%(@
settlement pattern, recent transactions with the Group and length of T EAEE Y SEIZ 5N
business relationship. ﬁ%%ﬁ REMELAREE - sUREREE

1TaHE -

note iii for other receivables and deposits, the directors of the Company Ftatiin LA M EMGRIB R B R = - ANFIE
make periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other FREBEENLDE BESBARS
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement records, past BEABERIEOAIEEEERTENE
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information that is Y - H T@J‘?Hﬁl FIE KR ﬁ'\] Gl Hﬁ( 5 l
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. The directors ETTHEGFE - ARAESRAEE
of the Company believe that there are no significant increase in MR AR ZE AN B @ k2 1 &
credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group R0 B SE ER R | 218 BB HAE 1
provided impairment based on 12 months expected losses method, AEHRRE - EERERFANER
except for the other receivables from Enormous Fortune of carrying B #729,067,000& TLRRIN c BE T =
amount approximately HK$29,067,000. For the year ended 31 —F+-A-FT-BULFE - AKED
December 2022, the Group assessed the ECL for other receivables A E ﬁﬁﬂg W?K\IE ae T_ﬁ R TEHE %f lg’i
and deposits, an impairment loss of HK$29,067,000 (2021: Nil) was B RIERERRIEEE29,067,0007% 7T
recognised in the profit or loss. (ZEZ—F: %)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has available revolving loan
facility of approximately HK$50,000,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$31,000,000). Details of which are set out in note 28.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk of being unable to finance
its future working capital and financial requirements when they fall
due. The net current liabilities and net liabilities of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$192,768,000 and
HK$89,648,000 respectively. In view of this, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of

the Group and details of which are set out in note 3.1.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities and derivative instruments. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the lenders choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based

on the agreed repayment dates.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

38.

¢RI AEE)
b. SHRERETEEEREER(E)

BB L EEE

EERPETERIE AEBEERRE
AT MASFEVREEERRARZ
KF - ARUASRERLEEKATES -
WHIREREND < FE - BEEEE
EEE R RERETERRZH -

FEBKEERERRBDAGZEER
R eRZZEZZF+-A=+—0 ' &%
BB A2 ERERREE 4 450,000,000
A ZE—F+_A=+—H:
31,000,000 7T) © FFIEHEAMIFE28

REBAZBELIARREELES RUBER
KEBRREZRBESRR - KT
ZHF+ZA=+—H  AEEZEBHAE
FEENREEFED AIAR192,768,0008 7T
£289,648,000% 7T - HHEALL - ARFE
FERAFERAEEZRARAHES &
BERMIEES -

TR AKESRABERITETAZR
HANFHMFE - ZINRENAEETHE
EERXNFEZRAHZERAGBERKIRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

e M EmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_ "+ A=+-RALFE
38. SWMIA(E)
b. LREKREEBEERBX(E)
mEBELEE (&)

ZREBENERAZHERE -

Liquidity tables M E &7
On demand
Weighted average or less than I to 3 months Total undiscounted
interest rate | month 3 months to | year Over | year cash flows  Carrying amount
RERH et
TR SRIER IZ3f8R MAAZIF -ENL REREBER R
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
% TiER TiEn TiEn TiEn TiER TR
2022 ZECCE
Bomowings B 647% 1,006 67,105 127,634 - 195,745 190,943
Trade payables ENE55E = 74351 19472 43,288 = 137,111 137,111
Other payables ERERTUE - 0547 - - - 0547 0547
Lease lbilties HERE 8.11% 191 38l 1715 3169 5456 4788
108,095 86,958 172,637 3,169 370859 365,389
On demand
Weighted average or less than [ to 3 months Total undiscounted
interest rate | month 3 months to | year Over | year cash flows  Carrying amount
ESeH AR
IngFaRE SRIER 1304 MEAZEIF —FE RenEeR R
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
% Tk Thn TR T T Thr
2021 it Sl
Borrowings &% 624% 1401 47664 218818 - 267883 263567
Trade payables ERE 78 - 65986 188,367 - - 254353 254353
Other payables EERFE - 16,38 - 3967 - 20348 20348
Lease libiltes HERE 62% 366 73l 4319 9081 14507 13054
84,134 236,762 27,114 9,081 557091 55132
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-__F+-A=+-HALEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(i)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at

fair value on a recurring basis

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
have been no significant transfers between Level | and 2 or

transfers into or out of Level 3.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value

disclosures are required)

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities have
been determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised

in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR EE

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HE-Z-_Z_F+-A=t+-BLEE
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 39. METBMELAGZHER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from TRAMLAEEMEZTHMEEEEZE
BEReRIRESEE  -REZHAELEZE
BERRENECKRIARAKRREREFGHEE
rEBEGERENERIERBETBH Z2REN

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or

future cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated statement

of cash flows as cash flows financing activities. ==
Interest
Borrowings payables  Lease liabilities Total
B ERRE HEAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FH&T FAT FAT
(note 28) (note 29)
(Hi%28) (KiaE29)
At | January 2021 R-_ZE-_—F—H—H 232,906 1,621 2,896 237,423
Finance costs A& KA - 15538 54 16,079
New leases entered eI HE - - 15,950 15,950
Financing cash flows BRELRSRE 25970 (17,159) (6,506) 2,305
Foreign exchange translation SNEHE 4691 - |73 4,864
At 31 December 2021 W-_TE——4F
+-—A=+—H 263,567 - 13,054 276,621
Finance costs BB AR — 13,545 806 14,351
New leases entered FETHE = = 6,442 6,442
Termination of
a leases agreement 1w S = = (10,538) (10,538)
Financing cash flows RMERERE (59,876) (13,545) (4,238) (77,659)
Foreign exchange translation SNEHE (12,748) = (738) (13,486)
At 3| December 2022 N-E-—F
+-—A=+—H 190,943 - 4,788 195,731
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-__F+-A=+-HALEE

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. EXBBLR S
Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, RAREENBLAR(RANARREER) 2 HEH
which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on EHRRZZGEREERE REHE - T TE
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions WE - TXREFBASEEE N 2
between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below. MR ZFE -
(A)  Transaction with related parties (A) EBRBEEBERS
During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions FR - AEEREBSITLATRS ¢
with related parties:
2022 2021
- —F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiET TET
Rental income received from a related BER—FREBAR(ARAR —REEE
company in which a key management BABUWHBSATE) Z2HEE A
personnel of the Company has significant
influence 384 324
Interest expenses paid to a substantial BENARAREERE 2 F ST
shareholder of the Company 508 1,564
Interest expenses paid to a major ENEEARFERR 2T EME
shareholder of associates 62 -
954 1,888
(B)  Outstanding balances with related parties (B) MiEMmEESEe
Loan from major shareholder of associates R AT EERRZERK 612 -
Loan interest payable to major shareholder — FE{THE & AR EZME 2 EFFE
of associates 62 -

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BENBEARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(C) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management, comprising the directors of

the Company, during the year was as follows:

40.

e P BRRME

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HE-Z-__F+-A=t-BItEE
EXBABAERS (E)
(C) XEEBEABHM
FEERAB(BEARRAER)RNFEFAZ
BT

2022 2021

—E-—F —T

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FET

Short-term benefits rEEARA 4,865 4573
Post-employment benefits BEERI2AEA 52 41
4917 4,614

The remuneration of key management, comprising the directors of
the Company, is determined having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

IZERABR(BEARRESR)NHHHN
ERBEAXRBETISBERET -
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e HRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_Z-_F+-A=+—-HLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the Company at

the end of the reporting period are set out below.

4. ARAFEEMBRR 2FHE

ZFEBEHIMT e

REIRBERREEREERFE 2B QA

2022 2021

Place of Percentage of Percentage of

incorporation/ Registered  equity attributable to equity attributable to
Name registration capital paid up the company the company Principal activities

A i —g--F
£R M AREMER ALAEEREEIL AOAEERERLL IRER

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
E# S E# ;3

Alliance Credit Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100% - 100%  Provision of credit finance services

B E3BRI0000ET REFEMERS
Big Crown Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS | - 100% - 100%  Trading of securities

i LA IBT BEES
Billion Pride Group Limited BVI Ordinary US$| 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Bilion Pride Group Limited RERNAS LRERIZT REER
Central Information Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 100% - 100%  Trading of securities and provision of
MAARRE Bk LB 1008 management services

BERF MRHEERY

Chongxin Co, Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS! = 100% - 100%  Investment holding
SEHRERAA B TRRIET RERR
Luxtone HK Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK§I = 100% - 100%  Investment holding

B LRRIET REZR

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

MENEERLF
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e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 4. AABREEMBL A ZFE(E)
COMPANY (Continued)
2022 2021
Place of Percentage of Percentage of
incorporation/ Registered  equity attributable to equity attributable to
Name registration capital paid up the company the company Principal activities
ML/ -BCCf —E--f
£ e HREMER ALAREREESL ARAEEREAINL TEREHR
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
E# A% ER 3
Sewco (BV)) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$401 100% - 100% - Investment holding
RRBRTHS ERmR0IET RERR
Sewco Toys & Novetty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$76,000,200 = 100% - 100%  Investment holding and trading of toys
Non-voting deferred products
HK$420,000
SREXERLA £l EBMR760002008 7 REARREETEER
ERZE
BRER420000E T
Talent Management Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS | = 100% - 100%  Provision of management services
B EERIET REEERS
Zhongshan Sewco Toys & Novelty The PRC Paid-up capital - 100% - 100%  Manufactuing and sales of toys products
Limited* HK$124300,000
PLRETARRRARAR i R AR 2430000087 RERHETAER
ERRARRRIERAA The PRC Paid-up capital US$1,750,000 = 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EF BRETRI 7500005 REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__F+-AZt-HLHE

41.

42.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

# A wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the PRC.

e For identification purpose only.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of

the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

EVENTS AFTER END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, the

following events took place:

(@)  On 14 October 2022 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreements with two
subscribers, pursuant to which the subscribers have conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed
to issue the convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$22,500,000 based on the initial conversion price of
HK$0.25 per conversion share, a total of 90,000,000 conversion
shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the convertible bonds in full. The gross proceeds
from the convertible bonds subscription (before deducting related
expenses) are estimated to be up to HK$22.5 million. The net
proceeds from the convertible bonds subscription (after deducting
related expenses) are estimated to be approximately HK$22
million and the Company intends to use such net proceeds
primarily for investment in a watermelon planting project in Japan
(which, if materialized, will be pledged in favour of one of the
subscriber, and any remaining proceeds for the working capital

requirement of the Group.

At the date of this report, the issuance of convertible bonds has

not been completed.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNERRAF

42.

AREEEMBATZHE(H)
* o REEERRZEENELE

EXE

EREINARPEETRAR/IBFELAFERA
SERAREEEFEEER D 2 AR ANE
AR ARBEERE  WRHEEGHERT]

ZEE - BEEMBRITE -

WEHRRBREE
RZB-—_F+-_A=+—HEREEARE
A - @A ATEMS

(@) RIZZEZZFTATHB(RZFHERE) -
RABEM L RIEANF AT RRES R
W& - Bt - REBAEEKRGRERE -
MARREAEKGHRERTASBESE
22,500,000 7T 8 AT A AR fE % © EWA%
P8 B BB A D025 8 TTEt & - Al
BIR & 5 T 75 8RR R BB AT 1R
T LABC B K2 B 176 $£90,000,000 % 32 A% AR
7 o AET A RRESFREFIE IS HRIE
%@%ﬁ(%ﬁwﬁaﬁa%ﬁiﬁﬁ)%‘xzz55%;%

o (AFT AR ESFRIBEIE 2 FTISRIE
;aa%ﬁ(%%?ﬂﬁﬂﬁ%@Eﬂiﬂ%)iﬁzzﬁﬁﬁ%m '
E$Qﬂﬁ%%%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%¢&ﬁ

R—EERAZANEREIER (RKEE
HEUESREAABZZ NETER) - F
BT RERBELAEREEERME -

MAREBRH - BITAHBRBES R KT
B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. EVENTS AFTER END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

®)

On 16 December 2022, the Company entered into a Convertible
Bond Subscription Agreement with the subscriber, pursuant
to which the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue to the
subscriber the convertible bond in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$14,000,000. Based on the initial conversion price of
HK$0.22 per conversion share, a total of 63,636,363 conversion
shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the convertible bond in full. The gross proceeds
from the convertible bond subscription (before deducting related
expenses) are estimated to be HK$14 million. The net proceeds
from the convertible bond subscription (after deducting related
expenses) are estimated to be approximately HK$13.8 million and
the Company intends to use such net proceeds for the working

capital requirement of the Group.

At the date of this report, the issuance of convertible bond has

not been completed.

42.

BE

(b)

A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

HAIRBEBIE(E)
RZB_—F+-A+R B RERBA

RV AIHMRESREHEMS - Bk - R
BAEEBRUGRERE H MARREEK
MR E M REAEITASAE4,000000
BRI RRES - RYBRRKRESRA
MR 15 0228 TLET H - & 3£63,636,3630%
B AR 7 1 70 7B BT 150 AT R PR (B 25 BT B R
IR 7 1% T LA BC B ] 3517 o fhET AT R(E
FRERBE S RIEBECNMGRAR
FXANAI4BEAT o Ml RiRESH
REEIE 2 TS RIEFEE IR B
TRINAI38EEST - BAQREK
ZEMBRBFEREREBEEESH

A%
RAmE R - FITARKRESF AT
ﬁ °
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e HRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-__F+-A=+-HALEE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF 43.

THE COMPANY

AT 2 BRR TR HE

2022 2021
—ECHF —ZE-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FHERT FHT
Non-current asset EMBNEEE
Interests in subsidiaries VNG F (a) - -
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERIRIE - e REA Y RIE
receivables 306 331
Bank balances and cash RITERER 68 2,442
374 2,773
Current liabilities mEBIE
Other payables and accruals Hib N RIBEREER 13,636 36,847
Borrowing B 48,550 45,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT B R EIFRIA 46,279 890
108,465 82,737
Net current liabilities mEBEFE (108,091) (79,964)
Total assets less current liabilities BERERRBDAEE (108,091) (79.964)
Net liabilities BEFE (108,091) (79,964)
Capital and reserves P& K f s
Share capital & A 31 3,662 366,186
Deficit B4l (b) (111,753) (446,150)
Capital deficiencies = W (108,091) (79,964)

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BENBEARAT



43.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)
Notes:

@) The amounts due from subsidiaries are classified under non-current asset
as the directors of the Company consider that the amounts due from
subsidiaries are part of the investments in subsidiaries. The amounts are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_T-__F+-A=t-RAItEE

43. ARTRZPBRRRRHEE(E)

wisE

()

BEMBARFESBAERDEE  ARAE
NAIBERREWE R [ RERME QAR
AN -5  c BRARBARERR  28REE

(b) Movement in the Company's reserves (b) ENNS
Share Contributed Accumulated

premium surplus losses Total

R EE BABRER REtEE @st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

At | January 2021 RZZ—_—%—HF—H 942,000 152,762 (1,426917) (331,755)
Total comprehensive expense NEEREF AR

for the year - - (114,395) (114,395)

At 31 December 202 RZE_—F+ZA=+—H 942,400 152,762 (1541,312) (446,150)

Total comprehensive AFEETHER

for the year - - (28,127) (28,127)

Share reduction (note 31) Rt DR (P EE3 1) - - 362,524 362,524
Cancellation of share premium TR AR 8 ()

(Note) (942,400) - 942,400 -

At 31 December 2022 R-EB-_—F+=-A=+-—H - 152,762 (264,515) (I'11,753)

Note:

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 28 November 2022, the Company cancelled the
entire amount standing to the debit of the Share Premium Account as of
30 November 2022 to nil with the credit arising therefrom transferred to

the accumulated losses.

Bt -

BEARFAR-_ZBE-_—_F+— A=+ N\BET
ZHRERENAE LBBZEIRER - AAA
BN HEBEREEEE-_E-_—F+—A=+
A2 EeBEAHEAT  UHHEELEZHE
AREEEE A 2 RATEE -
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Five Years Financial Summary

EFEMBHME

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited consolidated

financial statements, is set out below:

Year ended 3| December

HEt-A=+-HLEE

=)

AEBERNBERDEMBFEERHEEC T ZREZER
EMBRRCEERBEERABZBEHINMT

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZB-f T _T-TH _T-NF T)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RESULTS £ TEr FET FET FET FET
Continuing operations BEREXK
Revenue LN 849,096 724,627 364311 649,490 636,882
Cost of sales SHERA (751213)  (687370)  (345796)  (S74551)  (567.137)
Gross profit ER 97,883 37,257 18515 74,939 69,745
Other income, gains and losses HHMA - WamREE 8217 (10475) (6999) 16822 16,589
Selling and distribution costs HE RS KA (7,557) (5710) (4,109) (6403) (8,183)
Administrative expenses 1THHX (84,903) (78522) (72,446) 76431) (186,172
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  #1% * BB K&k & 2 REEE - (30,704) = = =
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEE REESE = (3,140) - - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Z I 29,906 - 7991 - -
Research and development expenses MEFRS - - (336) (2,523) (1972)
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value ~ BAREFFABR I SHEEL
through profit or loss DREEY - 100 (2929) (10,689) (9.999)
Other operating expenses HEA & ER% (17,426) (22,600) (28,358) (14,404) (15616)
Finance costs REKA (14,351) (16,079) (13,449) (14,785) (8,745)
Profit (loss) before taxation from continuing RS EB 2 BB AER
operations (B#8) 11,769 (129873)  (102,120) (33474)  (144353)
Income tax (expense) credit igCbakis (3,690) (6,142) 6,341 (8948) 9272)
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing BESEER2EERAN(FR)
operations 8,079 (136015) (95,779) 42422)  (153,625)
Profit (loss) for the year FERHN(ER) 8079 (136015 (95.779) (42422)  (153,625)
As at 3| December
W+=RA=t—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZB-zf T —T-THF _T-NF T)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LERERE
Total assets waE 340,946 550348 484,688 595,752 524,846
Total liabilities N =N (430,594) (649,290) (446,787) (475473) (360,509)
(Capital deficiency) total equity (BRE4) BER (89,648) (98.942) 37901 120,279 164,337

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

MENEERLF



WINSHINE
i B 1ok =

Winshine Science Company Limited
mENE28FRLIA



	Cover
	Contents
	Abbreviations
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Years Financial Summary
	Back Cover

